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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 28 JUNE 2021 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Morn ing Chai rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Chaskalson,  good 

morning everybody.  

MR KODWA:    Good morning DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning,  good morning can 

everybody hear  me?  

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   I  can hear  you f rom th is  s ide DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Wel l  i t  appears Mr Chaskalson does 

not  hear  me.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  I  can – I  can Chai r.   I  can.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay a l l  r igh t .   I  am sorry about  th is  

s l ight  de lay.   We – there wi l l  a lways be some delays  where  

there are these technica l  th ings tha t  must  be done.   So I  am 

sorry about  that .   A l l  r ight  are we ready Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   We are ready Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes and Mr S ikhakhane represents Mr  

Kodwa I  understand.  

ADV SIKHAKHANE  Yes – yes Chai r  I  represent  Deputy 

Min is te r  Kodwa in  these proceedings.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  thank you very much.   Otherwise  you 

are ready Mr Chaskalson for  Mr Kodwa to be sworn in .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  am Cha i r  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay but  maybe fo r  the benef i t  o f  the  

publ i c  before Mr Kodwa is  sworn in  you might  wish  to  just  
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g ive the publ i c  an  idea of  the context  o f  h is  ev idence or  h is  

appearance.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:  Thank you Chai r  there was 

previously ev idence f rom Mr Powel  who has conducted a 

forensic invest igat ion at  EOH and there was evidence of  

cer ta in  payments  made by Mr MacKay of  EOH and an EOH 

subsid ia ry TSS to Mr Kodwa and evidence of  

communicat ions between Mr MacKay and Mr Kodwa re lat ing  

to  a Department  of  Home Affa i rs  IT cont ract .   There was 

a lso ev idence of  accommodat ion expenses for  Mr  Kodwa 10 

paid by EOH and today ’s  hear ing is  rea l ly  to  hear  Mr 

Kodwa’s response to that  ev idence.   Mr Kodwa has 

furn ished an aff idavi t  set t ing out  in  br ie f  h is  response and i t  

may be a convenient  way to  commence by asking Mr Kodwa 

to read h is  aff idavi t  in to the record and essent ia l l y  to  – to  

say anyth ing e lse that  he wants to  say in  ampl i f icat ion of  

the – of  what  he sa id in  h is  aff idavi t  before  the quest ion ing 

commences.    

MR KODWA:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  seem to have – I  got  the impression 20 

towards the end of  last  week that  apar t  f rom the aff idavi t  

that  Mr Kodwa had deposed to which was in  suppor t  o f  h is  

appl i cat ion fo r  a  postponement  there may have been 

another  aff idavi t  f i led that  deals  wi th  the issues,  is  that  

correct  o r  the on ly aff idavi t  we have is  the  one that  was 
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f i led in  support  o f  the appl i cat ion? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  Mr  S ikhakhane may make – 

should  fee l  f ree  to  correct  me but  the only  aff idav i t  I  am 

aware of  is  the aff idavi t  f i led in  support  o f  the postponement  

appl i cat ion.   But  i t  a lso ind icated that  i t  was – i t  had a dual  

purpose.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  was a response to a lso to  the  

Regulat ion 10.6 D i rect ive.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Mr S ikhakhane do you conf i rm? 10 

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   Chai r  I  do conf i rm.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   I  even thought  that  maybe for  a  minute  

or  two because th is  may wel l  be the shor test  you have seen 

of  the test imonies .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   That  I  would in t roduce the issues but  

we had conf i rmed that  that  i s  the only aff idavi t  we have got .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   Not  that  is  –  that  is  f ine.   

Wel l  in  that  event  un less – unless  there is  someth ing you 20 

wanted to  say Mr  Kodwa – Mr S ikakane before Mr Kodwa is  

sworn in .  

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  would ask the Regist rar  to  swear h im in .  

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   Chai r  do not… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Is  there someth ing?  Yes.  

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  there i s  someth ing you want  to  say> 

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   Yes unusua l ly  i t  is  no – i t  is  not  a  

compla int  i t  is  to  assure the commission that  f i rs t  o f  a l l  

thank you Chai r  we got  the documents in  t ime.   And thank 

you fo r  the postponement .   What  I  wanted to  say is  that  we 

– because we are acute ly  mindfu l  o f  the t ime const ra in ts  

that  the Chai rperson is  fac ing I  have spoken to my learned 

f r iend Mr Chaskalson that  th is  may be one of  those 10 

moments when the – the opening statement  instead of  

wast ing your  t ime wi l l  actual l y  expedi te  and make us f in ish 

ear l ie r.   So I  would – I  would request  – because I  want  to  

make no in te rvent ions or  in te rrupt ions in  th is  – is  that  the 

Deputy Min is te r  wi l l  make a statement  which is  shor t  but  I  

can assure  the Chai rperson i t  is  a t  the end of  the statement  

because of  h is  approach that  the Chai rperson wi l l  see we 

may save hours.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   Of  the t ime we would have wasted.   20 

That  is  a l l  we wi l l  do Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   And then a l low h im to – to  take the 

stand and be sworn in .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay a l l  r ight .   Okay.   No,  no  that  i s  
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f ine.    I  propose that  he be sworn  in  f i rs t  and then he can 

make the opening  statement  o r  remarks.  

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then proceed to read h is  aff idavi t .  

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   Chai r  for  the record because he is  

s i t t ing he is  go ing  to  be using my – my gadgets I  –  I  assume 

that  you wi l l  see my name.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SIKHAKHANE:   So he wi l l  have the oppor tuni ty  of  

be ing ca l led  Mr S ikhakhane fo r  today but  in  order  not  to  10 

confuse the publ ic  i t  is  not  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja okay.     A l l  r ight ,  okay.   Regist rar  

Mr Kodwa.  

MR KODWA:   Morn ing Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Kodwa.  

MR KODWA:   Good morning Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much fo r  avai l ing yoursel f .  

MR KODWA:   You are welcome thanks very much 

Chai rperson for  the opportuni ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   I  w i l l  ask the Regist rar  to  20 

admin ister  the oath or  a ff i rmat ion at  th is  s tage and then we 

wi l l  take i t  f rom there.   Regist rar  wi l l  you admin is ter  the  

oath or  a ff i rmat ion? 

REGISTRAR:   Good morning wi l l  you be tak ing the oath or  

the aff i rmat ion? 
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MR KODWA:   Oath.  

REGISTRAR:   Oath.  P lease state  your  fu l l  names for  the  

record.  

MR KODWA:   Ncediso Goodenough Kodwa.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  tak ing the  

prescr ibed oath? 

MR KODWA:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider  the oath b ind ing on your  

conscience? 

MR KODWA:   Yes.  10 

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly swear that  the ev idence you 

wi l l  g ive wi l l  be the t ru th;  the who le t ru th and noth ing but  

the t ru th;  i f  so p lease ra ise your  r ight  hand and say,  so help 

me God.  

MR KODWA:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much.   Mr Chaskalson are  

you? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  I  understood that  Mr Kodwa 

was going to  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  just  wanted to  conf i rm that  there is  20 

noth ing fur ther  you want  to  say before Mr Kodwa makes h is  

opening remarks? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Not  at  a l l  i f  I  –  I f  I  have quest ions 

they wi l l  come out  in  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay a l l  r ight .   Mr Kodwa.    
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MR KODWA:   Thank you very much and good morning to  

you Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes good morning.   Let  me just  

understand.   Do you propose to do some opening remarks  

before you – you read your  aff idavi t  o r  you wi l l  just  be 

reading your  aff idavi t?  

MR KODWA:   I  propose to  do an opening remark 

Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .   That  is  f ine go ahead.  

MR KODWA:   Thank you very much Chai rperson.   Deputy 10 

Chai rperson le t  me commence by expressing my s incere 

grat i tude and appreciat ion for  a ffo rd ing me the pr iv i lege and 

opportuni ty  to  appear before you.  

 Not  on ly Deputy Chai rperson – Deputy Chief  Just ice 

not  on ly a re you burdened wi th  a  thankless and mammoth 

task of  d iagnosing the s ickness of  cor rupt ion that  just  s i ts  

r ight  in  the bel ly  o f  our  democracy and the nat ional  

democracy.  

 You are a lso tasked to provide  us wi th  a new 

t ra jectory of  e th ica l  leadership that  our  count ry needs so 20 

much.   As a young learn ing leader of  the ANC and our  

government  I  have taken to hear t  you re lent less and 

repeated ca l l s  fo r  those of  us work ing fo r  the state to  come 

and share the i r  exper iences.  

 I  have understood your  ca l l  not  as condemnatory a  
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condemnatory ca l l  but  a  genuine  ca l l  ask ing us  to  ask  

ourselves d i f f icu l t  quest ions about  our  own act ions and how 

they are perceived.  

 I  come before you not  because I  am gui l t y  o f  any 

cr ime of  cor rupt ion.   A t  the outset  as I  accept  some lack of  

judgment  in  my own conduct  I  want  to  s tate i t  categor ica l ly  

Chai rperson that  I  have never  engaged in  cor rupt ion or  

fac i l i ta ted corrupt ion in  my re lat ionship wi th  Mr MacKay or  

any other  person.  

 I  must  hasten however Chai rperson to state that  I  10 

d id not  come before you to  personal ly  present  mysel f  as a  

spot less or  that  my acceptance of  f inancia l  ass is tance f rom 

f r iends or  a re in  business may not  have been perce ived as 

a benef i t  coming my way because I  am a member of  the 

ru l ing par ty.  

 The work of  the commission is  fundamenta l  in  the  

agenda to bui ld  a  capable development  on an eth ica l  s tate  

to  del i ver  on i t s  mandate.  

 In  the evolut ion  of  a  democrat ic  pro ject  we must  

therefore accept  that  i t  endures among others  our  own 20 

evolut ion as leaders of  our  democrat ic  s tate.  

 I  see the quest ions that  have been ra ised to  me 

Chai rperson not  as accusat ions per  se but  important  

quest ions f rom which one is  ca l led upon to ref lect  

d i f ferent ly  about  one’s conduct  even i f  such conduct  is  not  
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s t r i c t ly  cr iminal  o r  corrupt .  

 I  must  s incere ly  thank you for  the manner you 

carr ied yoursel f  in  par t icu lar  under very d i f f icu l t  ser ious 

condi t ions Chai rperson.    

 I  am par t icu la r ly  remorsefu l  o f  that  a l though the 

issues ra ised wi th  me re lat ing a  per iod when I  was not  

work ing fo r  the state and had no in f luence on how the state 

d id i t s  business that  I  accepted assis tance f rom f r iends 

could lend i tse l f  to  percept ions tha t  we use our  p rox imi ty  to  

power to  remunerate our  own ind iv idual  f inancia l  d i f f icu l t ies 10 

rather  those of  our  people.  

 A lways remember Deputy Chai rperson – Deputy  

Chief  Just ice when the whole wor ld  is  s i lent  even one voice  

becomes powerfu l .   When we do not  acknowledge our  own 

er rors of  judgment  as leaders we leave an indel ib le  mark of  

impuni ty  on the psyche of  society.  

 We shal l  fa i l  to  take responsib i l i ty  to  learn f rom our  

er rors and to lead society.   I  therefore welcome the – and 

appreciate the opportuni ty  presented to  you by you – to  me 

by you Chai rperson.  20 

 However some of  the accusat ions against  me requi re 

me to expla in some of  the chal lenges that  accompany our  

new ro le as leaders of  what  not  so long ago was a l iberat ion 

movement  routed in  the object i ve condi t ions and leave the 

real i t ies of  our  people par t i cu la r ly  the poorest  o f  the poor.  
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 The ro le of  the ANC imposes painfu l  responsib i l i t ies  

and chal lenges on us as leaders.  The mul t i tudes of  our  

people who see the ANC as the i r  l iberator  and a source of  

hope approach us  cer ta in ly  in  my case demanding access to  

the i r  leaders some of  whom have created a dangerous 

socia l  d is tance between themselves and ord inary  people  

they ought  to  serve.  

 As a consequence in  the resul ts  Chai rperson when 

they see us the  people  they demand that  we fac i l i ta te  

access to  the i r  learners.   They do th is  for  genuine reasons 10 

ar is ing f rom thei r  d i re  condi t ions of  pover ty  and need fo r  

ident i ty  documents,  passport ,  food,  jobs in  many 00:15:18 

that  face them.  

 Of  course some approached us to  fac i l i ta te access 

to  those leaders of  the ANC that  occupy posi t ions w i th in  the  

state for  the i r  bus iness in terests.  

 I  hasten to  state that  i t  is  our  ob l igat ion as leaders 

to  assess when our  people ask for  access to  the i r  leaders  

such fac i l i ta t ion  is  lawfu l  and appropr ia te or  is  i t  

inappropr ia te – or  is  i t  for  an inappropr ia te purpose.   Even 20 

i f  i t  is  appropr ia te as i t  is  in  my case one st i l l  has to  

manage the fact  that  in  po l i t ics Chai rperson percept ions are 

as powerfu l  as real i ty.    

 Th is i s  a  hard lesson I  have come to learn f rom your  

pronouncements Deputy Chief  Just ice.   I  have a lso real i sed 
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that  just  as I  know that  a l l  the payments or  assis tance I  

received f rom f r iends who are more f inancia l l y  fo r tunate 

than I  am I  need to be more c i rcumspect  about  percept ion 

that  such re lat ions may create in  the eyes of  the publ ic .  

 As I  sa id Chai rperson the ANC occupies a very  

unique posi t ion in  the h is tory of  South Af r ica.   I ts  re la t ions 

wi th  ord inary masses is  indeed unique and a specia l  one.  

 From incept ion,  i t  was and i t  cont inues to  be our  

people ’s  hope to successfu l l y  conf ront  our  unfor tunate past ,  

which depr ived us  of  our  humani ty  and d igni ty.  10 

 Somet imes we do d isappoint  them when we do not  

watch our  conduct  in  the impl icat ions of  our  own proximi ty  

to  power.   When the ANC was founded i t  was cor rect ly  

co ined as a people ’s  Par l iament  wh ich would be responsib le  

– responsive to  the i r  needs.  

 This character  remains wi th  us to  date and we must  

a lways mainta in c loseness and empathy wi th  the c i t izens.   

As a person – as  an act iv is t  I  have had a pr iv i lege to  serve 

as a leader,  a  pub l ic  servant  and an ANC staff  member.    

 Th is has g iven me inv io lab le perspect ives on how 20 

th is  organisat ion  operates as a leader of  society.   I t  has 

a lso meant  that  I  meet  d i f ferent  people and they requi re 

d i f ferent  th ings f rom me as a leader of  the ANC that  I  am 

young and deve loping  and have learnt  g reat  and hard 

lessons in  the process.  
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 As I  s tar ted here – as I  s tand here today I  do so wi th  

a c lear  understanding of  the need to subject  ourselves as 

leaders to  00:15:42 as a way of  uphold ing what  we deem to 

the revolut ionary standard bef i t t ing  the leaders of  society.  

 I  came here before you Chai rperson not  to  be  

sanct imonious or  p ious that  we share my perspect ive as  

wel l  as lessons I  cont inue to  learn.  

 I  s t ress that  payments in to my accounts f rom a  

f r iend carr ied no in tent  on my par t  to  be cor rupt .    

 Whi le  I  vehement ly  deny that  such payments were a 10 

quid pro quo fo r  anyth ing.   I  am unaware – I  am not  

unaware that  such payments car ry wi th  them a percept ion of  

abuse of  our  posi t ion in  power.  

 These payments for  – to  me or  the ANC were not  

corrupt  or  designed to in f luence any tender p rocess or 

encourage any unlawfu l  acts where our  members work 

wi th in  the state.  

 Dur ing the re levant  per iod when the payments took 

p lace I  never  worked for  government  or  s tate.  I  prev iously 

an much ear l ie r  had a br ie f  s t in t  in  an advisory capaci ty  in  20 

the Presidency dur ing the years 2009 to 2011.    

 I  then spent  most  of  the t ime at  the employment  as a  

Nat ional  Spokesperson of  the ANC.   The posi t ion exposes 

me exposes one to the publ i c  as they see me as a  face of  

the i r  organisat ion .   They approach you when they need – 
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when they need to see the i r  leaders.    

 However many people Chai rperson who could no 

longer access our  leaders bur ied in  the face of  bureaucracy 

and behind the ever  so l id  red tape turn to  us to  fac i l i ta te  

such access or  to  remind the i r  leaders of  the i r  p romises to  

them.  

 I  must  confess  that  th is  ro le  requi res boldness 

because not  a l l  those who approach you know what  is  

appropr ia te and not  appropr ia te fo r  you to  do.   

 Many a t ime I  wi l l  te l l  them – I  wi l l  te l l  people  10 

st ra ight  that  I  can assure that  they need a comrade,  a  

Min is te r  but  I  wi l l  do more – I  wi l l  do not  more than fac i l i ta te  

such a meet ing.  

 More of ten business people seek access in  order  to  

fac i l i ta te the i r  own business oppor tuni t ies.   I t  is  our  job to  

te l l  them what  i s  appropr ia te and not  appropr ia te to  do.  

 I  d id  th is  most  of  me when people  who were f r iends 

and doing business wi th  government  assumed that  the i r  

f r iendship wi th  me or  p roximi ty  to  me meant  that  I  could  

help them to get  businesses.  20 

 I t  was my duty to  te l l  them to fo l low set  government  

processes in  terms of  Sect ion 217 of  the const i tu t ion which  

governs procurement  of  goods and serv ices by the state.  

 A l low me Deputy Chief  Just ice to  share my humbl ing  

and last ing exper iences.  Peop le come to the ANC 
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leadership seeking help and adv ice.   Even ask to  make 

people who they th ink you know and you have access to .  

Our shared in  the revolut ionary  v iew wi th in  the ANC 

format ions is  that  the ANC is  a – the ANC government  is  a  

people ’s  government  and i t  is  – and i t  must  l is ten and be 

responsive to  the people.   To that  extent  we car ry the 

responsib i l i t y  as an organisat ion to  actual i se that  v iew.  

 By v i r tue of  be ing the nat ional  spokesperson I  have 

been the vo ice and the face of  the ANC as wel l  as  a leader 

that  people looked upon to assis t  in  conf ront ing the i r  da i ly  10 

chal lenges.   I  became a go to  person for  people who wi th  

gr ievances and issues to  ra ise wi th  the ANC leadership.  

 This came f rom ord inary people,  business people  

and a l l  sectors o f  society.   My da i ly  s t ruggle  as a  leader 

was to  re in force  the  grass between the t rust  people  have in  

the ANC and to do what  is  appropr ia te wi thout  c reat ing a 

socia l  d is tance between the people and the leadership.  

 I t  is  a  duty of  leaders to  meet  wi th  people at  a l l  t ime 

to resolve the i r  problems.   I f  Amandlamene in  Soweto  

Umhlazi  or  00:20:43 wants to  meet  a Min is te r  o r  anyone 20 

f rom the leadership I  saw i t  as in  a duty to  assis t  to  the 

extent  possib le  appropr ia te and lawfu l .  

 I t  is  o f ten d i f f icu l t  to  draw the requis i te  l ine between 

the responsib i l i t ies as a leader in  the par ty  and a leader in  

government  and many ord inary people do  not  see th is  l ine.   
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Obviously now as a Deputy Min is te r  o f  State Secur i ty  I  

remain accessib le  but  wi l l  be more c i rcumspect  even i f  I  

had s imi la r  d i f f icu l t ies or  needs to  manage percept ions of  

undue favour i t ism.  

 The chal lenge though is  that  peop le ’s  problems st i l l  

need government  to  deal  wi th  them.   Business people are  

more d i f f i cu l t  br idge to  deal  wi th  as they come in  d i f ferent  

forms and wi th  d i f ferent  mot ives.   However there is  no need 

to d iscr iminate against  people s imply because they happen 

to be successfu l  business people.  10 

 We should encourage them to pursue the i r  

businesses lawfu l ly  and eth ica l ly,  accord ingly I  wou ld help  

them meet  whoever they need to  meet  i f  such a meet ing 

was appropr ia te in  my own assessment .  

 However I  was a lways fo r thr ight  wi th  them when I  

thought  the demand was inappropr ia te.   In  any event  I  to ld 

them to fo l low the  correct  and the lawfu l  channels.    

 A l low me to return to  my or ig ina l  argument  that  as  

leaders of  society we cannot  be ind i f fe rent  to  the  people  

when they cry out  for  leg i t imate  at tent ion owing to  the i r  20 

d i f f icu l t ies and chal lenges.  

 Having sa id th is  there are somet imes chal lenges in  

resolv ing a l l  the i r  problems due to  leg is la t ive or  regular  3  

imposi t ions.  As I  s ta ted Deputy Chief  Just ice  I  do not  

come before you to  pul l  wool  over  your  eyes or  deny that  I  
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o f ten  received payments f rom a  f r iend ident i f ied  in  the 

quest ions sent  to  me by the secretar ia t  o f  the commission.  

 I  came to assure you that  such payments were 

indeed f inancia l  he lp f rom a f r iend and yes they somet imes 

involve f igures that  seem high.   However I  assure you that  i t  

was due to my f inancia l  d i f f i cu l t ies and somet imes need for  

accommodat ion as I  t ravel led.  

 And none of  the  payments or  cater ing  

accommodat ion were offered me to fac i l i ta te  any unlawfu l  

act  or  my par t  to  Mr MacKay.  10 

 I  am the f i rs t  to  acknowledge that  some of  the  

assis tance inc lud ing accommodat ion and cater ing may wel l  

seem excessive and ext ravagant  hospi ta l i t y  o ffered to  me 

whenever we occupied or  v is i ted MacKay’s proper ty  o r  

those which he had access to .  

 I  fu l ly  accept  tha t  i t  is  the hospi ta l i ty  I  was offe red 

and I  accepted.   I  a lso acknowledge that  I  knew that  and I  

got  involved in  my case donat ions in  assis tance in  the ANC 

in i ts  act i v i t ies or  events.  

 I  s t ress that  I  know no event  when such donat ions 20 

offer  each other  assis tance to  the ANC was g iven on 

condi t ion that  Mr MacKay or  any of  h is  ent i t ies wi l l  receive 

– who receive pre ferent ia l  t reatment  by government .  

 I  appear before  you acknowledge to – I  appear  

before you to  acknowledge the lesson you seem to g ive us  
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every t ime you have an opportuni ty  to  encourage us to  

appear and that  is  when need to be c i rcumspect  about  our  

re la t ions and how they are perceived as leaders.  

 One of  that  lessons I  have now learnt  as I  consul ted  

wi th  my own comrades and my own legal  representat ives in  

th is  mat te r  i s  the  need to take responsib i l i t y  honest ly  and 

head on.   The need to acknowledge that  whi le  I  commit ted  

no cr ime or  fac i l i ta ted no cr ime the  needs of  leadership are  

that  I  must  avoid s i tuat ions that  lend themselves to  

percept ions that  as a leader I  am being bought  or  favoured.  10 

 In  my main aff idavi t  I  have declared the payments  

and assis tance received f rom Mr  MacKay to the best  o f  my 

recol lect ion.  

 I  have sought  no t  to  waste your  t ime Deputy Chief  

Just ice wi th  denia ls  and these would be an ind ic tment  on 

my own leadership inabi l i t y  to  learn  great  lessons and 

responsib i l i t y  that  I  have come – that  governs leadership.  

 I  must  s tate categor ica l l y  that  a l l  the payments were 

nowhere – there was no except ion  that  I  would fac i l i ta te – 

there was no expectat ion that  I  would fac i l i ta te anyth ing to  20 

Mr MacKay to be preferred.  

 Mr MacKay never  once assis ted me or  offered 

accommodat ion on condi t ion tha t  I  should fac i l i ta te or  

in f luence a cer ta in  business opportuni ty.  

 Th is is  a l l  because he knew my v iews about  issues 
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o f  s tate and procurement  and even when he ra ises  some of  

the f rust rat ions regard ing h is  tender I  categor ica l l y  to ld  h im 

that  I  was not  –  I  was in  no posi t ion to  in f luence such 

decis ions nor  d id  I  have any inc l ina t ion to  do so.  

 Had I  perceived that  h is  assis tance to  me was based 

on such expectat ions I  would have had – I  wi l l  not  have 

accepted – I  wi l l  never  have accepted i t .   To h is  c redi t  he  

has never  made such condi t ions.  

 He assis ted me in  my t ime of  need and when I  

sought  accommodat ion in  my t ravels of ten the hospi ta l i t y  10 

was indeed generous.  

 I  may be asked as to  the wisdom of  obta in ing such 

s ign i f i cant  f inancia l  ass is tance f rom one person.   Wel l  the 

wisdom of  i t  we can debate Chai rperson that  I  categor ica l ly  

s tate that  i t  was never  in tended to fac i l i ta te any cr ime or  

un lawfu l  conduct .  

 Deputy Chief  Just ice I  have made these opening 

remarks because I  have observed your  task is  made d i f f icu l t  

by us as leaders who cont inue to  refuse to  accept  c r i t ic i sm 

about  our  own fa i lures to  be c i rcumspect .  20 

 I  do lament  and regret  the tendency in  our  society to  

approach the scourge of  corrupt ion in  such 00:27:02 terms.   

We seem to approach i t  in  a  manner that  fa i ls  to  

acknowledge that  i t  is  a  pandemic  even i f  i t  i s  commit ted by  

those we l i ke or  p refer  we should re ject  i t  and t reat  i t  w i th  a 
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contempt  i t  deserves wherever  i t  comes f rom.  

 Last ly  Deputy  Chief  Person I  re i terate that  I  wi l l  

never  refuse to  fac i l i ta te accessib i l i ty  o f  our  leaders to  

those they lead the people.   Such fac i l i ta t ion should never  

be perceived as cr iminal .  

 Having sa id that  I  accept  my responsib i l i t y  to  be  

c i rcumspect  in  how I  re la te wi th  people or  seek assis tance 

or  hospi ta l i ty  f rom them. 

 In  par t i cu lar  now that  I  work fo r  the state I  assure  

the commission and our  people ou t  there that  I  wi l l  never  10 

bet ray the i r  t rust  in  me and the i r  movement  – the ANC.  

 I  cont inue to  learn because I  am a  young leader and 

accept  my imper fect ions.   I  have learnt  and cont inue to  

learn great  and endur ing lessons f rom my cur rent  ro le  as a 

Deputy Min is te r,  my people and even f rom th is  commission.  

 I  hope when I  leave th is  commission,  th is  room I  

shal l  have learnt  even bet ter  and greater  lessons about  our  

responsib i l i t ies and obl igat ions as leaders.  

 I  thank you and I  hope to – I  hope to assis t  the  

commission to  the best  o f  my abi l i t ies and wi thout  wast ing  20 

i ts  t ime.  

 Thank you very much Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much Mr Kodwa.   Thank y  

you – thank you very much.   I  w i l l  le t  Mr Chaskalson take i t  

f rom there but  thank you very much for  – fo r  your  opening 
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s ta tement .   Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Thank you Mr 

Kodwa.   Mr Kodwa you have g iven the commission an  

aff idavi t  which covers some of  the ground that  you – you 

address in  your  s tatement  but  you know what  you sa id,  I  

know what  you sa id,  the Chai r  knows what  you sa id  but  the  

publ i c  do not .   So I  th ink that  p robably the best  way to  

commence would  be to  ask you to  read that  a ff idavi t  in to 

the record of  the  commission  so that  everyone is  aware of  

what  you have se t  out  in  that  a ff idavi t .   So can I  ask you to 10 

do that?  

MR KODWA:   Thank you very much Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Before he – before he does that  Mr 

Chaskalson I  just  want  to  put  on the heater  in  th is  room i t  is  

very co ld.   I  –  so  le t  us – do not  go away I  wi l l  jus t  –  just  

go ing to  do that  but  you – I  do not  know i f  i t  is  go ing to  

in ter fere in  any way wi th  audib i l i t y  whether  we wi l l  not  be 

able to  hear  each other  o r  not  so I  am looking at  my 

Regist rar  to  see i f  she g ives me any ind icat ion.   She does 

not  th ink i t  w i l l .   I  w i l l  –  I  wi l l  swi tch i t  on but  i f  i t  does 20 

in ter fere you must  le t  me know and then I  wi l l  swi tch i t  o ff .   

I  just  want  to  swi tch on the heater  and then you can c lose 

the door.   Okay i f  i t  in ter feres and you cannot  hear  me or  

hear  somebody speaking p lease le t  me know so tha t  I  can 

swi tch i t  o ff .   Okay a l l  r ight  Mr Kodwa you can cont inue 
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then.  

MR KODWA:   Thank you very much Chai rperson.  

“ I ,  the unders igned Ncediso Goodenough Kodwa due have 

my”  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  Mr  Kodwa,  I  am sor ry.   Mr 

Chaskalson I  do not  th ink that  he needs to  read everyth ing 

in  that  a ff idavi t  because I  would imagine par t  o f  i t  re la tes to  

the postponement  appl i cat ion.   I  guess what  you want  h im 

to read are those paragraphs that  deal  wi th  the payments.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.  Wel l  maybe f rom paragraph 8  10 

onwards Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay a l l  r ight .   Mr Kodwa you can – 

Mr Chaskalson you can check where I  th ink at  page – at  

paragraph 20 he seems to ta lk  about  the postponement  

appl i cat ion.   Maybe i t  is  f rom paragraph 8 to  paragraph 19.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rect  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Okay Mr Kodwa I  th ink you can read 

f rom paragraph 8 to  paragraph 19.  

MR KODWA:   Thank you very much Chai rperson.  

“ I  met  Mr MacKay dur ing the year  2013 and we 20 

became f r iends around that  per iod .   I  cont inued to 

in teract  wi th  h im as a f r iend as I  have done s ince we 

met .  

Such contact  is  indeed l imi ted cur rent ly  because of  

my engagement  as a Deputy Min is te r.   However   
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MacKay and I  d id  communicate v ia  emai l  but  I  have 

not  been able to  ret r ieve any of  those emai ls  so fa r.    

I  w i l l  endeavour to  search of  such correspondences 

before my appearance at  the commission.  

A l though I  do – a l though I  do not  a t  th is  po int  have 

a l l  the deta i l s  o f  payment  in to my account  I  however 

conf i rm that  severa l  payments were made by Mr  

MacKay in to my personal  bank account .  

I  w i l l  endeavour to  compi le  deta i l s  o f  speci f ic  

payments in to my account  before my appearance a t  10 

the commission.  

Given my t ime const ra in ts I  have not  been able to  do 

so.   What  I  can conf i rm is  that  none of  the payments  

had anyth ing to  do wi th  the government  procurement  

by MacKay or  any of  h is  companies .  

I  submi t  that  such payments were  made on request  

a t  t imes when I  had f inancia l  d i f f icu l t ies.   I  a lso  

conf i rm that  such payments were not  qu id pro quo 

for  any assis tance then or  even in  the fu ture.  

I  have of ten tu rned to f r iends l ike MacKay as and 20 

when I  face f inancia l  d i f f icu l t ies.   I  extend the same 

to f r iends and re lat ives as and when I  am so 

requested.   I  conf i rm that  a t  some point  I  d id  request  

Mr MacKay to assis t  wi th  grocer ies for  one of  the  

ANC branches and to pay for  T-Shi r ts  at  some stage.  
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I  never  requested any fur ther  payments f rom him.   I  

am aware however that  he may have been – he may 

have made other  donat ions to  the ANC but  these 

may not  have done at  my request  o r  instance.  

In  regard to  EOH I  never  received payments or  any 

payments f rom EOH into my personal  account  or  in  

my personal  –  fo r  my personal  use.  

When the ANC sought  funding or  donat ions f rom 

EOH I  am aware that  Mr MacKay gave the ANC the  

name of  the EOH off ic ia l  responsib le for  such 10 

endeavours.  

I  do conf i rm that  I  obta ined a loan a sum of  R1 

mi l l ion f rom Mr MacKay,  890 of  which went  to  the 

purchase of  a  Jeep vehic le  and as ident i f ied in  the 

quest ions dur ing the – dur ing June 2015.  

I  conf i rm th is  was a loan f rom a f r iend and no st r ings  

at tached.   I  ob ta ined at  the t ime of  f inancia l  

d i f f icu l t ies and w i l l  not  have been able to  secure a  

bank loan.   I t  was a lso f lex ib le  for  me as MacKay 

ind icated that  I  d id  not  have to  rush making 20 

payments unt i l  I  fe l t  my f inances had been 

stabi l i sed.   

I t  is  not  cor rect  that  Mr Mackay paid fo r  my hote l  

accommodat ion whatsoever.   Mr  Mackay has severa l  

p roper t ies  in  Cape Town.   As a  f r i end,  I  o f ten  s lep t  
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a t  one h i s  p roper t ies  as  and when I  needed to .    

He had made h is  homes or  p roper t ies  ava i lab le  to  

h im –  to  me when I  v is i ted  Cape Town,  whenever  I  

v is i ted  Cape Town.    

As  I  s ta ted  above,  he  a lso  made ava i lab le  

proper t ies  o f  wh ich  he  had access to .   Even th is  

were  no t  o f  h is  own.    

I  unders tand tha t  he  had access to  var ied  

proper t ies  in  the  area o f  Cape Town.  

As I  unders tand  i t ,  no t  a l l  the  proper t ies  he  had 10 

access to ,  were  h is  own or  were  in  h is  own.  

I  conf i rm tha t  there  was noth ing  un toward  in  h is  

a l low ing me to  v i s i t  h is  home or  spent  the  n igh t  o r  

n igh ts  a t  any o f  h is  p roper t ies .    

He spec i f i ca l l y  demanded no payment  fo r  the  t ime I  

spent  a t  the  t ime o f  h is  –  I  spent  a t  any o f  h is  

homes.  

I  p layed no ro le  in  any o f  the  tenders  ident i f ied  in  

the  d i rec t i ve  o f  any tender  whatsoever.   

Th is  inc ludes SASSA B id ,  the  Eastern  Cape 20 

Depar tment  o f  Educat ion ,  and the  Depar tment  o f  

Home Affa i r s .  

I  have never  persona l ly  o r  th rough any ent i t y  been  

invo lved in  these tenders  a t  a l l .  

There  was a  t ime  where  Mr  Mackay was f rus t ra ted .   
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H is  tender  was  d isqua l i f ied  and requested my 

ass is tance s ince  I  was in  the  ANC,  and he had  

hoped tha t  I  cou ld  make some enqu i r ies.  

He sent  me the  documents  in  th is  regard  and I ,  

ca tegor i ca l l y,  adv ised h im tha t  I  was in  no  pos i t ion  

to  ass i s t  h im a t  a l l .  

Th is  i s  the  on ly  ins tance in  wh ich  he  asked fo r  

ass is tance f rom me.  

S ince then,  he  unders tood  tha t  I  v iewed  

in te r fe rence w i th  tender  p rocesses in  a  negat ive  10 

l igh t  and do not  invo lve  myse l f  in  such mat te rs ,  as  I  

was not  respons ib le  fo r  any tender  p rocess in  

government  o r  in  a  depar tment  o rgan o f  s ta te . ”  

Thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you Mr  Kodwa.   Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank  you,  Cha i r.   Thank you,  

Mr  Kodwa.   Can we s tar t  jus t  c la r i f y ing  in  re la t ion  to  the  

payments?   And can I  ask  you to  go  to  Bund le  16 ,  page  

293 where  there  i s  a  l i s t  o f  payments?  

MR KODWA :    Two. . .?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    293.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  wou ld  be  b lack  numbers ,  

Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   Top le f t -

hand s ide  o f  the  page,  b lack  numbers .  
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MR KODWA :    Yes,  Cha i rperson   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Cha i r,  do  you a l so  have tha t  

page,  293?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  have got  i t .   Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr  Kodwa,  you w i l l  see  on tha t  

page a  l i s t  o f  payments  tha t  runs f rom 28 Apr i l  2015 to  

2  February  2016.   The f i rs t  ques t ion  is .   A re  there  any 

payments  on  tha t  l i s t  tha t  you do not  ag ree or  made,  e i ther  

f rom Mr  Mackay o r  TSS,  in to  your  account?  

MR KODWA :    What  I  do  conf i rm,  Cha i rpe rson,  i s  tha t ,  10 

because o f  my cor respondences were  w i th  Mr  Mackay.   I  

never  rece ived any payments  f rom any o f  h is  en t i t ies .   A l l  

my payments  and f inanc ia l  ass is tance came f rom 

Mr  Mackay.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Mr  Kodwa,  a re  you –  you 

are  –  I  mean,  I  accept  tha t  you perce i ved the  money as  

coming f rom Mr  Mackay.   As  a  mat te r  o f  fac t ,  the  bu lk  o f  i t ,  

in  fac t ,  was pa id  ou t  o f  TSS,  no t  Mr  Mackay.   Do you 

d ispute  tha t?  20 

MR KODWA :    Wel l ,  I  -  Mr  Mackay,  I  am sure ,  he  can  

answer  be t te r,  tha t  quest ion .   A l l  what  I  know is  tha t  the  

ass is tance I  go t  was f rom Mr  Mackay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  see .   But  you do not  d ispute  –  

you w i l l  see  tha t  there  are  th ree- l ine  i tems.   28  Apr i l  2015,  
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there  i s  an  amount  tha t  says M G Kodwa,  ANC Donor  JM.   

That  i s  the  one mi l l ion  payment  re la ted  to  your  ca r.   That  

amount ,  fac tua l l y,  was pa id  ou t  o f  the  account  o f  TSS.   So,  

do  you accept  tha t?  

MR KODWA :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then,  22  September  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Chaska lson,  jus t  one second .   I  do 

no t  know whether,  techno log ica l l y,  somebody can make 

sure  tha t  everybody –  I  can hear  everybody?  I  can hear  10 

everybody we l l ,  bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  the  vo i ces to  be  a  l i t t le  b i t  

h igher  than they  are .   The vo lume.   I  do  no t  know i f  the  

reg i s t ra r  i s  l i s ten ing  to  me.  

REGISTRAR :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  there  a  bu t ton  to  be  touched or  

p ressed to  make su re  the  vo lume is  h igher  whenever  

everybody speaks?  I  th ink ,  I  am probab ly  the  on ly  one  

speak ing  w i th  a  h igher  vo lume because o f  the  na ture  o f  my  

vo i ce .   [ laughs]    

REGISTRAR :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  tha t  shou ld  do  i t .   Oh,  what  

happened?   

REGISTRAR :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay,  Mr  Chaska lson.   I  

unders tand the  vo lume wi l l  be  be t te r  now.   Okay.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Good,  Cha i r.   I s  th is  an  

improvement?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  much less  than what  I  expected but  I  

th ink  we can con t inue.   Maybe the re  is  a  lo t  tha t  wou ld  be  

invo l ved in  o rder  to  ach ieve what  I  want ,  bu t  I  can hear  

everybody.   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  the  vo ices are  a  l i t t le  lower  than 

what  I  wou ld  l i ke .   Of  course ,  maybe,  I  can jus t  ask  

everybody to  t ry  and speak up a  b i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    O f  cou rse .   Cha i r,  I  w i l l  do  my 

best .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  very  good.   That  i s  ve ry  good.   

Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR KODWA :    I  w i l l  do  my best  as  we l l ,  Cha i rperson .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  thank you.   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Okay.   Mr  Kodwa,  p lease accept  

tha t  I  am not  shout ing  a t  you.   [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR KODWA :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Kodwa must  be  have seen tha t  

a l though Mr  S ikakane(?)  sa id  –  th is  th ing  w i l l  show h im as 20 

Mr  S ikakane,  i t  does show Mr  Kodwa ta lk ,  Mr  S ikakane.   

So. . .   [ laughs]  

MR KODWA :    Yes,  i t  does.   Yes,  i t  does.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Yes,  okay.   Wel l ,  you see,  Mr  

Kodwa,  i f  –  i t  i s  good tha t  they pu t  your  name,  because i f  
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peop le  thought  you were  Mr  S ikakane,  they were  go ing  to  

th ink  you are  sen ior  counse l .   You have a  lo t  o f  money.   

[ laughs]  

MR KOD WA :    [ laughs]   I  d id  no t  know tha t  my counse l  

have got  a  lo t  o f  money,  Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Chaska lson,  

p lease p roceed.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank  you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Kodwa,  

the  –  no t  inc luded on th is  l i s t  i s  one payment  tha t  was  

missed.   Can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 298?  298 o f  tha t  10 

same bund le .  

MR KODWA :    Yes,  Cha i rperson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And there  a t  the  foo t  o f  page  

298,  you w i l l  see  a  –  sor ry,  Cha i r,  do  you have the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR KODWA :    Yes,  I  do .   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    A t  the  foo t  o f  tha t  page,  you w i l l  

see  there  is  a  t ransact ion  fo r  R 35  000,00 f rom Mr  Mackay  

in to  your  account  on  the  10 t h  o f  Ju ly  2015.  

MR KODWA :    Yes,  I  see.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And you accept  tha t  tha t  i s  a  

cor rec t  re f lec t ion  o f  a  t ransact i on  tha t  was pa id  f rom 

Mr  Mackay to  you? 

MR KODWA :    I  accept  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then there  is  one  fu r ther  
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t ransact ion  tha t  I  shou ld  ask  you about  and fo r  tha t  

purpose,  can we f i rs t  go  to  page 318?  318.  

MR KODWA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And. . .   No,  I . . .   I  must  apo log i se .   

I  have got  my re ference wrong.   I t  i s . . .   I  am ta lk ing  about  

a . . .   Le t  us  t ry  321.   No,  i t  i s  no t  go ing  to  be  321  e i ther.   

Can I  ask  you to  go  ins tead to  –  we l l ,  because I  have los t  

the  re ference.   Can I  ask  you about  a  payment  tha t  was 

made to  a  Mr  Joshua Mannde?  M-a -n -n-d-e?  By 

Mr  Mackay.   Do you know who Mr  Mannde is?  10 

MR KODWA :    Yes,  I  know.  

REGISTRAR :    Note  tha t  the  DCJ is  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  jus t  fo r  a  

few minutes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sor ry,  DCJ.   A re  you back? 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Ja ,  I  th ink  we must  jus t  pause a t  

th is  po in t .    

MECHANICAL INTERRUPTION IN VIDEO LINK 

REV STEMELA :    You are  muted,  Mr  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sor ry,  Cha i r.   We d id  no t  hear  

you because you were  on  mute ,  bu t  we paused  a t  th is  

po in t .   Can you take  yourse l f  o f f  mute?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Ah .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  am sor ry.   You can hear  

me now? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We can,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r i gh t .   I  th ink  the  prob lem was on 

my s ide  in  te rms o f  techno logy.   That  i s  why we had a  

break bu t  le t  us  cont inue.   I  th ink  th is  in te r fe red  w i th  you 

wh i le  you were  ask ing  a  quest ion ,  Mr  Chaska lson,  o r  Mr  

Kodwa was jus t  about  to  s ta r t  answer ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  DCJ.   In  the  break ,  i t  jus t  

occu r red  to  me tha t  we have no t  admi t ted  Mr  Kodwa’s  10 

a f f idav i t  o r  the  Regu la t ion  10 .6  D i rec t i ve  as  an  annexure .   

Can I  ask  tha t  we do tha t  be fore  we commence the  

quest ion ing?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  le t  us  do  tha t .   I  guess we  shou ld  

s ta r t  w i th  the  d i rec t i ve?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The d i rec t i ve  wou ld  be  VV-11  

and maybe i f  we can jus t  make a  cap i ta l  A fo r  the  d i rec t i ve  

and then a  cap i ta l  B  fo r  the  a f f idav i t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    The Regu la t ion  10 .6  d i rec t i ve ,  d i rec ted  

to  Mr  Nced iso  Goodenough Z iz i  Kodwa wh ich  s ta r ts  a t  page 20 

601 i s  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and w i l l  be  marked as  Exh ib i t  

BB(s ic ) -11(A) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  the  Exh ib i t  number  you p ropose,  

Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  i s ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then,  can we make the 

a f f idav i t  BB-11(B )?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  ac tua l l y,  Mr  Chaska lson.   I  th ink  I  

m issed someth ing ,  and you d id  no t  hear.   I  th ink  you  

in tended VV fo r  Vic to r ia  and I  was say ing  BB fo r  [No  

aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  now . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    V  fo r  Vic to r ia .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   So,  i t  is  VV-11(A) ,  tha t  i s  the 

d i rec t i ve  and then the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Nced iso  Goodenough 

Z iz i  Kodwa tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 610 ,  w i l l  be  admi t ted  as  an  

exh ib i t ,  and w i l l  be  marked as  Exh ib i t  VV-11(B) .  

THE REGULATION 10.6  DIRECTIVE TO NCEDISO 

GOODENOUGH ZIZI  KODWA IS ADMITTED AND MARKED 

AS EXHIBIT  VV-11(A)  

AFFIDAVIT  OF MR NCEDISO GOODENOUGH ZIZI  KODWA 

IS ADMITTED AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT  VV-11(B)  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  tha t  i s  done.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr  Kodwa,  maybe i f  we cou ld  go  

to  page 436 o f  Bund le  16 ,  where  the re  is  an  emai l  

exchange between yourse l f  and Mr  Mannde.   And f i rs t ,  can 

–  when you get  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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MR KODWA :    The number  aga in?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    436,  436.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you mov ing  back to  the  –  to  Bund le  

16?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Bund le  16 ,  yes .   Bund le  16 ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   And the  page number  i s?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    436.  

CHAIRPERSON :    436.  

MR KODWA :    Yes,  I  have got  i t .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And what  i t  i s ,  i t  i s  an  emai l  

fo rwarded f rom the  –  tha t  you. . .  to  Mr  Mackay on  

25 November  2015 and the  fo rwarded emai l  comes f rom 

Mr  Mannde to  you,  the  prev ious day.   Do you recogn ise  th i s  

emai l?  

MR KODWA :    Yes,  I  do ,  Mr  Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can you exp la in  the  con tex t  fo r  

the  Cha i r?  

MR KOD WA :    Cha i r,  f i rs t l y.   I  have no reason to  doubt  the  

Commiss ion ’s  documents  and I  th ink  tha t  document  i s  very  20 

impor tan t .   I  have  no doubt  reason to  doubt  the  documents ,  

wh ich  are  –  some o f  the  quest ions are  based on.   

Second ly.   The person ment ioned here ,  there  was a  f i t t ing  

tha t  needed to  be  done in  the  car  and he is  the  on ly  person  

who knew where  i t  was and hence the  payment  was done to  
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h im.   Thank you,  Cha i rperson.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the  payment  tha t  you  

desc r ibed –  i f  we can jus t  go  to  page 310?   

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  one second,  Mr  Chaska lson.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [Cha i r  in  conversa t ion  w i th  reg is t ra r ]   

Okay,  thank you.   You may proceed .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank  you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Kodwa,  

can you –  are  you on page 310?  

MR KODWA :    Yes.   Yes,  s i r.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  you see th ree  l ines  f rom 

the  bot tom o f  tha t  bank s ta tement .   I t  says  26  November,  

FNB OB payment .   And then the re  i s  an  FNB re fe rence,  and 

i t  says :   Apr i l  S t ree tw ise  Z iz i ,  R30  000,00.  

MR KODWA :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You accept  tha t  tha t  i s  the  

payment  tha t  was made f rom Mr  Mackay to  Mr  Mannde in  

respect  o f  tha t  f i t t ing  on  your  car?  

MR KODWA :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So ,  i f  we go back to  page 239,  20 

wh ich  is  the  tab le  o f  payments ,  and we add  in  the  

R 35 000,00 f rom 10 Ju ly  and the  R 30 000,00 to  Mr  Mande  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You go to  what  page,  Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    293,  Cha i r.  



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 37 of 266 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    293?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    293,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  yes ,  I  am there .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You w i l l  see  there  is  a  to ta l  a t  

the  bo t tom o f  the  tab le  tha t  say  R 1  6045 000,00.   You see 

tha t ,  Mr  Kodwa? 

MR KODWA :    Yes,  I  see tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  we add the  R 35 000,00  

f rom the  10 Ju ly  t ransact ion  tha t  i s  m iss ing  f rom the  tab le  

and the  R 30 000,00 fo r  the  payment  fo r  Mr  Mannde,  we  10 

see tha t  the  to ta l  comes now to  R 1  710 000,00.   Do you 

accept  tha t?   I t  i s  no t  on  the  tab le .  

MR KODWA :    Yes,  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . .bu t  the  –  add i t ion . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry.   I t  comes to  how much,  

Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    R  1  710  000,00  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now,  I  jus t  want  to  c la r i f y.   I  

unders tand tha t  you say tha t  the  R 1  m i l l ion  tha t  was pa id  20 

on the  28 t h  o f  Apr i l  was a  loan.  

MR KODWA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Was tha t  t rue  o f  a l l  o f  the  o ther  

amounts  as  we l l  o r  those loans f rom Mr Mackay?  

MR KODWA :    No ,  the  o thers  were  jus t  ass is tance.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You do not  expect  –  you d id  no t  

expect  h im to  ask  you to  pay any o f  these amounts  back?  

MR KODWA :    No ,  no t  a t  a l l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Inc lud ing  the  R 250  000,00 

amount  on  the  22 n d  o f  September  2015.  

MR KODWA :    No t  a t  a l l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    In  re la t ion  to  tha t  loan o f  a  

m i l l ion .   Can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 325 o f  Bund le  16? 

MR KODWA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And you w i l l  see  on the  top  o f  10 

page 125,  i t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Mr Mackay to  you  on the  

24 t h  o f  Apr i l  and i t  a t taches a  document  ca l led  TSS Loan  

Agreement  templa te   So,  we cou ld  go  down to  page 326,  

and you w i l l  see  th is  loan ag reement  templa te .  

MR KODWA :    I  see  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  f i rs t  o f  a l l .   D id  you  rece ive  

tha t  emai l  a t  the  t ime?  

MR KOD WA :    No,  I  must  have rece ived i t ,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  

must  have rece ived i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Bu t  then,  d id  you eve r  conc lude  20 

a  wr i t ten  loan ag reement  a long the  l ines  o f  th is  templa te  

w i th  TSS? 

MR KOD WA :    No,  I  do  no t  have  any loan and I  have no  

communica t ion  w i th  TSS.   The communica t ion  I  have was  

and i s  –  was Mr  Mackay.   And the  unders tand ing  o f  a  loan  
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was between me and Mr  Mackay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Okay,  bu t  you accept  tha t  the  

emai l  tha t  he  sent  you a t tached to  fo rm re la ted  to  a  loan  

f rom TSS.  

MR KODWA :    I  accept  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    D id  you conc lude any  wr i t ten  

loan agreement  w i th  Mr  Mackay?  

MR KODWA :    No .   No,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  we look a t  th is  templa te .   I t  

p rov ides fo r  repayment  w i th  in te res t  a t  the  pr ime ra te .   D id  10 

you d iscuss in te res t  w i th  Mr  Mackay?  

MR KODWA :    No t  a t  a l l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  unders tand tha t  th is  loan tha t  

Mr  Mackay made you a t t rac t  in te res t .  

MR KODWA :    No  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Or  i s  i t  in te res t  f ree?  

MR KODWA :    No ,  th is  jus t  a  d ra f t  in  wh ich  we d id  no t  s ign .   

The unders tand ing  between Mr Mackay and I ,  Cha i rperson,  

was tha t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you,  my f r iend,  you need 

ass is tance.   I  w i l l  g ive  you a  loan  w i th  the  unders tand ing  20 

tha t  when your  f inances s tab i l i ses ,  you w i l l  -  me.    

 And I  can assure  you tha t  even i f  I  have to  speak  

to  h im today,  I  w i l l  s t i l l  assu re  h im  tha t  as  soon as  I  ge t  a  

s tab le  job  –  the  job  I  have today is  a  very  po l i t i ca l  

appo in tment .   I  can  be removed tomorrow.   So,  I  cannot  
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commi t  tha t  I  w i l l  pay  h im to  remain  as  a  deputy  m in is te r  

bu t  the  commi tment  he  knows as  a  f r iend tha t  the  

commi tment  i s  there  to  pay h im back.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So  as  I  unders tand  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sor ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  wanted to  say.   Mr  Kodwa,  I  th ink  you  

are  –  you may be  r igh t  in  say ing :   Wel l ,  the  job  you have is  10 

a  po l i t i ca l  one and maybe i t s  s tab i l i t y  i s  quest ionab le .   But  

I  guess  as  long as  you a re  in  po l i t i cs  tha t  w i l l  remain  the  

pos i t ion  fo r  a  long t ime.  

MR KODWA :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   I s  i t  no t?  

MR KOD WA :    I  may cons ider  o ther  op t ions,  Cha i rperson,  

g iven what  you have jus t  sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   

Mr  Chaska lson,  cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr  Kodwa,  do  I  unders tand f rom 20 

your  a rguments  –  no t  f rom your  answers ,  f rom your  

answers  tha t  thus fa r  you have not  repa id  any amounts  o f  

tha t  one-mi l l ion- rand loan?  

MR KODWA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    A re  you  ever  –  i f  Mr  Mackay ask  
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fo r  the  money tomorrow,  wou ld  you be ab le  to  pay  i t  back  

to  h im?  

MR KOD WA :    Th is  i s  a  conversa t ion  be tween f r iends.   He 

knows very  we l l  i f  I  woke up one morn ing  in  my house and 

say:   Do you have my  one mi l l ion?   He knows very  we l l  tha t  

I  w i l l  no t  have tha t  one mi l l ion  tomorrow.   So,  th is  i s  a  

conversa t ion  wh ich  is  no t  a  normal  loan ag reement  w i th  

s t r i c t  cond i t ions .   That  i s  why i t  i s  f lex ib le  be tween f r iends.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  f r iendsh ip  sour,  Mr  Kodwa.   I f  the  

f r iendsh ip  sours ,  cou ld  i t  be  demanded immedia te ly,  and 10 

wou ld  you be ab le  to  pay i t  back?  

MR KODWA :    That  was never  been the  bas i s  o f  our  

f r iendsh ip .   He knows very  we l l ,  there  are  th ings tha t  he  

can do –  he  can say to  me,  and he knows my v iew on  

cer ta in  th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  I  –  we l l ,  le t  me put  my  

quest ion  d i f fe ren t ly.   Assuming Mr Mackay changed 

character  tomorrow and ar r i ve  on  your  doors tep  and sa id :   

More  than f i ve  years  ago,  I  gave  you a  m i l l ion .   I  want  i t  20 

back tomorrow o therwise ;  I  am su ing  you fo r  i t .   Wou ld  you 

be in  a  pos i t ion  to  pay i t  back?  

MR KOD WA :    That  w i l l  be  no t  the  Mackay I  know.   That  

character  i s  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  i s  no t  –  I  am ask ing  you to  
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make an assumpt ion  tha t  Mr  Mackay changes characte r  

and asks you to  pay back the  one mi l l ion  tomorrow.    

MR KODWA :    Obv ious ly,  I  w i l l  negot ia te  new te rms i f  he  

wou ld  to  come –  to  become th is  unexpected characte r  o f  

h im.   I  w i l l  be  negot ia t ing  new te rms w i th  h im.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  you  cou ld  no t  new te rms,  

wou ld  you be in  a  pos i t ion  to  pay a  back a  m i l l ion  on  

demand?  

MR KODWA :    No.   I  mean,  he  knows tha t ,  i f  he  – 

Mr  Chaska lson,  as  I  leave th i s  room now and I  f ind  h im and 10 

wa i t ing  ou ts ide  th is  room and he wants  a  m i l l ion ,  he  knows 

tha t  he  w i l l  no t  ge t  a  m i l l i on .   The  on ly  reasonab le  th ing  is  

fo r  h im and I  to  meet  and d iscuss new te rms.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Okay.   Can I  take  you one 

fu r ther  i ssue in  re la t ion  to  tha t  loan o f  a  m i l l ion?  Can I  ask  

you to  tu rn  to  page –  to  Bund le  20  th is  t ime?  Bund le  20 ,  

page 619.  

MR KODWA :    I  do  no t  have tha t .    

[background d iscuss ions]    

MR KODWA :    I  am jus t  search ing  the  f i le ,  Cha i rperson.   I  20 

do  not  seem to  have. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bund le  20  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  i s  in  tha t  supp lementa ry  

bund le  tha t  was sent  to  your  a t to rneys I  th ink  on  Fr iday.   

The bund le  w i th  your  s ta tement .   I t  i s  a t  the  back o f  you r  
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a f f idav i t .  

MR KODWA :    Oh ,  yes .   Oh,  yes .   Cor rec t .   Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And what  you w i l l  see  on page  

619 i s  a  bank s ta tement  o f  TSS,  the  company and i f  you go 

to  28  Apr i l  2015,  you w i l l  see  tha t  there  is  a  re ference fo r  a  

payment  o f  a  m i l l i on  and the  re fe rence says:   ABSA Bank,  

Ent ry :   Kodwa;   ANC dona,  d -o -n-a ,  wh ich  I  p resume to  be  

donat ion ,  -JM.    

MR KODWA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now,  you a re  c lear  tha t  th is  i s  10 

no t  a  donat ion ,  i t  i s  a  loan?  

MR KODWA :    You are  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i t  i s  loan f rom Mr  Mackay,  i t  

i s  no t  a  loan f rom TSS? 

MR KODWA :    Abso lu te l y  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So,  i f  Mr  Mackay had to ld  TSS 

tha t  th is  was an ANC donat ion  and i t  made the  money out  

o f  –  and i t  pa id  the  money out  o f  TSS on the  bas is  tha t  i t  

was an ANC donat ion ,  tha t  wou ld  be  inco r rec t ,  wou ld  i t  

no t?  20 

MR KODWA :    Wel l ,  I  wou ld  no t  know the  conversa t ions  

tha t  he  wou ld  have had w i th  TSS.   L ike  I  sa id ,  my l im i ted  

conversa t ion ,  very  s t r i c t l y,  was  w i th  Mr  Mackay.   My  

unders tand ing  is  tha t  the  loan I  have is  w i th  Mr Mackay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  know what  your  unders tand ing  
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i s ,  bu t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  th is ,  wh ich  is  the  TSS bank 

s ta tement ,  re f lec t s  th is  as  a  payment  o f  a  m i l l ion  f rom TSS 

as a  donat ion  to  the  ANC.   That  i s  incor rec t?  

MR KODWA :    That  i s  incor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  any  person to ld  TSS tha t  

th is  payment  was  a  donat ion  to  the  ANC tha t  the  company  

was mak ing ,  they  wou ld  be  mis represent ing  the  t ru th?  

MR KODWA :    Abso lu te ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now,  i n  Apr i l  2014,  be fore  th i s  

payment .   D id  you have a  car?  10 

MR KODWA :    2014?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sor ry,  2015.   Apr i l  2015.   Before  

you rece ived th is  payment  f rom Mr Mackay,  d id  you have 

your  own car?  

MR KOD WA :    I  th ink  I  shou ld  have.   Cha i rperson,  f i rs t l y,  i t  

i s  qu i te  a  long t ime,  bu t  I  th ink  I  shou ld  have.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR KODWA :    I  shou ld  have had a  ca r.   I  shou ld  have had  

a  ca r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now,  because I  unders tand f rom 

your  a f f idav i t  tha t  a l l  o f  these amounts  tha t  you have 

rece ived f rom Mr  Mackay,  you say are  amounts  tha t  you 

rece ived when you were  in  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies .   Is  tha t  

cor rec t?  
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MR KODWA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And I  suppose the  rea l  quest ion  I  

want  to  ask  you i s .   I f  you  are  in  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies ,  why  

in  Apr i l  2015,  why d id  you go out  and spent  R 890  000,00 

on a  car?  

MR KODWA :    Wel l ,  o f  wh ich  I  made in  the  s ta tement ,  

whethe r  to  spent  ten  thousand or  twenty  thousand,  i s  i t  

reasonab le?   I t  i s  a  w ish  s tone tha t  you can debate .   And I  

do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  a  mat te r,  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  I  cou ld  jus t i f y.   

That  perhaps I  shou ld  have thought  o f  a  smal le r  car  o f  10 

twenty  thousand,  a  Coro l la ,  ins tead o f  a  b igger  car.   I t  i s  

w ish  s tone tha t  we can debate .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    To  do  tha t ,  you had  to pu t  

yourse l f  in  deb t  to  the  tune o f  a  m i l l ion  rands to  

Mr  Mackay.  

MR KOD WA :    Aga in ,  I  mean,  tha t  i s  a  w ish  s tone.   I  – you 

see,  when you ask  fo r  ass i s tance to  a  f r iend,  Cha i rperson.   

A t  the  back o f  your  m ind,  i f  you  –  t rue  f r iends,  you  do not  

have th is  no t ion  o f  a  debt ,  tha t  you are  en ter ing  in to  a 

debt .   You have th is  no t ion  tha t  I  am in  d i f f i cu l t y.   A f r iend,  20 

a  t rue  f r iend is  here  to  he lp  me.    

 So,  what  then becomes not  jus t  o f  a  re la t ionsh ip .   

How do you pay  back?  That  i s  someth ing  tha t  I  th ink  –  

aga in ,  these a re  the  lessons,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  re fe r red  to  in  

the  open ing  s ta tement .   These are  the  lessons o f  leaders  
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tha t  must  be  c i r cumspect  as  and when you in te rac t  w i th  o f  

bus iness in  par t i cu la r  and to  what  ex ten t  those issues may  

be pe rce ived as  issues a  leader  o f  the  ANC tha t  has gone  

b ing ing  ex t ravagant .    

 And ye t  the  percept ion  is  very  impor tan t  and ve ry  

power fu l  in  po l i t ics .   And I  th ink  the  quest ion  tha t  has been 

asked is  exact ly  the  issue you a re  address ing  about ,  us  as  

leaders  manag ing  the  percept ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Maybe,  can –  le t  me put  th is  

quest ion  to  you ,  Mr  Kodwa.   Would  i t  be  co r rec t  to  10 

unders tand you to  be  say ing :   Look,  I  shou ld  no t  have 

spent  e igh t  hundred-and- f i f t y  thousand o r  whatever  on  a  

ca r.   Cer ta in l y  when I  was in  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies .   Maybe  

you might  go  beyond tha t .   But  I  d id  spend i t  and  when I  

look  back,  i t  was wrong.   I t  i s  a  lesson.   I t  shou ld  no t  have  

happened.    

 Or  a re  you say ing :   Look,  I  do  no t  know whether  I  

shou ld  no t  have,  bu t  I  d id  and,  bu t  I  am ab le  to  say  maybe  

i f  there  i s  a  deba te ,  I  m igh t  end up chang ing  my v iew.   And 

say ing :   Look,  I  th ink  I  can see i t  was not  r igh t .   So,  I  am 20 

jus t  want ing  to  es tab l i sh  where  you  s tand on i t .  

MR KODWA :    We jus t  summar ise  the  s ta tement  I  made,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR KODWA :    That  par t  o f  the  ev idence I  p resented to  you  



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 47 of 266 
 

today is  about  a  lesson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR KODWA :    And these are  the  lesson tha t ,  i f  you  look  

back and you rea l i se  tha t  we ought  to  be  c i rcumspect  as  

leaders ,  no t  because our  conduct  i s  c r im ina l  and cor rup t .   

No.   But  because  o f  the  percept ion  tha t  i t  car r ies .   You may 

th ink  tha t  what  you are  do ing  i s  r igh t ,  bu t  in  the  eyes o f  the  

pub l i c  i t  may car ry  a  very  s ign i f i can t  pe rcept ion  about  the  

in f luence o f  leaders  and the i r  p rox im i ty  to  power.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  10 

Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Cha i r,  I  have jus t  seen the  t ime.   

I  am about  to  move to  a  s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t  top ic .   I  wonder  i f  

th is  wou ld  be  a  conven ien t  t ime to  take  the  tea  

ad journment?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Le t  us  take  the  tea  

ad journment .   I t  is  about  –  near ly  ha l f -past  e leven.   We wi l l  

resume a t  quar te r  to  twe lve .   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . .my head tha t  i s  go ing  l i ke  th is .  

MR KODWA :   No,  no ,  no ,  i t  i s  no t  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  un-mute  i t  now.   Okay,  le t  us  

resume.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Cha i r ,  I  jus t  wanted to  check 



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 48 of 266 
 

tha t  my screen is  p resent ing  a  s tab le  image o f  me.   Mr  

Kodwa’s  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  very  s tab le  now,  I  th ink  once Mr  

Kodwa spoke i t  wou ld  have s topped.   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  no ,  i t  

i s  s tab le .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then,  Mr  Kodwa,  can we go to  

page 342 o f  bund le  16?  

CHAIRPERSON :    You sa id  page 300 and. . .?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    342.  

CHAIRPERSON :    342,  okay.   Yes,  I  am there .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And,  Mr  Kodwa,  have you got  

tha t  emai l  f rom Mr  Mackay  to  yourse l f  on  5  August  2015?  

MR KODWA :   On 342.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  i f  I  can  jus t  read i t  so  tha t  

peop le  unders tand what  i t  says .   I t  says :  

“My bro ther ,  address the  le t te r  t o  EOH Mthombo 

(P ty)  L td ,  a t ten t ion  Jehan McKay,  execut ive  

d i rec tor ,  JehanMackay@EOH.co.za .   I f  you  need a  

dra f t  le t te r  le t  me  know but  I  am sure  he  w i l l  be  f ine  

w i th  the  content .   I t  wou ld  s imp ly  s ta te  tha t  the  20 

movement  humbly  request  ass i s tance in  the  fo rm o f  

sponsorsh ip  fo r  R1 mi l l ion  fo r  (whatever  the  

purpose)  someth ing  l i ke  tha t ,  e i ther  f rom Mat ig i (? )  

h imse l f  o r  Je r ry  o r  any o ther  au thor i t y .   Le t  me 

know i f  you need any o the r  in fo . ”  
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So  f i rs t  can I  ask  you to  exp la in  the  contex t  fo r  th is  emai l?  

MR KODWA :   We l l ,  th is  emai l  –  f i r s t l y ,  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  w i l l  

be  re la ted  to  a  loan,  Cha i rperson .   Second ly ,  i t  p robab ly  

had to  do  w i th  the  donat ions wh ich  were  one or  another ,  i t  

has  been a  long  t ime back,  i t  i s  a  donat ion  tha t  maybe  

somebody –  because not  on l y  i s  he  ta lk ing  to  me here ,  he  

is  a lso  re fer r i ng  to  somebody tha t  i t  shou ld  s imp ly  s ta te  

tha t  the  movement  humbly  request ,  I  do  no t  wr i te  le t te rs  on  

beha l f  o f  the  organ isa t ion  fo r  donat ions.   P robab ly  he  was  

ta lk ing  about  somebody –  as  you know in  the  10 

cor respondences there  i s  no  le t te r  f rom me wi th  respect  to  

th is  emai l ,  to  make a  request  fo r  donat ion ,  i t  i s  on ly  th is  

emai l  to  me and as  to  whether  what  happened to  i t ,  I  s t i l l  

cannot  reco l lec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Bu t  th is  emai l  i s  c lear l y  a  

response to  someth ing .   I t  says  my bro ther  and i t  i s  

addressed to  you ,  address the  le t te r  to  EOH,  Mthombo.   So 

on i t s  face  i t  looks  l i ke  there  had been some sor t  o f  

exchange between you and Mackay  be fo re  hand in  re la t ion  

to  a  le t te r  tha t  wou ld  be  a  request  fo r  a  donat ion  o f  a  20 

mi l l ion .   Obv ious ly  I  am not  ta lk ing  about  any payments  to  

you persona l ly ,  I  am ta lk ing  abou t  a donat ion  fo r  the  ANC 

and th is  le t te r  seems to  be  a  response to  tha t .   Does tha t  

no t  sound co r rec t  to  you?  

MR KODWA :   I t  i s  poss ib le ,  Cha i rperson,  bu t  on ly  
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specu la t ion  a t  the  moment  because there  is  no  ev idence to  

ind ica te  tha t  the re  was a  conversa t ion  be fore  th i s  emai l ,  

bu t  i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  he  wou ld  have spoken about  

donat ions bu t ,  as  I  say ,  my  reco l lec t ion  about  h is  

donat ions to  the  ANC,  I  wou ld  no t  have known exact ly  who 

wro te  to  h im,  whom he spoke to  and so  on .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Ja  bu t ,  Mr  Kodwa,  he  is  wr i t ing  

th is  le t te r  to  you.  

MR KODWA :   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And he  te l l ing  you to  address a  10 

le t te r  to  somebody or  to  h im in  fac t .  

MR KODWA :   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    A re  you unab le  to  shed any  

fu r ther  l igh t  on  th is ,  why was he wr i t ing  th is  le t te r  to  you  

on 5  August  2015? 

MR KODWA :   Wel l ,  le t  me te l l  you  my re la t ions  w i th  Mr  

Mackay ,  l i ke  many o the r  peop le  in  bus iness because there  

are  so  many peop le  somet imes who present  themse lves to  

be  speak ing  on beha l f  o f  the  ANC.   So what  you w i l l  f ind ,  

Mr  Cha i rpe rson,  i s  tha t  a  donor  wou ld  ac tua l l y ,  i f  he  knows 20 

o f  somebody in  the  ANC,  wou ld  ac tua l l y  want  to  conf i rm i f  

you know o f  such a  request ,  do  you know th is  pe rson,  do  

you know these peop le?   I t  happens a  lo t  and i t  happened 

qu i te  o f ten  when I  was a t  Lu thu l i  House because there  are  

so  many who wou ld  take  chances  and say they are  ra is ing  
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funds on beha l f  o f  the  ANC.   That  cou ld  be  but  one  

ins tance when Mr  Mackay  wou ld  have wanted a t  leas t  to  

conf i rm i f  th is  request  fo r  donat ion  –  as  you can see tha t  

there  was no request  f rom me cer ta in l y  in  te rms  o f  the  

fac ts  be fo re  the  Commiss ion  and I  have no doubt ,  aga in ,  

l i ke  I  sa id ,  to  doubt  the  documents  f rom the  Commiss ion  

and the  fac t  tha t  you do not  have tha t  le t te r  because i t  

s imp ly  means there  was never  a  cor respondence  on my  

par t  a t  leas t  to  say we request  because I  was no  

author ised to  do  so  on  beha l f  o f  the  organ isa t ion .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  unders tand the  scenar io  tha t  

you were  speak ing  about  where  chancers  seem to  p re tend 

to  be  ra is ing  money on beha l f  o f  the  ANC and we w i l l  ge t  

to  some examples  shor t l y  where  peop le  say they are  

ra is ing  fo r  the  ANC but  the  money has to  be  pa id  in to  a  

Tax i  Assoc ia t ion  or  company.   But  th is  seems to  be  a  

d i f fe ren t  s i tua t ion  because i t  i s  no t  Mr  Mackay  say ing  

what  shou ld  I  do  w i th  th is  reques t  fo r  a  donat ion ,  i t  i s  Mr  

Mackay  te l l ing  you who you shou ld  wr i te  to  and what  you 

shou ld  pu t  in  the  le t te r  to  be  sent  by  the  TG or  Jer ry  20 

request ing  a  donat ion .   So what  wou ld  –  are  you  unab le  

exp la in  the  background to  th is?  

MR KODWA :   I  am not  ab le  to  exp la in  the  background to  

th is ,  Cha i rpe rson ,  a t  leas t  tha t  I  know i t  d id  no t  come to  

me persona l ly  bu t  as  to  the  contex t  o f  i t ,  I  rea l l y  –  I  am not  
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ab le  to  exp la in  the  background.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Do you  know who –  I  mean,  the  

TG is  p resumably  the  Treasurer  Genera l ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR KODWA :   I  assume.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Do you know who Jer ry  wou ld  

be?  

MR KODWA :   No.   Not  to  my reco l lec t ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr  Kodwa,  I  apprec ia te  tha t  

nobody wants  to ,  you know,  c rea te  d i f f i cu l t ies  fo r  anybody  

e lse ,  any o f  the i r  comrades but ,  I  mean,  I  f ind  i t  d i f f i cu l t  to  10 

be l ieve  tha t  you wou ld  no t  know who Je r ry  was when th i s  

le t te r  f rom Mr  Mackay  comes to  you and te l l s  you tha t  you 

must  wr i te  a  le t te r  request ing  a  m i l l i on  rand dona t ion  and  

the  le t te r  must  come f rom the  TG h imse l f  o r  Jer ry .   Sure l y  

you can ident i f y  a  Jer ry  in  tha t  contex t  to  whom th is  le t te r  

wou ld  re fe r?  

MR KODWA :   And I  am cer ta in  tha t  Mr  Mackay  h imse l f  

cou ld  ident i f y  bu t  I  cannot  reca l l ,  spec i f i ca l l y  dea l t  w i th  

many –  or ,  as  I  dea l t  w i th  many peop le ,  Cha i rperson,  I  

dea l t  in  tha t  pe r iod  w i th  many peop le  because  o f  the 20 

pos i t ion  I  have a l luded to  in  my  open ing  s ta tement .   So 

there  cou ld  be  a  Jer ry ,  there  cou ld  be  a  Jer ry  and Tom,  bu t  

rea l l y  some o f  the  names were  no t  –  maybe I  was us ing  a  

d i f fe ren t  name to  re fer  to  th is  very  same person.   But ,  l i ke  

I  say ,  th is  emai l  does not  come f rom me,  i t  comes f rom Mr 
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Mackay ,  I  wou ld  no t  know wh ich  Jer ry  i s  he  ta lk ing  about  

here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  there  a  Jer ry  w i th in  the  ANC or  was  

there  a  Je r ry  w i th in  the  ANC in  2015 who wou ld  have had  

anyth ing  to  do  w i th  maybe the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Treasurer  

Genera l  o r  who wou ld  have had anyth ing  to  do  w i th  the  

ra is ing  o f  funds fo r  the  ANC or  wr i t ing  le t te rs  request ing  

donat ions?  

MR KODWA :   No t  to  my reco l lec t i on ,  Cha i rperson,  no t  to  

my reco l lec t ion ,  I  wou ld  no t  know.   To  an ex ten t  tha t  there  10 

was a  d is tance between me and tha t  o f f i ce  I  w i l l  no t  even 

know who had au thor i t y  to  wr i te  le t te r  to  what  and so  on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  ask  you then to  go  down to  

page 346?  Are  you a t  346?  

MR KODWA :   Jus t  a  second?  Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Th is  i s  an  emai l  f rom Mr  Mackay  

to  you a  week a f te r  tha t  p rev ious  emai l ,  so  on  12  August  

2015 and i t  a t taches a  proof  o f  payment  to  an  o rgan isa t ion  

ca l led  the  e lec t ion  agency.   I f  you  go down to  page 348 you 20 

w i l l  see  tha t  EOH has  pa id  the  e lec t ions agency a  m i l l ion  

rands.  

MR KODWA :   Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can you remember  what  th is  

donat ion  was fo r  o r  what  th is  payment  was fo r?  
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MR KODWA :   E lec t ions agency is  an  organ isa t ion  tha t  runs  

e lec t ions pa r t i cu la r ly  on  conferences.   I  wou ld  no t  know 

the  spec i f i cs  o f  the  event  bu t  I  know the  o rgan isa t ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the  ANC and the  a l l iance  

organ isa t ions p resumably  wou ld  use the  e lec t ions 

organ isa t ion  to  manage e lec t ions a t  the i r  conferences?  

MR KODWA :   P lease repeat  the  quest ion ,  Mr  Cha i rperson? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The ANC and i t s  assoc ia ted  

a l l iance organ isa t ions wou ld  use the  e lec t ions agency to  

manage e lec t ions  a t  the i r  conferences,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  10 

MR KODWA :   Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So  on i ts  face  th is  seems to  be  a 

payment  o f  a  m i l l ions  rands to  the  e lec t ions agency made 

by  EOH on beha l f  o f  the  ANC or  to  pay a  b i l l  o f  the  ANC.   

Would  tha t  be  cor rec t?  

MR KODWA :   I  see  f rom the  documents  bu t  I  am no  

pos i t ion  on  beha l f  o f  the  ANC to conf i rm rece ip t  o f  

donat ions f rom any o ther  body inc lud ing  Mackay  o r  EOH.   

I  am not  in  any pos i t ion  to  conf i rm on beha l f  o f  the  

organ isa t ion  the  rece ip t  o f  donat ions bu t  I  see i t  f rom the  20 

documenta t ion  o f  the  Commiss ion  tha t  a  cer ta in  amount  

was pa id  to  the  e lec t ion  agency.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Bu t  i t  was not  jus t  tha t  i t  was  

pa id ,  p roo f  o f  payment  was cop ied  to  you by  Mackay ,  why  

wou ld  you do tha t?  
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MR KODWA :   The po in t  I  made ear l ie r ,  Mr  Mackay  ,  in  h is  

l i fe  as  a  bus inessman,  he  wou ld  have come to  what  you  

re fer red  to ,  Mr  Chaska lson,  as  chance take rs .   So 

somet imes he w i l l  do  ou t  o f  cou r tesy  no t  because he wants  

me to  do  anyth ing  about  i t ,  tha t  as  a  proof  tha t  I  have done 

the  fo l low ing to  the  r igh t  o rgan isa t ion  or  to  the  r igh t  

ind iv idua l ,  so  tha t  i s  the  on ly  reason,  I  wou ld  imag ine ,  tha t  

he  was do ing  –  or  somet imes he  w i l l  ca l l  and share  tha t  

in fo rmat ion .   Somet imes he w i l l  send a  proof  o f  payment .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Bu t  a t  the  very  least  we can  10 

assume tha t  i f  Mr  Mackay  i s  send ing  tha t  p roo f  payment  to  

you,  i t  i s  because he unders tands i t  to  be  proo f  o f  the  

payment  o f  an  amount  fo r  the  ANC.  

MR KODWA :   Maybe I  can unders tand the  quest ion  much 

bet te r  you can jus t  rephrase your  quest ion?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So  do you accept  t ha t  Mr  

Mackay  was send ing  tha t  payment  to  you or  tha t  p roo f  o f  

payment  to  you to  show tha t  he  had  made a  payment  on  

beha l f  o f  the  ANC? 

MR KODWA :   Cor rec t .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can we go to  some o f  these 

examples  tha t  you descr ibed ea r l ie r  o f  t rans i t  and can we  

go to  page 413?  Sor ry ,  ac tua l l y  the  413 is  no t  the  example  

tha t  I  was th ink ing  o f  bu t  le t  us  s tay  w i th  413.  

MR KODWA :   Okay.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    413 is  an  emai l  f rom Mr  Mackay  

to  you on the  30  September  2015.  

MR KODWA :   Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :     And i t  says :  

“My bro the r ,  do  you know about  th is?   Your  

thoughts?”  

And i f  you –  so  there  i s  an  in te rna l  EOH emai l  tha t  i s  

fo rwarded to  Mackay  and what  i t  fo rwards i s  an  emai l  f rom 

someone ca l led  Mziwamadoda S ioph i l i s  Mh lau l i  to  a  range 

o f  peop le ,  one o f  whom is  Thand iKoko lo@ EOh.co .za  who 10 

is  the  person who  fo rwarded tha t  emai l  to  Mr  Mackay .  

MR KODWA :   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the  emai l  f rom Mr  Mhlau l i  

says :  

“Dear  a l l ,  as  per  ANC t reasury  o f f i ce ,  humble  

request  the  be low quote  i s  the  la tes t  accoun t  

a l loca ted  to  us  fo r  pu rposes o f  se t t lement  on  or  

be fore  10  a .m.  tomorrow 1  October .   D iscuss ions 

tak ing  p lace as  to  a t  leas t  se t t le  ha l f  th is  amoun t  

be fore  the  above dead l ine ,  se t t le  the  remainder  20 

be fore  the  de lega tes  ar r i ve  13h00 o f  same date ,  i .e .  

tomorrow,  1  October . ”  

MR KODWA :   I  see  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now do you know who Mr  

H lahu le  i s?  
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MR KODWA :   No.   P robab ly  he  is  one o f  our  comrades 

f rom one o f  the  o f f i ces .   The emai l  i s  no t  addressed  to  me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  I  app rec ia te  tha t  bu t  i t  i s  

fo rwarded to  you.  

MR KODWA :   Ja ,  bu t  Mr  Chaska lson,  I  am sure  you can  

jus t  have an idea o f  the  per iod  and the  conversa t ions  

be tween so  many  peop le .   Jus t  you can see the  number  o f  

rec ip ien ts  on  tha t  emai l ,  tha t  no t  a l l  o f  them I  wou ld  know 

because o f  the  s ize  o f  what  i s  ca l led  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  

Congress .   I  do  no t  know everybody in  today,  and I  do  no t  10 

know who ta lks  t o  who but  to  an  ex ten t  poss ib le  –  I  must  

make th is  po in t ,  Cha i rperson –  to  an  ex ten t  poss ib le  where  

a  met  a  donor  when I  was s t i l l  a t  Lu thu l i  House,  i f  I  met  

somebody independent ,  vo lun ta r i l y  wants  to  donate  to  the 

ANC,  I  w i l l  g lad ly  –  I  w i l l  g lad ly  say to  tha t  pe rson yes,  

donate  and th ings,  I  have done so ,  so  many t imes.   So I  do  

no t  want  as  i f  I  am deny ing  the  fac t  tha t  I  p robab ly  wou ld  

have met  a  lo t  o f  peop le  inc lud ing  Mr  Mackay  who  wou ld  

have wanted to  check cer ta in  peop le  as  chance takers  to  

say I  have made  th is  donat ion ,  can I  make th is  donat ion?  20 

Knowing tha t  h is  capac i ty  tha t  he  can make tha t  donat ion ,  I  

wou ld  g lad ly  say  yes,  S i r ,  go  ahead,  fo r  the  sake o f  the 

A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  ask  some more  quest ions  

about  th is  emai l?   I t  i s  addressed to  someone  ca l led 
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Dumisan i  Mapu.   Do you know Dumisan i  Mapu? 

MR KODWA :   To  my reco l lec t ion  I  th ink  tha t  person is  la te .   

I  do  no t  know i f  we are  ta lk ing  about  the  same person  

wh ich  i s  why,  I  mean,  i f  you  l ook a t  the  rec ip ien ts  o f  tha t  

emai l ,  many o f  them cou ld  be  adm in is t ra to rs .   As  a  leader  

o f  the  ANC I  do  no t  in te rac t  w i th  admin is t ra to rs ,  I  wou ld  

no t  know.   That  i s  why the  d i f f i cu l ty ,  Cha i rperson.   I  cannot  

comment  on  ema i ls  I  do  no t  wr i te .   I  cannot  comment  on  

emai ls  tha t  were  no t  even sent  to  me fo r  my comment  

except  be ing  fo rwarded fo r  whatever  reasons.   But  the 10 

d i f f i cu l t y  i s  tha t  I  am asked to  comment  on  emai ls  I  d id  no t  

wr i te .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Bu t  my quest ion  was d id  you  

know Dumisan i  Mapu?  

MR KODWA :   I  have answered,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  okay,  who was Dumisan i  

Mapu?  

MR KODWA :   I  sa id  to  the  ex ten t  poss ib le ,  to  my 

reco l lec t ion ,  i f  I  remember ,  because many peop le  shared  

the  name and surname,  tha t  person is  la te ,  he  was a  20 

member  o f  the  ANC.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Which  p rov ince?  

MR KODWA :   P rov ince?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :   In  wh ich  prov ince.   

MR KODWA :   Eastern  Cape.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Free  S ta te?  

MR KODWA :   No,  Eastern  Cape.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Eastern  Cape,  okay.  

MR KODWA :   Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And was he a  member  o f  the 

Treasure r  Genera l ’ s  o f f i ce  a t  the  Easte rn  Cape? 

MR KODWA :   We do not  have a  Treasurer  Genera l ’ s  o f f i ce ,  

on ly  in  p rov inces  –  we on ly  have one Treasurer  Genera l ’ s  

o f f i ce  wh ich  res ides a t  the  head o f f i ce  a t  Lu thu l i  House.   In  

p rov inces we have Prov inc ia l  T reasurers .   Now themse lves,  10 

they have got  a  lo t  o f  o ther  peop le  they in te rac t  w i th ,  I  may 

not  be  aware  o f  tha t ,  perhaps the  person who was  in  the 

o f f i ce  o f  the  Treasure r  Genera l  na t iona l l y ,  those are  the  

peop le  tha t  he  in te r face  w i th ,  may know bet te r  abou t  those 

peop le  bu t  cer ta in ly  on  my pa r t  I  wou ld  no t  know everybody  

who works  in  the  Prov inc ia l  Treasurer ’s  o f f i ces .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    What  about  Mongez i  Dya la?   D id  

you know Mongez i  Dya la?  

MR KODWA :   I t  cou ld  be  one o f  the  s ta f f  members ,  maybe,   

I  do  no t  know,  maybe work ing  fo r  the  ANC.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Aga in  i n  the  Easte rn  Cape I  see 

the  emai l  address  is  MDya laAncEasternCape.org .za .  

MR KODWA :   Yes,  i t  i s  poss ib le ,  Cha i r .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  take  you up the  emai l  

cha in  tha t  was fo rwarded to  you?  
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MR KODWA :   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Up to  the  emai l  tha t  Thand i  

Kopo lo  wr i tes  to  Mackay .  

“E ish ,  my b ro the r ,  I  cannot  seem to  shrug these 

guys o f f .   They were  us ing  our  recent  submiss ion  to  

a rm wrest le  w i th  us .   700 000 fo r  accommodat ion  a t  

the  PGC,  can LN or  MX do someth ing?  I  see tha t  

our  es teemed par tner  ELCB are  a lso  cop ied . ”  

Now do you know who ELCB was?  

MR KODWA :   No,  Cha i rpe rson.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    ELCB were  the  par tners  o f  EOH 

in  a  b id  fo r  the  Easte rn  Cape  document  management  

tender  wh ich  was end ing  a t  the  t ime.   D id  you not  know 

tha t  a t  the  t ime? 

MR KODWA :   I  wou ld  no t  know about  i t ,  I  had noth ing  to  do  

w i th  the i r  tenders  and procurement  in  government .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  on ly  what  you say  

bu t ,  I  mean,  th is  emai l  was fo rwarded to  you fo r  your  

comments .    

MR KODWA :   Cer ta in l y ,  what  I  say ,  as  a  mat te r  o f  fac t ,  20 

ac tua l l y ,  fo rwarded to  someth ing  e lse  bu t  I  wou ld  no t  even  

know what  ELCB is  because they knew or  whoever  

fo rwarded to  me knew tha t  I  had no in f luence or  dec i s ion-

mak ing  powers  to  in f luence anyth ing  in  a  [ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  a lso  says:  

“They are  us ing  our  recent  submiss ion  to  arm 

wrest le  w i th  us . ”  

MR KODWA :   [ inaudible – speaking simultaneously]  what  

the i r  recent  subm iss ion  was about .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We know tha t  i t  was about  a  

tender  fo r  the  Eastern  Cape  document  management  

cont rac t .   So they are  us ing  tha t  tender  to  a rm wrest le  w i th  

us ,  say  EOH and th is  ge ts  fo rwarded to  you and you ask do  

you know about  th is ,  your  thoughts?  10 

MR KODWA :   L ike  I  sa id ,  I  have  no reason to  doubt  the  

documents  inc lud ing  the  emai l s  bu t  I  can on ly  comment  to  

an  ex ten t  tha t  an  emai l  was wr i t ten  by me but  ema i ls  tha t  

were  fo rwarded and so  on  and the  [ ind is t inc t ]  you w i l l  see  

tha t  even rece iv ing  these emai ls  t here  is  no  communica t ion  

back f rom me about  anyth ing  tha t  the  emai l  says .   So we 

can jus t  specu la te  about  what  was an expecta t ion ,  why i t  

was fo rwarded to  me and i t  jus t  ends the re ,  specu la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  can happen though,  Mr  Kodwa,  i s  

tha t  i f  somebody sends you or  fo rwards you an emai l  i t  may 20 

be tha t  he  or  she does so  because he or  she knows tha t  

you know someth ing  about  the  con tent  o f  the  emai l  and,  o f  

course ,  i f  you  do  not  know why they are  send ing  i t  to  you  

and you know no th ing  about  the  content  you might  say  to  

them why are  you  send ing  me th i s ,  i t  has  go t  no th ing  to  do  
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w i th  me?  Or  you  might  say  –  you  might  have a  comment .   

So when Mr  Chaska lson asks you  cer ta in  quest ions about  

emai ls  t ha t  you d id  no t  wr i te  i t  i s  on  the  bas is  tha t  because  

they were  sent  to  you,  you might  know someth ing  about  the  

content  tha t  i s  why they were  sent  to  you and there fore  you  

might  ass is t  us  to  unders tand what  was go ing  on or  why –  

what  the  issues were  and why the  sender  o r  the  fo rwarder  

thought  tha t  i t  was impor tan t  tha t  you knew about  such an  

emai l .   So tha t  i s  the  contex t  o f  why he i s  ask ing  you.   So  

even i f  you have not  wr i t ten  the  emai l  yourse l f  bu t  you 10 

might  know about  someth ing  about  the  content  o r  you  

might  say  I  remember  th is  emai l ,  I  do  no t  know why they 

sent  i t  to  me,  I  subsequent ly  phoned them and say why are  

you send ing  me th is  and they cou ld  no t  sa t is f y  me or  they  

c la r i f ied  and once they c la r i f ied  I  unders tood.   I  d id  no t  

respond by  way o f  an  emai l  bu t  I  d id  phone and sa id  a ,  b ,  

c ,  d .   Or  you might  say  we l l ,  look ,  I  know about  the  content  

a l though I  am not  the  au tho r .   In  te rms o f  what  I  know 

about  eh  conten t ,  th is  i s  the  pos i t ion .   So tha t  i s  the  

reason why Mr  Chaska lson is  ask ing .  20 

MR KODWA :   Thank you ve ry  much,  Cha i rperson,  I  rea l l y  

apprec ia te  tha t  contex t ,  i t  i s  very  impor tan t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR KODWA :   Le t  me jus t ,  in  answer ing  the  quest ion ,  

Cha i rperson,  le t  me jus t  say  f i rs t l y ,  my a t t i tude around the  
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i ssues o f  p rocurement  in  the  s ta te ,  I  have sa id  i t  in  my 

s ta tement ,  I  have got  a  very  c lear  a t t i tude towards those  

issues,  to  an  ex ten t  tha t  i f  peop le  were  to  ask  fo r  

ass is tance the  i t  i s  l inked to  a  government  p rocurement ,  I  

a lways expressed  a  v iew.   You w i l l  see  in  some ins tances,  

the  fac t  tha t  there  is  no  rep ly  emai l  in  some o f  the  emai ls  

tha t  were  sent  to  me or  fo rwarded ,  i t  does not  mean I  do  

no t  have the  v iew,  bu t  the  fac t  tha t  there  is  no  emai l  back 

or  to  acknowledge rece ip t ,  aga in  i t  does not  mean I  wou ld  

no t  have expressed an op in ion  about  i t .   Bu t  you must  10 

remember ,  essen t ia l l y  to  me,  as  a  leader  o f  the  ANC,  what  

was impor tan t  in  tha t  conversa t ion  was the  despera te  need 

o f  th is  emai l  to  he lp  in  the  meet ing  wh ich  was o rgan ised.   

That  i s  where  I  wanted to  ass is t .    

To  an  ex ten t  tha t  I  wanted to  ass is t  lawfu l l y  and  

appropr ia te l y .   The content  about  o ther  th ings,  

Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  no t  know about  the  content  o f ,  there  

were  cer ta in  i ssues wh ich  were  re la ted  to  the  submiss ion  

o f  ELCB,  I  wou ld  no t  have known.   But  as  a  leader  o f  the 

ANC,  work ing  fo r  the  organ isa t ion  tha t  convenes an event  20 

and i t  needs immedia te  ass is tance,  tha t  i s  where  my 

in te res t  wou ld  have been as  a  leader .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So,  Mr  Kodwa,  a re  you then 

say ing  tha t  you wou ld  t r ied  to  persuade EOH to  he lp  ou t  by  
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pay ing  fo r  th is  p rov inc ia l  confe rence?  

MR KODWA :   No,  l i ke  I  sa id  ear l ie r ,  I  have never  

in te rac ted  w i th  EOH and tha t  i s  the  bas i s  o f  my s ta tement .   

The pe rson I  in te rac ted  w i th  i s  a  person who is  my f r iend 

ca l led  Jehan Mackay ,  so  I  wou ld  no t  have had in te rac t ion  

w i th  EOH about  payment  to  the  event  o f  the  ANC.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You in te rac ted  w i th  Jehan 

Mackay  to  a r range payment  o f  the  PGC conference? 

MR KODWA :   Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And do you reca l l  in te rac t ing  10 

w i th  h im in  re la t ion  to  th is  conference? 

MR KODWA :   I  wou ld  reca l l ,  Cha i rperson,  o r  I  cannot  

because i t  has  been a  long t ime.   As  you can see tha t  most  

o f  our  conversa t i on  was rea l l y  te lephon ic ,  tha t  i s  why you  

do not  see any emai ls  here  because most  o f  our  

cor respondences –  I  say  “cor respondences”  as  f r iends,  we  

do not  keep cor respondences,  Cha i rperson,  because we  

re ly  on  t rus t  as  f r iends.   That  i s  why you send me an  emai l ,  

I  ca l l  you  back and I  do  no t  keep tha t  ca l l  in  s to rage tha t  a t  

some po in t  I  th ink  tha t  maybe someth ing  e l se  cou ld  be  20 

asked about  th is  conversa t ion  and tha t  i s  the  k ind  o f  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  a  lo t  o f  bus iness peop le  inc lud ing  Mr  

Mackay ,  i t  i s  based on t rus t ,  no t  tha t  because we must  

keep in  s to rage some o f  our  cor respondences because a t  

some po in t  we w i l l  be  asked about  i t .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  I  apprec ia te  tha t  you do not  

have any access  to  what  response you made a t  the  t ime 

but  a re  you te l l ing  the  Cha i r  tha t  i t  i s  l i ke ly  tha t  you wou ld ,  

hav ing  rece ived th is  emai l ,  have engaged w i th  Mr  Mackay   

to  t ry  to  persuade h im to  he lp  ou t  and pay fo r  the  PGC 

accommodat ion?  

MR KODWA :   Abso lu te l y ,  I  wou ld  have ce r ta in ly  pe rsuaded  

h im to  he lp  w i th  the  ANC Eastern  Cape.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Because,  Mr  Kodwa,  my prob lem 

wi th  tha t  i s  tha t  the  emai l  tha t  i s  fo rwarded to  you ,  on  i t s  10 

face  suggests  tha t  the  ANC Easte rn  Cape are  p ressur i s ing  

EOH in  re la t ion  to  the i r  pend ing  b id  to  t ry  to  persuade  

them to  pay th is  money.   Do you not  see tha t?  

MR KODWA :   I  do  no t  see tha t  to  an  ex ten t ,  Cha i rperson,  

you must  remember  the  po in t  I  made,  Cha i rperson,  and I  

say  th is  respect fu l l y ,  the  ANC is  an  organ isa t ion  organ is ing  

a  meet ing  wou ld  no t  ge t  invo l ved in  tender  p rocu rements  o f  

government ,  tha t  i s  done th rough a  depar tment  o r  o rgan o f  

s ta te  o r  those who work  in  government .   So i f  those who 

donate  to  the  ANC they have got  an  expecta t ion  tha t  the  20 

ANC,  as  an  organ isa t ion  or  as  a  leadersh ip  in  a  prov ince or  

wherever ,  i t  w i l l  have some in f luence –  you a re  m iss ing  the  

po in t ,  the  ANC does not  in f luence  or  par t i c i pa te  in  tender  

p rocu rements  o f  government  and tha t  i s  a  po in t  I  am 

mak ing  even here ,  i f  there  was an expecta t ion  tha t  by  
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pu t t ing  a  pressure  on  whoever  and  there fore  the  ANC i t  w i l l  

a rgue in  favour  o f  Mackay ,  wh ich  is  why the  po in t  I  made 

ear l ie r ,  Cha i rperson.   To  the  ex ten t  tha t  I  kept  my  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  peop le  and the  bus inesses they do  is  tha t  

somet imes i f  I  in t roduce you,  Cha i rperson,  to  somebody  

and the  Min i s te r  as  I  am car ry ing  my ob l iga t ion ,  what  

happens between you and tha t  m in is te r ,  i t  cannot  come 

back to  me and a t t r ibu te  i t  to  me,  even i f  i t  i s  inappropr ia te  

because I  wou ld  have done,  I  wou ld  have done what  I  th ink  

i s  cor rec t  as  a  leader  to  do ,  I  in t roduce you  to the 10 

Pres ident ,  you want  to  see the  Pres ident .   Why  do you  

want  to  see the  Pres ident?   What  happens in  your  

conversa t ion ,  you get  invo lved w i th  someth ing  

inappropr ia te ,  i t  cannot  be  a t t r ibu ted  to  me in  te rms o f  the  

dec is ions tha t  wou ld  have a r isen out  o f  tha t  conversa t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Un less ,  o f  course ,  the  person who wants  

you to  fac i l i ta te  a  meet ing  w i th  the  Pres ident  te l l s  you  

qu i te  c lear l y  tha t  he  wants  to  ge t  the  Pres ident  to  do  

someth ing  inappropr ia te ,  you migh t  re fuse to  fac i l i ta te  tha t  

meet ing  wou ld  you not?  20 

MR KODWA :   Abso lu te ly ,  tha t  i s  why I  sa id  we have an  

ob l iga t ions as  leaders  to  make tha t  assessment ,  tha t  i s  

appropr ia te  and tha t  i s  no t  appropr ia te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr  Kodwa,  i s  tha t  no t  what  i s  
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happen ing  he re  because the  emai l  tha t  i s  fo rwarded  to  you  

te l l s  you tha t  EOH be l ieve  tha t  the  ANC Eastern  Cape a re  

us ing  the  pend ing  tender  to  t ry  t o  squeeze money out  o f  

EOH.   That  i s  what  the  fo rwarded emai l  says .  

MR KODWA :   Le t  me jus t  say ,  Mr  Chaska lson,  I  apprec ia te  

tha t  you may have your  v iews about  the  ANC but  I  assu re  

you tha t  I  w i l l  never  fac i l i ta te  cor rup t ion .   I  unders tand  

your  suppos i t ion ,  Mr  Chaska lson,  bu t  they are  no t  t rue  and  

I  say  th is  respect fu l l y  because even Mr  Jehan Mackay ,  he  

may not  know the  in t r i cac ies  o f  how the  ANC opera te  and  10 

a l l  what  I  have jus t  sa id  to  you is  how the  ANC opera ted  

and how i t  cont i nues to  opera te  as  an  organ isa t ion ,  tha t  

nobody,  ce r ta in l y  no t  me,  I  wou ld  have fac i l i ta ted  

cor rup t ion  in  the  organ isa t ion  bu t  more  so ,  the  ANC does  

not  par t i c ipa te  in  p rocu rement  tenders  o f  government  as  an  

organ isa t ion  and tha t  po in t ,  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  to  

unders tand how the  ANC opera te .   I t  may have a  

percept ion  in  pub l i c ,  o f  course ,  the  po in t  I  made  ear l ie r,  

tha t  cer ta in  i ssues or  cer ta in  ind iv idua ls  were  g iven  

tenders  because  they assoc ia ted  w i th  ANC p rox im i ty  and 20 

so  on .   That  i s  someth ing  d i f fe ren t .   But ,  as  a  mat te r  o f  

fac t ,  the  ANC does not  pa r t i c ipa te  in  government  

p rocu rement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Kodwa,  one o f  the  impor tan t  

th ings tha t  emerged in  your  open ing  s ta tement  was 
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cer ta in ly  tha t  i t  is  impor tan t  –  and I  am put t ing  th is  in  my 

own words now,  no t  in  your  words,  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  

leaders  re f lec t  on  how they do  th ings or  how they have 

done th ings in  the  past  and do so  honest ly  and be  

prepared to  say we went  wrong there ,  we shou ld  no t  have  

done tha t .   Here  we d id  r igh t ,  we can cont inue do ing  th ings  

th is  way because  th is  i s  r igh t .  

 Now for  me tha t  i s  very  impor tan t  fo r  our  count ry  in  

the  s i tua t ion  wh ich  i t  i s  because  you cannot  be  par t  o f  

cor rec t ing  wrong  th ings un less  you acknowledge tha t  they  10 

are  wrong so  the  s ta r t ing  po in t  i s  a lways to  say what  a re  

the  wrong th ings tha t  have happened,  why d id  they  

happen,  what  were  the  c i r cumstances under  wh ich  they 

happened?   

I f  we accept  tha t  they are  wrong,  what  needs to  be  

pu t  in  p lace  to  make su re  tha t  chances tha t  they wou ld  

happen aga in  a re  m in im ised and,  i f  poss ib le ,  they  do  not  

happen aga in .   That  i s  a  l ine  tha t  I  l i ke  when  –  i t  i s  

cons i s ten t  w i th  what  I  have sa id  i n  th is  Commiss ion ,  you 

know,  because then one says peop le  who adopt  tha t  20 

approach are  peop le  who a re  genu ine ly  in te res ted  in  

mak ing  sure  tha t  whatever  wrong may have happened does  

not  happen aga in .    

Those who deny and deny every th ing ,  you know,  i t  

i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  see how they can be  par t  o f  cor rec t ing  th ings  



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 69 of 266 
 

because they do  not  see –  they do  not  see th ings tha t  have 

happened tha t  a re  wrong as  they do  not  see those  th ings 

as  wrong.    

So I  ment ion  tha t  because I  want  to  ask  you th i s  

quest ion .   Leave out  what  Mr  Chaska lson migh t  th ink ,  

maybe –  ja ,  what  Mr  Chaska lson might  th ink .   I s  the  

pos i t ion  no t  tha t  when you look  a t  tha t  emai l  f rom Ms 

Thand i  Kopo lo ,  the  pos i t ion  is  tha t  i f  what  she is  say ing  in  

tha t  emai l  i s  t rue  then i t  wou ld  have been wrong fo r  

anybody w i th in  the  ANC to  do  what  she is  ta lk ing  about .  10 

Now we are  no t  say ing  tha t  the  ANC or  an  o f f i c ia l  o f  

the  ANC who was  ask ing  fo r  donat ions l inked the  donat ion  

to  a  tender  b id  tha t  had been made by  EOH,  we were  no t  

say ing  as  a  mat te r  o f  fac t  tha t  i s  what  happened,  bu t  Ms  

Kopo lo  says –  or  cer ta in ly  had the  impress ion  tha t  tha t  i s  

what  was be ing  done.   Now i f  he r  impress ion  was  cor rec t  

and i f  indeed somebody w i th in  the  ANC had done  tha t ,  in  

o ther  words ask ing  donat ions on  the  bas is  o f  l ink ing  them 

to  cer ta in  tenders  o f  b ids  fo r  tenders ,  wou ld  you not  accept  

tha t  tha t  wou ld  have been wrong? 20 

MR KODWA :   Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Cha i rperson,  I  

must  jus t  once more  assure  you,  I  am happy mak ing  

re ference to  the  s ta tement  I  read out  to  you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR KODWA :   I  sa id  I  am [ ind is t inc t ]  leader  on  the  ANC.  I  
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do  th ink  one in  fu tu re  must  be  more  c i r cumspect ,  

par t i cu la r l y  as  leaders  because somet imes our  conduct ,  i t  

does not  have to  be  cr im ina l  o r  cor rup t  bu t  in  the  eyes o f  

the  pub l i c  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween and the  prox im i ty  to  

power,  i t  lend us  to  a  s i tua t ion  where  the  pub l i c  sees us  as  

be ing  favoured or  be ing  bought .   In  tha t  pe rcept ion ,  i t  may 

not  have an e lement  o f  c r im ina l i t y  bu t  i t  requ i res  

leadersh ip  and th is  i s  what  the  po in t  I  made ear l ie r  in  the  

s ta tement  tha t  th is  Commiss ion ,  I  have a lways wanted to  

come before  you  because I  have a lways admi red  how you 10 

have p laced about  th is  no t ion  o f  a  renewal ,  tha t  we must  

look  a t  ourse l ves and re f lec t .   Of  course  we are  human 

be ings.   Most  human be ings do  not  want  to  accep t  the i r  

own weaknesses because when you do tha t  in  pub l i c  i t  i s  a 

s ign  o f  a  weakness and ye t ,  in  my v iew,  i t  i s  a  s ign  o f  

s t rength .    

 I  rea l l y  apprec ia ted  and took  to  hear t  you r  

comments  about  how we shou ld  conduct  ou rse l ves  

inc lud ing  the  percept ion  by  the  sender  o f  the  emai l ,  that  

somebody wou ld  have crea ted th is  impress ion  tha t  the  ANC 20 

had power  to  in f luence a  tender  and there fore  she was 

pan ick ing ,  somebody was pan ick ing  tha t  cou ld  l i ke l y  to  

lose  a  tender.   I f  tha t  were  to  be  t rue ,  i t  i s  some o f  the 

th ings tha t  we must  change because i t  cannot  be  tha t  we 

are  assoc ia ted  w i th  abuse o f  power,  abuse o f  au thor i t y  on  
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the  bas is  o f  p rox im i ty  to  power  and there fore ,  the  way we 

re la te  w i th  the  s ta te ,  par t i cu la r ly  cer ta in  bus iness peop le ,  

Cha i rperson,  I  say  th is  w i th  g reates t  respect ,  we must  be  

more  c i r cumspect ,  no t  because we  must  d iscr im inate  them 

because they a re  successfu l .   Those who are  successfu l ,  

we must  encourage them to  do  more  bu t  to  an  ex ten t  tha t  

they may abuse the  o f f i ce ,  you r  o f f i ce ,  as  we l l ,  i t  must  no t  

a lso  in  the  in te rven ing  per iod ,  Cha i rperson,  c rea te  what  I  

ca l l  soc ia l  d i s tance between the  peop le  and the  leadersh ip .  

 The leadersh ip  must  a lways be there  to  l i ve  among  10 

the  peop le ,  reso lve  peop le ’s  cha l lenges,  we cannot  run  

away when peop le  seek ass i s tance f rom us as  l eaders  

because we are  wor r ied  about  the  conf l ic t  o f  in te res t .   I t  i s  

an  issue tha t  we  must  manage.   I  thank you ve ry  much,  

Cha i rperson,  fo r  emphas is ing  tha t  po in t .   I  agree w i th  you  

tha t  i f  tha t  were  to  be  t rue  in  te rms o f  tha t  emai l ,  then 

there  is  someth ing  wrong w i th  i t ,  you  must  change  –  i t  i s  

an  a t t i tude tha t  you must  change about  the  percept ion  tha t  

ex i s ts  w i th  peop le .  Thank you very  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m and then one can take  i t  one s tep  20 

fu r ther  Mr  Kodwa,  one can say a  leader  o f  the  ANC who  

became aware  tha t  an  en t i t y  tha t  had been asked  by  an  

ANC of f i c ia l  o r  by  the  ANC to  make a  donat ion  tha t  tha t  

leader  thought  tha t  the  ANC was l ink ing  the  donat ion  to  a  

tender  shou ld  have sa id  I  want  to  know why th is  person  
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th inks  l i ke  th is  because i f  i t  i s  t rue  i t  wou ld  be  wrong and I  

want  to  f ind  ou t  who sa id  what  to  her  tha t  made her  th ink  

tha t  an  ANC of f i c ia l  o r  the  ANC i s  l ink ing  a  donat ion  to  a  

tender ,  because I  want  to  speak to  tha t  o f f i c ia l  and say d id  

you do th is ,  d id  you say th is ,  why d id  you say tha t  because 

i f  the  organ isa t ion  once you do tha t  you a re  send ing  the  

message tha t  i f  these peop le  donate  to  the  ANC they must  

hope to  ge t  th is  tender  and obv ious ly  tha t  i s  someth ing  

to ta l l y  wrong,  what  wou ld  you  say to  tha t ,  to  tha t  

perspect ive ,  in  o ther  words to  say i t  shou ld  no t  be  a  10 

s i tua t ion  where  when someth ing  l i ke  th is  appears  to  be  

happen ing  accord ing  to  somebody,  even i f  a t  tha t  s tage 

you don ’ t  know the  fac ts  whether  tha t  i s  t rue .  

 I f  i t  appears  to  be  happen ing  accord ing  to  

somebody you shou ldn ’ t  jus t  focus on  the  donat ion  par t  

and say we l l  the  ANC needs money,  the re ’ s  a  con ference 

coming up,  I  must  jus t  ask  Mr  MacKay or  th is  en t i t y  to  

donate  the  money,  I  am not  go ing  to  ta lk  about  these o ther  

th ings,  bu t  you shou ld  ac tua l l y  say  we l l  I  want  to  know 

because th is  i s  wrong,  i f  i t  i s  t rue ,  and ac tua l l y  once you 20 

es tab l i sh  maybe tha t  indeed there  appears  to  be  someth ing  

tha t  was sa id  you might  ac tua l l y  say  look I  don ’ t  th ink  t he  

ANC shou ld  pu rsue th is  donat ion  because i f  th is  donat ion  

is  made and th is  en t i t y  ge ts  tha t  tender  the re  i s  go ing  to  be  

an impress ion  tha t  the  ANC used i t s  in f luence,  an  ANC 
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o f f i c ia l  used h is  o r  her  in f luence  to  make sure  tha t  tha t  

tender  went  to  th is  o rgan isa t ion  wh ich  had made a  

donat ion  to  the  ANC and o f  cou rse  i f  w i th in  the  ANC the  

o f f i c ia l  who was pursu ing  th is  donat ion  is  somebody maybe 

who doesn ’ t  apprec ia te  tha t  th is  i s  wrong,  o r  maybe  

apprec ia tes  tha t  i t  i s  wrong but  he  th inks  or  she th inks  tha t  

the  organ isa t ion  is  in  such a  f i x  you know they need the  

money,  tha t  person may we l l  th ink  we l l  i f  tha t  tender  were  

to  go  to  th is  en t i t y  tha t  en t i t y  w i l l  know when we ask fo r  

donat ions in  the  fu tu re  tha t  when  you donate  to  the  ANC 10 

there  are  rewards in  te rms o f  tenders ,  they can in f luence 

tenders ,  a l l  o f  wh ich  is  wrong,  bu t  tha t  i s  where  a  l eader  o f  

the  ANC who becomes aware  o f  th is  ought  to  apprec ia te  a l l  

o f  tha t  and shou ld  ac tua l l y  even  say you know le t ’ s  no t  

cont inue ask ing  fo r  th is  donat ion  because i t  i s  go ing  to  be  

v iewed as  a  cor rup t  a r rangement ,  le t  us  go  to  o ther  en t i t ies  

and everybody in  the  ANC must  know tha t  they cannot  l ink  

requests  fo r  dona t ions to  tenders .  

 Do you want  to  say anyth ing  abou t  my expecta t ion  

o f  what  the  r igh t  leader  shou ld  say when faced w i th  th is  20 

s i tua t ion?  

MR KODWA:    I  cannot  ag ree more  w i th  you Cha i rpe rson,  I  

th ink  your  express ion  and your  v iews are  shared by 

m i l l ions  o f  South  A f r i cans,  cer ta in ly  I  do  share  w i th  yours  

bu t  I  do  th ink  tha t  when you look back w i th  h inds igh t  there  
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a re  th ings tha t  as  leaders  we cou ld  have done bet te r .    I t  i s  

jus t  tha t  we now have th is  Commiss ion  cha i red  by  you 

Cha i rperson,  I  am sure  as  l eaders  i f  we accepted our  own  

sub jec t i v ism way ear l ie r  we wou ldn ’ t  be  hav ing  th is  

Commiss ion ,  bu t  th is  Commiss ion  lays  a  foundat ion  fo r  us 

to  renew ourse lves,  re f lec t  on  our  conduct  as  I  sa id  ea r l ie r  

to  renew and re f lec t  on  your  conduct  Cha i rperson  is  no t  

jus t  about  commi t t ing  any cr im ina l i t y  and somet imes  we 

qu ick l y  run  to  de fend when asked  to  re f lec t  on  ourse l ves,  

bu t  I  th ink  th is  Commiss ion ,  the  ind ic tment  o f  th is  10 

Commiss ion  i t  w i l l  l eave an inde l ib le  mark  to  our  count ry ,  

because we are  a lso  re f lec t ing  to  us  as  leaders ,  what  we  

cou ld  have done bet te r ,  inc lud ing  the  issue we ra i sed tha t  

why a t  a  cer ta in  po in t  we d id  no t  ra ise  i t  there ,  and I  am 

say ing  w i th  h inds igh t  these are  the  lessons,  o f  cou rse  you 

can on ly  learn  f rom exper ience because exper ience is  the  

best  teacher .  

 Those who re fuse to  learn  i t  means by  re fus ing  to  

accept  any o f  the  exper iences,  exper ience by  i t s  na ture  i s  

no t  a l l  good th ings,  the re  a re  th ings in  your  l i fe  tha t  you 20 

look back and say I  cou ld  have done bet te r  and i t  is  pa r t  o f  

learn ing  and I  th ink  you prov ide  tha t  k ind  o f  w isdom 

because Cha i rperson we a re  ou ts ide  o f  th i s  po l i t i ca l  rea lm 

fo rmat ions,  you don ’ t  l i ke  a  par t y  person,  you don ’ t  th ink  i n  

par t y  po l i t i cs ,  you th ink  in  te rms o f  the  ou ts ide ,  have an 
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oppor tun i ty  to  look  ins ide  and see what  cou ld  have been  

done d i f fe ren t ly  because a t  the  end Cha i rperson I  am 

cer ta in  tha t  whatever  f ind ings  you wou ld  make you 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  to  want ing  to  f ind  ourse l ves where  we are  

now.  

 Whatever  m is takes were  commi t ted  must  never  be  

repeated.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  thank you.   Mr  Chaska lson?  

MR KODWA:   Thank you very  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Chaska lson?    Mr  Chaska lson?   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sor ry  I  had muted  myse l f  

acc identa l l y .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can we go to  another  d imens ion ,  

page 426 and what  you see a t  page 426  is  a  –  maybe we 

can s tar t  down a t  page 427,  the  request  f rom the  ANC 

Easte rn  Cape to  make a  donat ion  to  the  PGC and i t  i s  

addressed to  the  Manager  o f  EOH,  Ntombo,  and a t  426 we  

see Jehan Mackay address ing  an  emai l  to  one  o f  the  

peop le  who work  under  h im,  Ruwe de Gi l le  say ing  p lease  20 

pay th is  donat ion  asap and p lease ask  Rene to  keep a  

spec ia l  account  fo r  EOH re la ted  expenses wh ich  inc ludes 

the  R6mi l l ion  we  pa id  to  Ga l lagher  and the  R6mi l l ion  we  

pa id  Sp indr i f t  and  Pro jec t  Ingroup as  we are  go ing  to  add i t  

to  the  Barnstone acqu is i t ion .     
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 Now the  f i rs t  quest ion  –  and we have subsequent ly  

seen ev idence tha t  EOH made a  R1mi l l ion  donat ion  to  the 

Easte rn  Cape ANC in  re la t ion  to  th is  PGC.     

 The f i rs t  quest ion  to  you is  d id  you know about  th is  

R1mi l l ion  donat ion  f rom EOH to  the  Eastern  Cape ANC for  

the  PGC? 

MR KODWA:   In  ex ten t  tha t  i t  is  re f lec ted  on the  emai l  

wh ich  was fo rwarded to  me I  wou ld  have been aware  about  

f i rs t l y  the  ANC’s  request  and second ly  a  donat ion  to  the 

ANC.     10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Okay,  d id  you know tha t  EOH in  

i t s  in te rna l  accounts  t rea ted  th is  one mi l l ion  donat ion  as  an  

expense under  what  i t  ca l led  Pro jec t  Ingr id ,  wh ich  were  

t rea ted  as  expenses re la ted  to  the  SASSA EOH Orac le  

tender?  

MR KODWA:    No ,  no t  to  my knowledge.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  show tha t  to  you?   I f  you  

go to  page 517,  i t  s ta r ted  a t  page 516 wh ich  has the  

cover ing  emai l  wh ich  exp la ins  i t .  

MR KODWA:    Okay.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    516 i t  says ,  there ’s  an  emai l  in  

the  m idd le  o f  the  page,  Jehan Mackay to  Reno Bar r i e :  

“H i  guys,  

Can you send me a  summar ised recon o f  the  P ro jec t  

Ingr id  account . ”  



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 77 of 266 
 

And we have heard  tha t  P ro jec t  Ingr id  was a  l i s t  o f  

expenses tha t  the  EOH made fo r  the  ANC tha t  was 

subsequent ly  t rea ted  in  the  EOH books as  expenses  

re la ted  to  the  SASSA EOH Orac le  cont rac t  so  i f  you  go 

down to  6 t h  o f  November  2015 you  w i l l  see  an amount  ANC 

fundra is ing  accounts  R1mi l l ion ,  so  tha t  R1mi l l ion  donat ion  

to  the  Eastern  Cape PGC was t rea ted  as  one o f  these  

Pro jec t  Ingr id  expenses wh ich  i n  EOH’s  accoun ts  were  

t rea ted  as  expenses re la t ing  to  the  EOH SASSA Orac le  

cont rac t .  10 

 Now can you th ink  o f  any reason  why EOH wou ld  

t rea t  a  donat ion  to  the  ANC as a  leg i t imate  expense  

re la t ing  to  a  tender  fo r  the  SASSA EOH Orac le  cont rac t?  

MR KODWA:    No  I  cannot  th ink  o f  any reason Cha i r .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  those –  assuming you 

know a  leg i t imate  reason tha t  i t  cou ld  be  t rea ted  as  such,  

wou ld  you agree w i th  tha t?  

MR KODWA:    Say i t  aga in  Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    There  is  no  leg i t imate  reason to  

t rea t  a  donat ion  to  the  ANC as an  expense re la ted  to  the 20 

SASSA EOH Orac le  cont rac t .  

MR KODWA:    I  don ’ t  know Cha i rperson,  honest ly  I  

wou ldn ’ t  know,  I  wou ldn ’ t  l i ke  to  m is lead the  Commiss ion ,  I  

don ’ t  want  to  specu la te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So I  guess a l l  you can say is  you know 
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no th ing  tha t  wou ld  jus t i f y  i t  bu t  you are  no t  say ing  tha t  

there  i s  no th ing  tha t  jus t i f ies  i t  in  case somebody e lse  pu ts  

up  someth ing?  

MR KODWA:    I f  there  i s  an  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  yes  Cha i rperson 

but  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    In  te rms o f  your  knowledge you don ’ t  

know.  

MR KODWA:   From my knowledge ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Le t ’s  ge t  to  your  accommodat ion  10 

expenses,  can we  go to  page 423.      

MR KODWA:    400 and?  

CHAIRPERSON:    23 ,  423.  

MR KODWA:    Yes Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now th is  i s  a l  l i s t  o f  expenses 

tha t  we unders tand were  pa id  –  i f  you  go up to  the  top  you  

see i t  says  re ference invo ice  76 ,  and the  –  so r ry  number  i s  

invo i ce  76  and the  re ference is  Mr  Z Kodwa.  

MR KODWA:    R igh t .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  you look down a t  these 

desc r ip t ions  o f  the  accommodat ion  do  you recogn ise  these  

as  p laces where  you s tayed in  Cape Town on the  da tes  in  

quest ion ,  so  Bar ledos[? ]  

MR KODWA:    Yes I  do .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now th is  i s  an  invo i ce  tha t  was  

sent  to  EOH for  tha t  accommodat ion  and you w i l l  see  tha t  

the  to ta l  amount  tha t  EOH was b i l led  fo r  tha t  

accommodat ion  was R656 200,  EOH had a  cred i t  w i th  the  

t rave l  agents  so  the  amount  due was on ly  R426 200  but  the  

amount  tha t  was charged fo r  tha t  accommodat ion  was  

R656 000.   And  tha t  i s  a l l  in  a  space o f  t ime f rom 23  

December  2015,  sor ry  f rom 29 Oc tober  2015 to  5  January  

2016,  so  i t  i s  less  than th ree  months .    

 I  see  in  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  you d idn ’ t  –  you  10 

unders tood tha t  th is  accommodat ion  was p rov ided  to  you 

by  Mr  Mackay.      

MR KODWA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I s  tha t  co r rec t?   So you 

unders tood i t  to  be  Mr  Mackay ’s  pe rsona l  gestu re  to  you,  i t  

came f rom Mr  Mackay.   

MR KODWA:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And  i t  was h i s  ges ture  as  

opposed to  EOH’s  gesture  as  fa r  as  you were  aware .  

MR KODWA :    Cor rec t .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    D id  you know a t  the  t ime tha t  

th is  accommodat ion  d id  no t  be long to  Mr  Mackay and tha t  

somebody was go ing  to  have to  pay fo r  i t?  

MR KODWA:   No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Do you accept  now tha t  
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somebody d id  have to  pay fo r  i t  and the  amount  pa id  was  

R656 200?  

MR KODWA:    Wel l  l i ke  I  sa id  Cha i rperson but  I  have no  

reason to  doubt  the  documents  f rom th is  honourab le  Cha i r ,  

Commiss ion  bu t  le t  me jus t  g ive  a  contex t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

MR KODWA:    Mr  Mackay has an  number  o f  p roper t ies  as  

fa r  as  I  unders tand around Cape Town,  he  has go t ,  

somet imes i f  he  w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  accommodate  me dur ing  

the  per iod  tha t  we are  ta lk ing  about  he  w i l l  te l l  me tha t  he  10 

has go t  o ther  p roper t ies  tha t  he  has go t  access to ,  in  o ther  

words i t  i s  no t  in  my ins tance tha t  I  w i l l  go  to  a  proper ty  

tha t  i s  so-ca l led  ex t ravagant  o r  l uxury  and say I  want  tha t  

p roper ty ,  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  th ing .   The second th ing  is  tha t  

Mr  Mackay i f  you  look a t  one o f  h is  p roper t ies ,  number  5  

Net t le ton .   Number  5  Net t le ton  is  h is  house,  i t  i s  no t  a  

guest  house,  i t  i s  no t  a  ren ta l  house,  so  whether  what  

happens ar rangement  he  has in  te rms o f  h is  serv i ces  as  

par t  o f  p rov id ing  or  o f fe r ing  hosp i ta l i t y  I  wou ldn ’ t  know but  

what  I  know is  tha t  I  never  asked Mr  Mackay tha t  I  w i l l  20 

need accommodat ion  can you pay fo r  th is  because my  

unders tand ing  was tha t  he  was not  pay ing  fo r  tha t  

accommodat ion ,  I  was us ing  some o f  h is  p roper t ies  and 

there fo re  Cha i rpe rson the  d i f f i cu l t y  about  hosp i ta l i t y  i f  you  

v is i t  me I  dec ided to  be  th is  ex t ravagant ,  i t  i s  no t  –  I  
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cannot  say  no  i t  i s  no t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  i t  i s  hosp i ta l i t y ,  you 

accept  hosp i ta l i t y  fo r  what  i t  i s  bu t  I  thought  I  shou ld  jus t  

g ive  a  contex t  to  i t  because I  saw how Mr  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

very  dramat ic  where  he  t r ied  to  exp la in  th i s  luxury  

accommodat ion  as  though there  is  a  cer ta in  Mr  Kodwa who  

went  on  a  b inge o f  ex t ravaganza in  Cape Town to  dr ive  a  

po l i t i ca l  s ta tement  in  my v iew by  Mr  . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  tha t  to  

re fe r  to  an  accommodat ion  i n  an  area in  Cape Town ca l led  

Camps Bay fo r  me i t  i s  ex t ravagan t ,  i t  i s  a  luxury ,  bu t  when 

he re fers  to  o the r  peop le  i t  i s  normal  fo r  o ther  peop le  to  10 

s tay  there ,  i t  is  because o f  th is  apar the id  separa te  

deve lopment ,  because a  person  l i ke  me whethe r  I  can  

a f fo rd  i t  o r  no t  I  shou ldn ’ t  be  s tay ing  in  Camps Bay in  the  

f i rs t  ins tance and th is  i s  where  the  issue about  luxu ry ,  

i ssues about  ex t ravagance he was  demonst rab le  and very  

dramat ic  when he was mak ing  tha t  po in t ,  and I  cou ld  see  

he was d r iv ing  a  very  s t rong po in t  in  te rms o f  pub l i c  

nar ra t i ve  o f  these leaders  who l i ve  beyond the i r  means,  

very  b inge and ex t ravagant  and there fo re  I  a lso  want  to  re -

emphas ize  the  po in t  tha t  5  Net t le ton  i t  i s  Mr  Mackay ’s  20 

res idence,  the  fac t  tha t  on  tha t  weekend i t  was not  

ava i lab le  i t  was h im who sa id  I  w i l l  l ook  fo r  o ther  p lace .    I  

wou ld  no t  have asked is  i t  one o f  your  p roper t ies  or  no t  

because I  have a lways fo r  years  s tayed in  h is  p roper t ies .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Le t ’s  exp lo re  the  imp l ica t ions o f  
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what  you have jus t  to ld  us  Mr  Kodwa,  i f  you  look a t  th is  

invo i ce  wh ich  is  an  invo ice  to  EOH,  fo r  your  f i rs t  t r ip  to  Mr  

Mackay ’s  ,  to  5  Net t le ton ,  wh ich  you say is  Mr  Mackay ’s  

res idence,  EOH was charged R100 000.   Do you see tha t?  

MR KODWA:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    15  to  16  October .    For  your  

second t r ip  to  5  Net t le ton  7  to  9  November  EOH was 

charged R150 000,  so  in  to ta l  when you spent  th ree  n igh ts  

a t  Mr  Mackay ’s  house EOH got  charged R250 000,  now 

who wou ld  be  charg ing  R250 000 to  EOH i f  tha t  was Mr  10 

Mackay ’s  house?  

MR KODWA:    Wel l  we can jus t  specu la te  Cha i rperson,  l i ke  

I  say  be fore  th is  Commiss ion  in  re fe rence to  the  quest ion  

there  is  no th ing  tha t  says Mr  Kodwa you went  to  Mr  

Mackay,  you know ve ry  we l l  tha t  Mr  Mackay or  any o f  h is  

en t i t ies  w i l l  have  to  pay fo r  your  accommodat ion .    Th is  

was hosp i ta l i t y  tha t  I  have a lways,  tha t  was a lways o f fe red  

to  me by a  f r iend who owns proper t ies  and whenever  he  

was in  Cape Town or  whenever  one o f  h is  p roper t ies  was  

ava i lab le .    Wha t  a r rangements  he  had about  maybe the  20 

th i rd  par t y  I  was  not  invo lved and I  wou ld  no t  have been 

aware  about  the  payments  except  fo r  [ c ]  tha t  indeed  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  payments ,  bu t  the  na ture  o f  those payments  

how they came about ,  fo r  an  example  there  is  an  issue 

about  a  p r iva te  chef ,  he  has a lways had a  chef  so  there  
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was no spec ia l  a r rangement  fo r  me,  he  has a lways  had a  

chef  in  h is  p roper t ies ,  so  i t  i s  no t  l i ke  there  was th i s  

ex t ravaganza o f  a  chef  tha t  was ar ranged fo r  me because 

o f  my s tay ing  the re ,  he  has a lways had them,  so  these are  

the  d i f f i cu l t ies  tha t  somet imes when you accept  an  o f fe r  o f  

hosp i ta l i t y  you can ’ t  exp la in  where  d id  you buy the  goat ,  

where  d id  you buy the  sheep and why a re  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and 

these a re  d i f f i cu l t  quest ions when  you rece ive  hosp i ta l i t y  

o f fe r ings.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l  Mr  Kodwa I  am not  ask ing  10 

about  you a t  th is  s tage,  I  am put t ing  to  you tha t  you on  

your  vers ion  went  to  s tay  a t  Mr  Mackay ’s  p r iva te  res idence  

wh ich  you unders tood to  be  h i s  gesture  to  you.     

MR KODWA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And in  the  process EOH got  

b i l led  R250 000 fo r  the  f i ve  days tha t  you spent  the re  p lus  

another  rough ly  R15 000 fo r  the  pr iva te  chef  who Mr  

Mackay a lways employs on  your  vers ion ,  do  you  accept  

tha t ,  because tha t ’s  what  th is  invo i ce  says?   

MR KODWA:     I  have no reason Cha i rpe rson aga in  to  20 

d ispute  the  fac t s  be fore  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR KODWA:   I  do  no t  rea l l y  know how Mr  Mackay  

re f lec ted  th is  in te rna l l y  in  h is  company.    We can debate  

tha t  whethe r  i t  was ex t ravagance or  someth ing  e lse ,  bu t  I  
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accept  tha t  Mr  Cha i rperson is  your  vers ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l  i t  i s  no t  my vers ion ,  i t  i s  

what  the  invo i ce  says.  

MR KODWA:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now do you know when in  the 

EOH accounts  these payments ,  the  R656 200 were  a l so  

re f lec ted  as  expenses on Pro jec t  Ingr id  tha t  were  booked  

as  EOH expenses re la t ing  to  t he  SASSA EOH Orac le  

tender .  

MR KODWA:    Mr  Chaska lson th rough Cha i rpe rson to  be  10 

fa i r  to  me,  and I  th ink  to  be  fa i r  to  Mr  Chaska lson Mr  

Mackay is  best  p laced to  exp la in  some o f  these quest ions.     

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  agree w i th  you comple te ly  on  

tha t  one,  bu t  I  do  need to  pu t  these quest ions to  you 

because they are  go ing  to  be  re levant  to  a  quest ion  tha t  I  

pu t  to  you a t  the  end o f  th is  quest ion .  

MR KODWA:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    D id  you know a t  the  t ime tha t  

these expenses were  go ing  to  be  t rea ted  as  EOH company 

expenses re la t ing  to  the  SASSA Orac le  tender?  20 

MR KODWA:    No ,  cer ta in ly  no .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And do you accept  –  o r  le t  me 

ask the  quest ion  aga in ,  were  you  aware  o f  any leg i t imate  

reason why these expenses o f  R656 200 re la t ing  to  your  

s tay  a t  Mr  Mackay ’s  res idence and o ther  res idences in  
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Cape Town tha t  he  made ava i lab le  to  you cou ld  be  booked 

in  the  accounts  o f  EOH’s  leg i t imate  expenses re la t ing  to  

the  SASSA Orac le  tender?  

MR KODWA:    I  wou ldn ’ t  know o f  any reason,  o f  any 

leg i t imate  reason  fo r  tha t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  you r  react ion  to  the  d i scovery  

tha t  your  s tay  in  these p laces,  wh ich  you regarded as  Mr  

Mackay ’s  persona l  hosp i ta l i t y  to  you as  a  f r iend were  

l inked by  EOH,  a  company in  wh ich  he  was invo lved,  to  a 

tender  on  the i r  par t .    Le t ’s  assume fo r  p resent  purposes  10 

tha t  a t  tha t  t ime you knew noth ing  about  tha t ,  you en joyed 

what  you regarded as  h is  persona l  hosp i ta l i t y  to  you as  a  

f r iend.     

 When you d iscovered tha t  the re  was payment ,  

f i rs t l y  no t  by  h im but  by  a  company and not  jus t  by  a  

company but  a  company tha t  was l inked to  cer ta in  tenders ,  

bu t  tha t  payment  fo r  your  accommodat ion  in  the i r  books is  

l inked to  a  tender .   What  i s  your  react ion  to  tha t  

d iscovery?  

MR KODWA:   Wel l  f i rs t l y  Cha i rperson I  wou ldn ’ t  want  to  20 

pre -empt  Mr  Mackay ’s  vers ion  i f  the  Commiss ion  may want  

some answers  f rom h im,  I  am . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  in  the  mat te r ,  

he  has go t  a  vers ion  o f  h is  own.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR KODWA:   From Mr  Powel l ,  bu t  I  must  s ta te  
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Cha i rperson tha t  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime I  saw when Mr  Powel l  

made the  presenta t ions o f  th is  d iscovery  when he appeared 

before  th is  Commiss ion ,  in  o ther  words a l l  a long i t  i s  no t  

tha t  I  knew 2015  about  the  payments ,  no ,  i t  i s  on ly  when  

the  presenta t ions ,  when Mr  Powel l  was led  in  h i s  ev idence 

in  ch ie f  a t  th is  Commiss ion  the  repayments .   Of  course  tha t  

to  me as a  leader  I  shou ld  have  been wor r ied  about  i t ,  I  

shou ld  have been worr ied  and these are  the  issues tha t  I  

ind ica te  tha t  somet imes a  very  d i f f i cu l t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  to  

dea l  w i th  in  the  in te rac t ion  be tween the  peop le  and the  10 

leadersh ip  i s  tha t  o f  bus iness,  because you don ’ t  know 

beh ind  what  they  do  and i t  may have a  re f lec t ion  on  your  

own conduct  as  a  leader  and these are  the  issues tha t  I  

say  w i th  h inds igh t ,  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  re f lec t  and i t  wou ld  

become c i rcumspect ,  even when you a t  the  t ime o f  a  meet  I  

th ink  w i th  h inds igh t  you ought  to  be  ab le  to  manage  cer ta in  

i ssues,  inc lud ing  fo r  an  example  to  ask  a  quest ion ,  wh ich  

is  a  very  uncomfor tab le  quest ion  to  a  f r iend,  where  is  i t  

coming f rom.  

 And you know Cha i rperson as  I  do  tha t  many o f  us  20 

we re ly ,  pa r t i cu la r ly  us ,  genera l l y  b lack  peop le ,  we re ly  on  

bor rowing,  we are  brought  up ,  we  are  who we are  because  

somebody e l se  ass is ted  on  the  rou te .   We don ’ t  ask  

Math la l in i  next  door  when we ask fo r  sugar  o r  to i le t  paper ,  

these are  the  th ings tha t  as  we  go a long you beg in  to  
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quest ion  and ask ,  the  k ind  o f  ass is tance you ask  fo r  and  

the  k ind  o f  ass is tance tha t  ge ts  o f fe red  to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  fo r  the  sake o f  comple teness,  the  

reason why I  asked you tha t  quest ion  what  your  react ion  is  

o r  was when you d iscovered th is  i s  tha t  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  

says  ce r ta in ly  EOH who made the  payment  v iewed the  

payment  as  connected w i th  a  cer ta in  tender ,  you know,  so  

you might  go  and s tay  in  accommodat ion ,  you are  happy,  

you say your  f r iend is  be ing  hosp i tab le  to  you and then 

when they do  the i r  books they l ink  i t  to  a  tender .   Anyone  10 

who then sees tha t  says we l l  the re ’s  a  l ink  you know,  so  

tha t  i s  why I  was  ask ing  because she request  i t  m igh t  be  

tha t  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  you w i l l  f ind  unacceptab le  when i t  

does happen,  when you get  to  know to  say we l l  had I  

known i t  wou ld  be  l inked to  a  tender  I  wou ldn ’ t  have 

accepted tha t .  

MR KODWA:   Abso lu te l y ,  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr  Kodwa can I  ask  you have  

you spoken to  Mr  Mackay s ince  you heard  Mr  Powel l ’ s  20 

ev idence and you rea l i sed tha t  –  and you learn t  tha t  EOH 

had l inked these payments  to  a  tender .  

MR KODWA:    How must  I  say  Cha i rperson,  I  have  a lways  

had an unders tand ing  and tha t  unders tand ing  even ex i s ts  

today,  tha t  I  have no –  I  had no  in te rac t ion  w i th  EOH or  
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any  o f  i t s  en t i t ies .   The person I  a lways in te rac ted  whethe r  

in  te rms o f  ass i s tance or  anyth ing  is  Mr  Mackay,  so  when 

in fo rmat ion  came tha t  there  were  cer ta in  th ings tha t  hav ing  

spoken to  h im tha t  i t  w i l l  be  go ing  to  another  th i rd  par t y  o r  

whatever ,  and I  d id  ind ica te  i t  to  h im a f te r  Mr  Powel l  tha t  I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  come to  the  Commiss ion  wh ich  was  a  po in t  

made by  my lega l  representa t i ve  here ,  Mr  S ik ikhane ,  tha t  I  

have a lways had a  w ish  tha t  I  want  to  come before  you and  

put  myse l f  my s tory ,  the  ve rs ion  wh ich  I  am rea l l y  g ra te fu l  

tha t  today I  have had tha t  oppor tun i ty .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    My quest ion  is  s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t  

Mr  Kodwa,  i t  i s  d id  you ra i se  w i th  h im what  Mr  Powel l  was 

say ing  wh ich  is  tha t  th is  accommodat ion  wh ich  you  a lways 

regarded as  h is  persona l  gesture  to  you,  had ac tua l l y  f i rs t  

cos t  R626 000 fo r  EOH,  and second had been in  l inked in  

the  EOH accounts  to  the  SASSA Orac le  tender ,  have you 

ra ised those ques t ions w i th  Mr  Mackay?  

MR KODWA:    My unders tand ing  in  my conversa t ion  w i th  

Mr  Mackay Cha i rperson is  tha t  he  has go t  h i s  own  vers ion  

and I  don ’ t  wan t  to  p re jud i ce  h im,  I  don ’ t  know what  20 

in te rac t ion  he  has w i th  the  Commiss ion ,  bu t  we had  agreed  

on one th ing ,  tha t  you he was in te rac t ing  w i th  me as a  

f r iend,  bu t  he  has go t  h is  own  exp lanat ion  about  the  

quest ion  tha t  i s  be ing  asked by  Mr  Chaska lson as  to  the 

payments  tha t  came f rom tha t  en t i t y  o r  tha t  en t i t y .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I s  your  answer  tha t  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  sor ry .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . you  ra ised th is  w i th  h im but  you are  

re luc tan t  to  say what  he  sa id  to  you?  

MR KODWA:    Abso lu te l y  Cha i rpe rson,  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Our  p rob lem Mr  Kodwa is  tha t  Mr  

Mackay got  a  no t ice  o f  Mr  Powel l ’ s  ev idence and got  

inv i ted  to  pu t  h i s  ve rs ion  be fore  the  Commiss ion  and to  

app ly  to  c ross -examine Mr  Powel l ,  he  chose not  to .   So we 10 

haven ’ t  heard  h is  vers ion  ye t ,  bu t  I  unders tand your  

re luc tance because he is  a  f r iend ,  bu t  I  must  ask  you to  

te l l  the  Commiss ion  what  d id  he  te l l  you  to  exp la in  th is  

s i tua t ion?   You unders tood tha t  you were  ge t t ing  

hosp i ta l i t y  f rom a  f r iend,  i t  tu rns  ou t  tha t  what  was ac tua l l y  

happen ing  is  tha t  EOH were  be ing  b i l led  R626 000 fo r  your  

accommodat ion  and they were  t rea t ing  in  the i r  accounts  as  

an  expense aga ins t  the  SASSA Orac le  tender .  

MR KODWA:    Wel l  to  the  best  o f  my knowledge  

Cha i rperson I  th ink  th is  Commiss ion  has t r ied  even the  20 

most  d i f f i cu l t  w i tnesses to  f ind  whenever  you need them,  I  

am sure  Mr  Mackay i f  you  can jus t  pu t  more  e f fo r t  the  

Commiss ion  w i l l  f ind  h im,  bu t  I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  un fa i r  o f  me 

to  present  h is  vers ion  to  the  Commiss ion ,  except  to  an  

ex ten t  tha t  Mr  Mackay in  h i s  own unders tand ing  and my 
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unders tand ing  is  tha t  there  was no re la t ionsh ip  be tween  

me or  some o f  h is  en t i t ies  inc lud ing  EOH,  I  had a  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Mackay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So Mr  Mackay conf i rmed your  

unders tand ing  wh ich  was tha t  you have no re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  EOH,  your  re la t ionsh ip  was w i th  h im and  d id  he  

conf i rm tha t  th is  was h is  persona l  hosp i ta l i t y  to  you? 

MR KODWA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Cha i r  I  am aware  tha t  we have 

reached jus t  pas t  one o ’c lock ,  my es t imate  i s  maybe we 10 

have ha l f  an  hour  to  go ,  I  am in  your  hands Cha i r  we can –  

i f  you  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  the  ad journment  now we can – I  

can ’ t  see us  runn ing  more  than ha l f  an  hour  more .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  i f  i t  i s  about  ha l f  an  hour  le t ’ s  

ad journ  and then  we are  go ing  to  resume a t  f i ve  past  two,  

bu t  le t  me jus t  say  tha t  there  is  a  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  we might  

no t  resume a t  f i ve  past  two,  there  m ight  be  some de lay ,  i f  

tha t  i s  go ing  to  happen a l l  par t ies  are  go ing  to  be  i n fo rmed 

dur ing  the  l unch break.   When I  come back i  w i l l  ment ion  –  

I  may ment ion  why,  bu t  there  is  someth ing  tha t  m ight  need  20 

my t ime so  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  I  am on ly  go ing  to  know dur ing  the  

lunch break whether  I  have got  to  a t tend to  tha t  

commi tment  o r  no t ,  so  –  bu t  i f  there  i s  a  de lay  i t  m igh t  be  a  

de lay  o f  about  30  m inutes  f rom when  we a re  supposed to  

s ta r t ,  to  resume,  bu t  i t  may be tha t  i f  you  don ’ t  ge t  any ca l l  
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then you must  know we wi l l  resume a t  f i ve  past  two .  

 Okay,  a l r igh t ,  we w i l l  then ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning  everybody once again.   

Yes,  I  am sor ry we had to sta r t  la te r  than ten past  or  f ive 

past  two.   I  went  to ,  I  had to  go and get  my f i rs t  jab .   So I  

have just  come f rom get t ing vaccinated,  so I  have got  my 

f i rs t  jab.   

 I  w i l l  get  the second one la te r  in  due course.   So 10 

that  is  the reason why you,  I  have delayed you but  I  am 

sure you are saying i t  is  an acceptable reason.   Mr 

Chaskalson,  Mr Chaskalson . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   We are just  envious DCJ.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  was about  to  say you look envious.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  i t ,  th is  th ing goes accord ing  to  who 

came to be stabbed f i rs t .   Okay,  a l r ight .   Let  us cont inue.   

Let  us cont inue,  okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Kodwa,  can 20 

we go to  page 328?   

CHAIRPERSON:   348? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Three two e ight ,  328.  

CHAIRPERSON:   328,  okay.  

MR KODWA:   Okay.   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now th is  i s  an emai l  tha t  comes 

f rom Mr Mathe to  you on the 14 t h  o f  Ju ly  2015 and i t  reads 

as fo l lows:  

 “My brother  I  hope you are good.   I f  i t  is 

possib le ,  p lease can you ask the Chai r  to  look 

in to DHA,  RFB 1303/2014.   There  are games 

being p layed.   In i t ia l l y  we were number one.   

Then Phandalane and the  head of  procurement  

decided to re-evaluate the b ids and now i t  

seems we are d isqual i f ied.   The to ta l  va lue is  10 

about  360 mi l l ion.   A lso,  p lease do not  forget  to  

ta lk  to  the regional  funding coord inator  to  

understand what  the i r  funding requi rements  

are.   Thanks my brother. ”  

 Now do you recal l  receiv ing th is  emai l  f rom Mr  

McKay? 

MR KODWA:   Cor rect  Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And he says:  

 “ I f  i t  is  possib le ,  p lease can you ask the Chai r. ”  

 Who is  the Chai r  to  whom he is  re fe rr ing? 20 

MR KODWA:   I  do not  have g iven the passage of  t ime,  I  do  

not  remember tha t  speci f i ca l l y  who is  he refer r ing to .   But  I  

th ink I  would have spoken to h im fo l lowing th is  emai l  that  i t  

is  one of  those th ings that  unfor tunate ly  I  cannot  he lp.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  my quest ion is  d i f fe rent .   Who 
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is  th is  Chai r  that  he is  re ferr ing to?  Chai r  o f  what  do you 

th ink?   

MR KODWA:   I  do  not  know.   I  would not  know Chai rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Would  you have known at  the  

t ime? 

MR KODWA:   Say i t  again?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I s  i t  that  you just  cannot  

remember now because i t  is  s ix  years ago or  i s  i t  someth ing 

that  you would no t  have known at  the t ime? 

MR KODWA:   Wel l ,  i t  is  possib le  that  I  would know at  that  10 

t ime.   that  i s  the point  I  am making that  wi th  the passage of  

t ime,  somet imes I  mean the emai ls ,  the conversat ions is  

about  f ive,  s ix  years back.   You may not  even remember the  

context  o f  some o f  those conversat ions inc lud ing the image.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Who could the Chai r  have 

been?  Are  we ta lk ing about ,  one of  the possib le  posi t ions 

of  Chai r  that  he could have been re ferr ing to  here? 

MR KODWA:   I  do not  want  to  speculate Chai rperson,  I  do 

not  want  to  specu late qui te  f rankly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR KODWA:   For  me Chai rperson and I  say th is  wi th  

respect  to  Mr Chaskalson.   Regard less of  who the Chai r  

was,  I  would not  have done i t .   I  would not  have done such 

a th ing  where I  am requested to  in ter fe re  wi th  procurement .   

So and I  say th is  respect fu l l y  not  because I  do not  
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remember the exact  person that  he is  re ferr ing to ,  but  I  

would not  have done i t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  am not  get t ing to  that  a t  th is  

po int .   I  am jus t  t ry ing to  estab l ish what  th is  emai l  is  

actual ly  asking you to  do,  and one of  the th ings i t  i s  ask ing  

you to  do is  to  ask the Chai r  to  look in to DHA RFB.    

MR KODWA:   Yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So I  am t ry ing to  f ind out  who Mr  

McKay thought  he could ask you to  in te r fe re in  the tender  

process wi th .   10 

MR KODWA:   I  have no recol lect ion  of  th is  Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l ,  would i t  be the Chai r  o f  the  

provinc ia l  ANC?  What  Chai r  pos i t ions are there that  Mr 

McKay might  have thought  that  you had access to?  

MR KODWA:   The d i f f icu l ty  Mr Chaskalson is  that  I  must  

now somewhere t ry  to  g ive these answers on behal f  o f  Mr 

McKay.   I  have no recol lect ion or  cer ta in ly  the Chai rperson 

of  the ANC,  whether  in  the province or  in  the region wi l l  

have noth ing to  do wi th  the government  tenders.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  appreciate that .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Cont inue Mr Chaskalson.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  apprec iate that  and the  Chai r  in  

the region should  have noth ing to  do wi th  tenders.   So Mr 

McKay c lear ly  thought  that  somebody was and he asked you 

to  speak to  that  person.   You are saying . . . [ in tervenes]   
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MR KODWA:   I t  is  possib le  fo r  business peop le,  my 

apologies Mr Chaskalson.   I t  is  possib le  fo r  business people  

to  th ink that  person or  that  person may assis t  them to  

achieve the i r  business object i ves.   [00:06:18 – no sound] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .  that  I  sa id because I  do not  know i f  i t  

was recorded.   Oh.   I t  says record ing in  progress so I  hope 

that  . . .  I  was saying that  whoever the Chai r  was,  that  Mr 

McKay was ta lk ing about ,  he obviously thought  tha t  i t  was 

somebody who could do someth ing  about  the i r  p redicament  

and the i r  predicament  as i t  ar t i cu lates in  that  emai l  was that  10 

whereas they had in i t ia l l y  been p laced as number  one in  

regard to  the tender,  they had s ince been d isqual i f ied .   

 So that  might  mean somebody wi th in  the Department  

of  Home Affa i rs ,  because I  th ink DHA stands fo r  Department  

of  Home Affa i rs  i f  I  am r ight  about  that  and that  that  was a 

tender re la t ing to  Home Affa i rs  or  i f  i t  was somebody not  

wi th in  Home Affa i rs ,  i t  must  have been somebody that  he 

never  the less thought  could in f luence and change the i r  

p lac ing and maybe get  them back to  be number one on the 

l is t .    20 

 That  seems to be  qui te  c lear.   Mr Kodwa,  would you 

say you a lso understand that  emai l  a long those l ines as 

wel l?  

MR KODWA:   I t  is  possib le  Chai rperson that  i t  could have 

been Mr McKay’s impression.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR KODWA:   Wi th in  whatever  space . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

MR KODWA:   Wi th in f luence in  one way or  another.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

MR KODWA:   Bu t  i f  i t  were to  come my way I  would not  

have done i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Mr Chaskalson?   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.   He then 

. . . [ in tervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe what  I  would l ike to  know is  in  

re la t ion to  the other  emai l  where,  i f  I  recal l  correct ly  Mr 

Kodwa said he to ld  Mr McKay he does not ,  he d id not  get  

involved in  tender  mat te rs,  whether  th is  was . . .  th is  emai l  a t  

328 was af ter  that  or  before that .   

 Probably you might  know Mr Chaskalson,  but  Mr  

Kodwa might  a lso know.   Mr Kodwa,  do you know whether  

th is  was af te r  you had to ld  h im that  you do not  get  involved 

in  such mat te rs or  was i t  before? 

MR GABARONE:  I  th ink th is  would have been the very  20 

speci f ic  emai l  tha t  I  was responding to  among others .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR KODWA:   I  would have to ld  h im speci f i ca l ly  on th is  

emai l  and h is  request  that  i t  is  someth ing that  unfor tunate ly  

I  cannot  do.   L ike I  have just  sa id,  i t  is  a  mat te r  that  was 
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outs ide of  my scope.   I  was not  wi th in  government .   I  was 

not  wi th in  the state and the ANC has no capaci ty.  

 Cer ta in ly  a spokesperson to in f luence tender,  tender 

procurement  in  government .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  but  what  I  was asking,  I  hope my 

recol lect ion is  correct .   My recol lect ion is  that  before lunch 

one of  the emai ls  we deal t  wi th  was an emai l  f rom him 

which sought  your  assis tance in  regard to  some tender and 

my recol lect ion was that  you to ld  h im that  you d id not  get  

involved in  such mat te rs.   10 

 So I  am wonder ing whether  i f  I  am correct  in  that  

recol lect ion,  th is  one was a s i tuat ion where he was coming 

back to  you,  asking you to  ask somebody to get  involved in  

tenders,  despi te  the fact  that  you had to ld  h im that  you d id  

not  get  involved or  whether  th is  was the f i rs t  t ime you got  a  

chance to te l l  h im.  

MR KODWA:   No,  there was and I  th ink you are refer r ing to  

the Eastern Cape Department  of  Educat ion.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes I  th ink so.   

MR KODWA:   I  do not  know the sequence,  which one came 20 

f i rs t ,  but  I  wou ld have sa id the same th ing even in  

[ ind is t inct ]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  Mr Chaskalson? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Just  to  c la r i fy  the sequence,  th is  

is  14 Ju ly 2015,  the Eastern Cape emai ls  were I  th ink  
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September.   They are on page 413.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You can see the exact  date.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   30 September 2015.   So i t  is 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   [ ind is t inct ]  f i rs t  ja .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Th is i s  the f i rs t  one.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.   Okay.   Okay.   Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   My next  quest ion Mr Kodwa is  on 10 

th is  emai l  a t  328 he says:  

 “Can you ask the  Chai r  to  look in to DHA RFB 

1303/2014. ”  

 So he refers you to  a very speci f i c  b id .   Why would  

he have assumed you knew anyth ing about  that  b id?  

MR KODWA:   Wel l  I  do not  know and again Mr Chaskalson,  

wi th  the greatest  respect ,  I  would  have . . .  he wou ld have 

t r ied i f  there was a possib i l i ty  that  I  ta lked to  somebody but  

my response to h im,  to  an extent  that  for  example I  on ly  got  

to  know about  such a tender in  terms of  the reference g iven 20 

here,  when i t  was presented by Mr Powel .  

 I  have never  seen th is  before.   Whether  the emai l  he  

sent  to  me,  my response would have been c lear,  wi th  the  

same emai l  . . .  s imi lar  emai l  which was sent  about  

educat ion.   That  unfor tunate ly  th is  is  where I  draw a l ine in 
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terms of  f r iendsh ip,  but  i f  there is  an expectat ion that  our  

f r iendship i s  such that  we would  be able to  ass is t  one 

another  on issues of  s tate procurement ,  th is  i s  a  mat te r  I  

would have sa id no,  unfor tunate ly  I  cannot  he lp.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  is  what  you say.   Then c lear ly  

you d id not  get  the message because he came back to  you 

asking for  more help at  the end of  September.   

MR KODWA:   Wel l ,  I  th ink you can read between the l ines.   

Whether  he d id not  get  the message or  he was t ry ing h is  

chance again.   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Ms Chaskalson.   A t  328 the 

second l ine or  not  l ine,  the four th l ine,  he says:  

 “A lso p lease do not  forget  to  ta lk  to  the 

regional  funding  coord inator  to  understand 

what  the i r  funding  requi rements are . ”  

 That  g ive me the impression that  he is  ta lk ing about  

donat ions made unwrong.   Do you have an understanding  

what  he was ta lk ing about  there? 

MR KODWA:   I t  is  possib le  Chai r  that  he was ta lk ing about  20 

donat ions,  but  as I  sa id . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR KODWA:   I  do not  even remember or  recal l  a  reg ional  

funding coord inator.   We do not  have such a person in  the  

st ructures of  the ANC.   So somet imes the emai l ,  the  
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s t ructure i t  creates problems,  but  I  can appreciate being a  

businessman you may not  understand the st ructures of  the 

Af r ican Nat ional  Congress.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Chaskalson? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Just  p ick ing up f rom the  Chai r ’s  

quest ion,  do you accept  that  last  sentence:  

“P lease do not  forget  to  ta lk  to  the regional  

funding coord ina tor,  understand what  the i r  

funding requi rements are. . . ”  

Is  an inv i ta t ion to  get  back to  h im wi th  a request  fo r  10 

a donat ion to  the ANC? 

MR KODWA:   Cer ta in ly  not  f rom me.   The request  was 

cer ta in ly  not  f rom me.   Of  course,  he is  re fer r ing to  a 

cer ta in  person,  that  i f  they  have got  any funding  

requi rements,  he may come back to  h im.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  why would you have to ta lk  to  

that  funding coord inator?  

MR KODWA:   I  mean,  l ike I  sa id even in  my statement  and 

which is  a  mat ter  that  I  can never  deny Chai rperson.   That  

whenever i t  was appropr ia te and lawfu l ,  where a donor or  20 

the st ructure of  the ANC may want  assis tance f rom 

somebody I  wi l l  g lad ly  assis t  that  s t ructure.   

 I  have not  denied that .   So i f  here there was an 

impression f rom him cer ta in ly,  that  i f  I  could ta lk  to  a 

cer ta in  st ructure and so on,  but  again i t  does not  mean on 
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my par t  there was any expectat ion.   Could  be on h is  par t ,  

but  cer ta in ly  on  my par t ,  i f  I  would have done so not  

because there  was any expectat ion  that  I  in f luence a  tender  

in  favour  of  Mr McKay.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  want  to  put  to  you that  on 

reading th is  emai l ,  you must  have real i sed that  there was 

that  expectat ion on h is  par t ,  that  he was asking you to  do 

someth ing about  tender DHA RFB1303/2014 and he inv i t ing  

you to  speak to  the regional  funding coord inator  to  

understand funding requi rements,  essent ia l l y  inv i t ing  you to  10 

star t  a  p rocess that  would resul t  in  a donat ion to  the ANC.   

 That  the two in  th is  emai l  are l inked.   What  i s  your  

response to that?  

MR KODWA:   Thanks Mr Chaskalson for  asking that  

quest ion.   I  have got  great  appreciat ion that  you asked that  

quest ion,  because your  supposi t ion,  there is  a  const i tuency 

out  there,  that  ho lds that  v iew.   That  ho lds the v iew that  to 

be a pol i t i c ian to  be the leader in  government ,  to  be the  

member of  the ANC,  there is  no space for  e rrors and 

whatever  you do is  corrupt .  20 

 I  do not  th ink the  v iew and the supposi t ion you have 

just  asked now,  and I  am not  say I  am t ry ing to  throw a  

bat t le  at  you.   I  th ink,  I  do not  th ink we should d ismiss that  

supposi t ion that  there is  a  const i tuency where we have a 

responsib i l i t y  as  legal ,  to  the point  that  I  made ear l ie r,  
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where we must  be c i rcumspect  because i t  is  prec ise ly  that  

const i tuency that  makes us to  look as leaders as cor rupt ,  as  

abusing power and abusing author i t y.   

 But  again i t  i s  not  t rue.   But  the  fact  that  i t  i s  not  

t rue,  i t  does not  mean we must  not  c i rcumspect  that  our  

conduct ,  to  an extent  that  i t  may create an impression,  

which is  created by th is  emai l ,  that  we might  have 

fac i l i ta ted tenders  by v i r tue of  our  posi t ions in  leadership.   

 So I  do respect  the fact  that  you ra ise that  quest ion .   

I t  is  not  t rue,  but  there  is  no facts  about  i t ,  but  o f  course i t  10 

is  not  an i l leg i t imate concern.   There is  a  const i tuency out  

there that  ho lds that  v iew,  as leaders we have a 

responsib i l i t y  to  deal  wi th  tha t  not ion wi thout  be ing 

defensive.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Mr Kodwa,  I  want  to  take 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second Mr Chaskalson.   I  th ink i t  

would be important  Mr  Kodwa,  that  th is  k ind of  s i tua t ion not  

just  be looked at  f rom I  th ink  the  ANC’s s ide or  f rom the 

point  o f  youth leaders of  the ANC as someth ing that  comes 20 

f rom somewhere in  society.   

 There is  a  group of  people who th ink l i ke that .   I  

th ink that  i t  is  a  s i tuat ion which demands that  the ANC and 

i ts  leaders say to  themselves are there some among us who 

do th ings that  g ive r i se to  th is  percept ion or  th is  th ink ing by  
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some people in  society?  

 What  are those th ings that  some of  us are doing 

whether  they do them wi th a fu l l  appreciat ion  or  not ,  but  

what  a re those th ings that  they are doing which make 

people th ink a long these l ines wi th  regard  to  the 

organisat ion or  some leaders wi th in  the organisat ion.   

 So that  i t  can be deal t  wi th  p roper ly,  ra ther  than in  a 

manner that  seeks to  say wel l ,  i t  is  just  some peop le who 

th ink l ike that .   we accept  that  we must  deal  wi th  i t ,  but  I  

th ink an in  what  looking approach a lso might  be helpfu l ,  but  10 

I  wanted to  a lso say the one reading of  th is  emai l  is  

def in i te ly  that  Mr McKay is  rea l l y  here l ink ing the two.   

 Now maybe somebody e lse might  say wel l ,  maybe he 

might  have l inked i t  inc identa l l y  i f  he was wr i t ing  to  you 

about  the f i rs t  card,  the i r  p roblem.   I t  is  just  unfor tunate 

that  he wrote about  the funding in  the second paragraph,  

but  a  very leg i t imate in te rpretat ion  is ,  seems to be that  he  

is  saying I  have a  need or  we have a need.  

 Somebody is  d isqual i fy ing us f rom get t ing 360 

mi l l ion rand in  c i rcumstances where at  one stage we were 20 

number one.   But  I  a lso know that  is  now i f  we,  i f  we read 

the second paragraph as referr ing to  the ANC or  the  region  

of  the ANC or  the branch or  whatever.   

 But  i f  we read i t  to  be funding re la t ing to  the ANC,  

that  he is  now saying but  I  know that  the ANC also has 
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needs.   Maybe I  can take care of  the ANC’s needs,  but  they 

must  take care of  my needs as  wel l .   So I  am saying  

somebody reading th is ,  might  leg i t imate ly  take that  

in terpretat ion to  say that  i s  how i t  comes across now.    

 Is  that  someth ing you accept  as leg i t imate  

understanding of  the emai l?  

MR KODWA:   I  cer ta in ly  agree wi th  your  sent iments 

Chai rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes,  and o f  course when one looks 

at  that  wi th in  the context  o f  th is  mat te r,  one is  fo rced to  go 10 

back and th ink of  that  lady who was sending a message I  

th ink to  h im,  at  some stage saying I  th ink  the ANC in the  

Eastern Cape saying they were arm wrest l ing  them,  

because they had made a submission.   

 You know,  so i t  connects and then that  becomes . . .  i t  

becomes qui te  a concern.   Thank you.   Mr Chaskalson? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes Chai r.   I  want  to  ra ise another  

concern which is  i t  is  c lear  f rom th is  emai l  that  Mr  McKay 

has access to  conf ident ia l  in fo rmat ion about  a  tender 

process.   He says:  20 

 “ In i t ia l l y  we were number one.   Then 

Phandalane and the head of  procurement  

decided to re-evaluate the b ids and now i t  

seems we are d isqual i f ied. ”   

 Now that  in format ion is  in fo rmat ion that  should be  
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conf ident ia l  to  a tender process,  because we know that  the 

tender p rocess had not  been decided at  th is  po int .   Did i t  

not  concern you that  Mr McKay seemed to be get t ing leaks 

f rom ins ide the tender process about  what  was going  on? 

MR KODWA:   Mr Chaskalson,  to  an  extent  that  I  have never  

been involved in  tender p rocurement ,  I  would not  know i f  as 

a b idder,  what  in format ion we have access to  or  not .   So I  

would not  know whether  i t  was conf ident ia l  or  i t  was g iven 

to  h im.   

 I  w i l l  not  make an appropr ia te comment  about  i t .   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   He refused to Phandalane,  who he 

assumes you know about .   Do you know who th is  

Phandalane is?  

MR KODWA:   No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So are you saying you never  knew 

or  you cannot  recal l  a t  th is  po int?  

MR KODWA:   I  do  not  know Phanda lane Chai rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Any Phandalane.  

MR KODWA:   I  am sure wi th  the few f r iends,  the people I  

know as Phandalane,  but  cer ta in ly  th is  Phandalane who is  20 

involved in  tender p rocurement  of  the department ,  I  do  not  

know Chai rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   D id i t  not  s t r i ke you as st range 

that  Mr McKay wr i tes you a le t ter  ta lk ing about  Phandalane,  

and you do not  know who he is  re fe rr ing to?  
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MR KODWA:   Precise ly.   The assumpt ion about  business 

people and assoc iate somet imes,  they th ink of  you and they 

th ink that  you know of  somebody and in  rea l i ty  we do not  

know everybody and i t  i s  not  fo r  us to  know everybody.   Our  

responsib i l i t y  as  leadership is  to  help people to  resolve  

the i r  p roblems,  but  I  th ink the assumpt ion is  that  perhaps 

he thought  at  that  s tage I  knew of  somebody ca l led 

Phandalane and I  do not  know th is  person.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The Chai r  took you through the  

emai l  and suggested to  you that  on i ts  face,  the emai l  can 10 

be in terpreted to  suggest  that  he was request ing some sor t  

o f  act ion to  in f luence the tender p rocess and l ink ing  that  to  

assis tance to  the ANC in the fo rm o f  a  donat ion.  

 You accepted that  that  was an in te rpretat ion that  

f lowed f rom the emai l?  

MR KODWA:   I  agree wi th  your  sent iment  Chai rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Are you aware that  i f  that  is  what  

he was doing,  i t  was a c r ime under the prevent ion and 

combat ing of  cor rupt  act i v i t ies act ,  on h is  par t .   I  am not  

saying on your  par t .   I  am saying on h is  par t .   20 

MR KODWA:   I  rea l ly  do not  know how do you expect  me to  

answer Chai rperson,  i f  he was commit t ing a c r ime on h is  

par t .   I  th ink i t  is  a  mat te r  that  he can deal  wi th .   A t  least ,  I  

am happy you say not  a  cr ime cer ta in ly  on my par t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No,  no but  i t  remains an important  
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quest ion because are you aware that  i t  is  a  c r ime to offe r  

anyth ing in  return  for  in f luencing a tender p rocess? 

MR KODWA:   Yes,  I  know about  i t .   I  know about  i t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  is  not  that  you have to g ive i t ,  

just  o ffer ing i t  is  the cr ime.   

MR KODWA:   I  know about  i t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now you have sa id that  you to ld  

h im that  you cannot  he lp.   That  th is  is  where your  f r iendship  

does not  go th is  far.   How d id you te l l  h im that?   In  an 

emai l ,  on the phone,  in  person? 10 

MR KODWA:   I  am sure i f  there was any emai l ,  the  

Commission would have got  ho ld o f  that  emai l  because the  

Commission d id some forensic and the emai ls  are now par t  

o f  the documents .   I  must  have ca l led h im or  we must  have 

spoke through meet ings and so on,  but  i f  you were to  ask 

me how d id I  convey a message s ix  years ago,  I  would not  

recal l  Chai rperson.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  you are very c lear  that  you 

d id convey that  message? 

MR KODWA:   Absolute ly,  in  no uncer ta in  te rms.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   And what  was h is  react ion when you 

conveyed that ,  do  you recal l?  

MR KODWA:   I  cannot  remember  i f  you had to ask me 

verbat im what  he  sa id,  but  I  th ink he has a lways 

appreciated my pr inc ip le  stance on these mat ters,  because I  
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never  e levated mysel f  to  be th is  person who suddenly  has 

author i ty  on mat ters of  s tate,  who actual l y  d id  not  res ide 

wi th  me when I  was outs ide of  s tate.   

 I  am sure he would have appreciated that  honest ly  

f rom my par t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  Mr Chaskalson? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  want  to  take you back to  the  

chronology.   I f  you,  th is  emai l  was the 14 t h  o f  Ju ly.   How,  i f  

you to ld  h im you could not  do th is ,  how soon af ter  th is  

would you have to ld  them?  The same day,  the next  day,  the 10 

next  week,  what  a re we ta lk ing about?  

 Is  th is  someth ing  you would have reacted to  very  

quick ly?  

MR KODWA:   May I  just  make th is  po int  Chai rperson?  I  

th ink,  I  f ind i t  a  b i t  d i f f icu l t  because I  have been very  candid 

wi th  the Commiss ion.   That  is  the approach I  took wi th  my 

legal  [ ind is t inct ]  gu ided me and I  th ink there is  a  very c lear  

conscious on my par t .   

 I t  does appear to  me that  Mr Chaskalson is  looking 

for  someth ing  wrong,  which  unfor tunate ly  I  cannot  f ind.   I t  is  20 

exact ly  th is  reason,  I  would make that  supposi t ion that  

o ther  people may come and be re luctant  to  be as candid as 

possib le  before the Commission because the answers I  am 

giv ing in  as far  as Mr Kodwa is  concerned,  the quest ions 

about  other  people Chai rperson,  not  so much because I  do  
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not  have answers ,  but  because I  th ink other  people can g ive  

the i r  vers ions and answer those quest ions that  re la te to  

the i r  conduct .   

 What  I  can do to  the best  o f  my abi l i t y  to  the  

Commission is  to  help the Commission in  as fa r  as Mr  

Kodwa is  concerned.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  no I  unders tand what  you are  saying 

Mr Kodwa,  but  you know you do know of  course that  not  

everyone is  happy to  help th is  Commission.  

MR KODWA:   Absolute ly.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And Mr Chaskalson d id ment ion ear l ier  on  

that  your  f r iend,  Mr McKay . . .  I  mean on the one s ide you 

are so prepared to  come to the Commission and put  your  

s ide of  the story and actual l y  take responsib i l i t y  fo r  some of  

the th ings that  you may look back now and say maybe I  

should have done d i f ferent ly  because they could g ive r i se to  

cer ta in  percept ions.   

 But  he was g iven not i f icat ion of  Mr Powel ’s  ev idence 

and a l l  o f  these emai ls ,  and he was not  for thcoming to say 

these emai ls ,  I  am happy to  supply a statement  and put  my 20 

s ide of  the story,  par t i cu lar ly  saying wel l ,  maybe some of  

them might  put  a  wrong understanding on my f r iend,  Mr  

Kodwa’s ro le  in  our  in teract ions.   

 So I  must  be for thcoming.   He has not  done that  

f rom what  Mr  Chaskalson says.   So unfor tunate ly  those who 



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 110 of 266 
 

appreciate the important  o f  the Commission and want  to 

help i t ,  are the people f rom whom we t ry  and get  as much 

in format ion as possib le ,  because those who do not  want  to  

help the Commission,  even when they are brought  here 

screaming and k ick ing,  they wi l l  re fuse to  answer cer ta in  

quest ions and therefore wi l l  not  be so helpfu l  and yet  i t  is  

very important  for  th is  Commission to  gain as much 

understanding as  possib le  as to  why,  how cer ta in  th ings 

happened and why they happen in  order  to  f ind  

recommendat ions as to  what  should be done in  the fu ture to  10 

avoid cer ta in  th ings.   

 So the quest ion that  Mr Chaskalson is  asking you,  

requi res noth ing more than for  you to  just  say what  you 

remember.   Obviously,  do ing the best  you can to  remember  

what  you can,  and . . .  so the idea is  le t  us t ry  and get  as 

much in format ion as possib le  to  make sure we can 

understand are we deal ing here wi th  a s i tuat ion where some 

people who are l inked to  cer ta in  companies that  sought  

tenders f rom government  inst i tu t ions,  where they may have 

sought  to  use the i r  p rox imi ty  to  cer ta in  people wi th in  the  20 

ANC,  in  o rder  to  get  those tenders,  are the people wi th in  

the ANC who may a l low themselves to  be used l ike that .   

 Are the people w i th in  the ANC who might  not  have 

appreciated that  they are being used by business people fo r  

cer ta in  tenders,  but  that  is  what  was happening.   So we 
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need to t ry  and understand what  the s i tuat ion is .   As I  say,  

some s i tuat ions i t  may be that  somebody wi th in  the ANC is  

work ing in  cahoots wi th  business ent i t y  and is  do ing what  

they are not  supposed to do.   

 You know,  by for  example maybe ta lk ing to  people in  

a cer ta in  government  department  and saying,  I  am just  

making an example.   saying you people you must  p lease in  

regard to  that  tender you must  p lease remember so  and so,  

or  remember that  company because that  company is  good to 

the organisat ion.   10 

 I t  donates a lo t  o f  money to  the organisat ion so you 

must  remember i t  when you decide that  tender.   Now 

obviously that  should not  happen but  there might  be people  

who do th ings l ike that .   Then there might  be peop le who 

some business people have ident i f ied wi th in  the ANC,  and 

they come c lose to  them.   

 They seek to  use them,  but  maybe those people are  

not  aware that  they are being used.   So i t  is  important  to  t ry  

and just  understand,  I  am sure there are other  categor ies of  

s i tuat ions.   So Mr  Chaskalson’s quest ions are meant  s imply 20 

to  enable us to  t ry  and understand.  

 Cer ta in ly  there is  fu l l  appreciat ion  of  the approach 

you took th is  morn ing.   

MR KODWA:   Very much Mr Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r ight .   Mr Chaskalson? 
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So Mr Kodwa,  how quick ly  would  

you have responded to th is  request  by Mr McKay to 

in ter fere in  the tender,  to  le t  h im know that  th is  is  not  what  

you d id?  

MR KODWA:   Wel l  I ,  I  mean i t  depends when I  was in  

receipt  o f  the emai l  i tse l f .   Could  have been immediate ly,  

could have been few days af te r  or  i f  i t  was when we met ,  or  

i t  could have been a ca l l  and so on.   So that  is  why maybe a  

t ime d i f fe rence and the fact  that  you wi l l  not  recal l  

everyth ing,  and a speci f ic  even,  what  you sa id when to who.   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  put  to  you that  th is  is  

someth ing that  I  would have expected you to  respond to 

very quick ly,  so that  no  one was le f t  under the impression  

that  they could re ly  on you to  in te r fere wi th  tenders?  Is  that  

not  how you would have seen i t?  

MR KODWA:   I  do not  know what  qu ick means,  because i f  

the emai l  was sent  on the 14 t h  o f  Ju ly,  and I  received i t  on  

the twenty someth ing of  Ju ly,  and I  do not  know what  qu ick 

that  wi l l  mean,  but  a l l  that  I  am saying is  that  what  was 

important  fo r  me is  that  I  d id  convey the message and that  20 

message was very unequivocal .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Because i f  I  look  at  the 

chronology,  I  see th is  i s  the 14 t h  o f  Ju ly  and you say on 

receipt  o f  th is  emai l ,  whenever that  would have been,  you 

conveyed a very c lear  message to Mr McKay.   On the 5 t h  o f  
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August ,  i f  we go back to  page 342 which we have deal t  wi th  

a l ready,  that  is  the le t te r  where he wr i tes to  you.   Saying:  

 “ I f  you need a draf t  le t ter  le t  me know but  I  am 

sure you wi l l  be f ine wi th  the content .   I t  should 

s imply state that  the movement  humbly 

requests assis tance in  the fo rm of  sponsorship  

of  one mi l l ion fo r  whatever  the purpose. ”  

 Someth ing l ike that ,  e i ther  f rom the DG himsel f  o r  

Jerry o r  any other  author i t y.   Now that  i s  th ree weeks af ter  

he has asked you to  in ter fere in  a tender in  the same le t ter  10 

that  he has inv i ted you to  ask fo r  money,  and a day af te r  

that  o r  sor ry,  i t  is  not  a  day af ter  that .   

 I t  is  i f  I  recal l  cor rect ly  i t  is  a  week af ter  that  on the  

12 t h  o f  August ,  there is  a  one mi l l ion donat ion in  the form of  

a  payment  to  the e lect ions agency that  we have a l ready 

d iscussed.   Can you comment  on that?  

MR KODWA:   I  rea l ly  have no comment  to  make on that  

Chai rperson.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then we saw that  on the 30 t h  o f  

September he was speaking to  you again in  re la t ion to  year  20 

age tenders.   The Eastern Cape tenders.   You said again 

that  you would have at  the t ime made i t  c lear  to  h im that  

you could not  in te r fere.   

MR KODWA:   Absolute ly  cor rect .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You see,  and then i f  we go 
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forward to  2 November,  i f  you go to  page 329 . . . [ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   329? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   329.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   A f ter  you have to ld  h im in  no  

uncer ta in  te rms that  you cannot  in te r fere in  Home Affa i rs ,  

a f ter  you have to ld  h im in  no uncer ta in  terms that  you 

cannot  get  involved in  the Eastern Cape tender,  on 2  

November he is  sending you copies of  the le t ter  in  re la t ion 

to  Home Affa i rs  that  says that  the tender has been 10 

cancel led.   You see that?  

MR KODWA:   I  see that .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   What  was your  response to th is?  

MR KODWA:   I  do not  th ink there would have been any 

need fo r  a  response.   I  th ink he was just  shar ing in fo rmat ion  

wi th  me on that .   I  do not  th ink he was requi r ing,  he was 

expect ing a response f rom me.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Why would he share that  

in format ion wi th  you i f  you have made i t  c lear  to  h im on two 

separate  occasions now that  you wanted noth ing  to  do wi th  20 

EOH tender business?   

MR KODWA:   L ike you see in  the correspondence,  there is  

no reply correspondence f rom me in  response to  th is .   I  

would not  know in  absolute te rms why he would have sent ,  

for  what  purpose and what  was the mot ive.   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l ,  we have seen in  the 

accounts of  EOH,  he is  consistent ly  record ing payments to  

the ANC.   Accommodat ion payments in  respect  o f  your  

payments  as costs re la t ing to  tenders.   So i t  seems to me 

that  i f  you d id convey the message to h im that  you d id not  

want  to  get  involved in  any EOH tender business,  e i ther  he  

d id not  get  the message or  he was misrepresent ing the 

s i tuat ion to  h is  co l leagues at  EOH.   

 What  i s  your  response to that?  

MR KODWA:   Wel l ,  I  mean absolute ly  I  cannot  say in  10 

absolute terms that  because the d i f f icu l t y  Mr Chaskalson,  is  

that  I  do not  know th is  other  th i rd  par ty  persons tha t  he was 

deal ing wi th  in te rnal ly  wi th in  the  organisat ion or  ent i t ies.   

So my engagement  and in teract ion star ts  and stops wi th  

h im.   

 What  he does af ter  that ,  that  i s  someth ing  which I  

see some of  those th ings on record here,  and that  is  the  

d i f f icu l ty  about  to  g ive an absolute  answer to  some of  the 

quest ions that  you are asking.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  what  you say,  but  can you say 20 

wi th  conf idence that  he got  the message f rom you?  You 

made that  message absolute ly  c lear  to  h im? 

MR KODWA:   I  made that  message,  I  made that  s tatement  

s ince the morning .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  he knew . . . [ in tervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course,  I  am sorry Mr Chaskalson.   Of  

course i f  you had to ld  h im in  Ju ly  af ter  he had sent  you that  

message of  14 Ju ly  2015,  that  you d id not  get  involved in  

tenders and in  e ffect  he should real l y  re fer  any mat te rs  

re la t ing to  tenders to  you.    

 Then by November when you got  th is  emai l  where he 

was te l l ing you about  the cancel la t ion of  that  tender,  I  take  

i t  you must  have been upset  by then to say does he not  get  

the message?  I  do not  want  to  deal  wi th  anyth ing  re la t ing  

to  tenders.   10 

 Is  that  a  fa i r  expectat ion or  not  rea l ly?  

MR KODWA:   No Chai rperson,  I  am happy you are reading  

my mind.   But  le t  me just  say Chai rperson.   Business people  

are very pers is tent .   Somet imes unt i l  they get  what  they 

want ,  duck of  b low,  but  i t  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR KODWA:   But  a t  least  I  am c lear  in  my conscience 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

MR KODWA:   That  I  would have conveyed th is  message.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR KODWA:   But  o f  course i t  is  in  the nature of  business 

people.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

MR KODWA:   They are very pers is tent .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

MR KODWA:   Especia l l y  in  p laces where  they th ink  that  you 

know cer ta in  ind iv iduals,  not  because you can in f luence,  

maybe because you know cer ta in  persons in  a  cer ta in  

department  and so on.   They are very pers is tent  about  that .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.   Mr Chaskalson? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You cont inued to be h is  f r iend for  

years thereaf te r.   You st i l l  descr ibe h im as a good f r iend.   

MR KODWA:   Cor rect .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Is  that  not  cor rect?  10 

MR KODWA:   Cor rect .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So you were happy to  keep a  

f r iend,  even though that  f r iend kept  on t ry ing to  invo lve you 

in  tender mat te rs  despi te  your  repeated at tempts to  make 

c lear  to  h im that  th is  was someth ing that  you would not  do.   

MR KODWA:   Ja ,  no.   Mr Chaskalson,  I  am sure  we can 

debate the issues about  moral  judgements.   I  mean i t  is  a  

mat te r  that  you can a lways debate  but  I  do not  th ink there 

should be any suggest ion of  a  cr iminal  nature by keeping a  

f r iend who you know yoursel f ,  have not  done anyth ing 20 

outs ide of  what  i s  appropr ia te or  ou ts ide of  what  is  lawfu l .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  am not  t ry ing to  pass a cr iminal  

judgement  on you.   I  am t ry ing to  understand as to  why you 

st i l l  regard th is  man as your  f r iend i f  he repeatedly t r ies to  

involve you in  tender mat te rs,  despi te  your  best  e ffor ts  not  
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to  get  involved,  not  to  le t  h im involve . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KODWA:   I  keep h im because he has fa i led to  get  me 

involved in  tenders.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l ,  okay.   Can I ,  we wi l l  come 

back to  that  shor t ly,  but  there are real ly  just  two sets of  

quest ions le f t  that  I  wanted to  ask you.   You said at  the 

sta r t  o f  your  ev idence today,  in  your  s tatement ,  you have 

been qui te  fo r thr ight  on the need to acknowledge er rors that  

you have made,  er rors of  judgments and mistakes and the  

l ike,  and of  the importance of  acknowledging errors.   10 

 But  i t  is  not  c lear  to  me what  er rors you are actual l y  

acknowledging,  so I  would l i ke to  ask you.   Can you actual ly  

speci fy  what  mistakes you say you made in  re la t ion  to  the 

events that  we have been d iscuss ing,  but  qu i te  speci f ica l l y  

which par t i cu la r  act  that  you took do you th ink were 

mistakes and i f  you had the change to do i t  aga in,  how 

would you do i t  th is  t ime? 

MR KODWA:   Mr Chai rperson,  maybe that  g ives me an 

opportuni ty  to  c la r i fy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR KODWA:   You know,  I  read the aff idavi t  o f  Mr Powel .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR KODWA:   But  I  must  say I  am disappointed  that  Mr 

Powel  as a lawyer,  he ventures and offer  and opin ion that  

the payments were in  exchange of  [ ind is t inct ] .   In  h is  
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a ff idavi t  he  makes a conclus ion about  the  whole  idea of  

[ ind is t inct ]  and i t  is  not  based on any evidence before th is 

commission.   

 I t  is  an opin ion that  i s  expressed and I  thought  I  

should star t  and make that  po int ,  because noth ing could be 

fur ther  f rom the t ru th.   I t  is  h is  op in ion,  and i t  i s  no t  based 

on any facts and h is  supposi t ion,  but  le t  me make the point .   

 I  am hast ing to  make the point  that  in  my statement  I  

re fer  to  issues of  judgment  as leaders.   That  as we ref lect  

on our  own conduct ,  that  re f lect ion,  i t  must  not  be  on the  10 

basis of  cr iminal i ty  or  an act  o f  corrupt ion.   L ike  I  sa id,  

percept ion in  pol i t ics is  as powerfu l  as real i ty.   

 Even i f  what  you do you th ink i s  r ight ,  but  in  the 

eyes of  the publ i c ,  i t  may be seen to be wrong and i t  is  

important .   I t  is  a  d i f f i cu l t  l i ne to  draw as an ind iv idual .   

That  you could have asked fo r  ass is tance f rom a f r iend,  not  

because there was anyth ing wrong or  cr iminal  about  i t .   

 But  in  the eyes of  the publ i c  because in  major i t y  

Chai rperson we are leading very poor  people  in  th is  

count ry.   We should not  be seen as leaders being d i f ferent  20 

in  terms of  our  l iv ing standard and l ive l ihood and so on.   

These are the issues of  the conduct  I  am ta lk ing about .   Not  

so much about  cr iminal i ty.   

 These are the issues that  I  was ref lect ing upon Mr 

Chaskalson,  that  as leaders cer ta in ly  mysel f ,  you look back 
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and you say is  i t  possib le  that  perhaps I  should have done 

th is  and that .   You know,  one of  the issues that  is  ra ised by  

one of  my f r iends Mr Chai rperson,  to  an extent  that  I  knew I  

was not  do ing anyth ing wrong,  I  prov ided . . .  I  o ffered my 

personal  bank account .   

 A lo t  o f  people condemned me for  that .   A lo t  o f  

people.   Why do you g ive personal  account .   I  sa id because 

I  was not  do ing anyth ing wrong,  because you are expect ing  

i f  you ask fo r  a  donat ion there must  be th is  b lack bag you 

carry around.   10 

 I  knew in  my mind,  very c lear  that  I  was not  

commit t ing any cr ime.   I  was asking for  f inancia l  ass is tance 

f rom a f r iend.   Therefore,  so that  even th is  commission can 

easi l y  f ind any t ransact ion between the two because there 

was no i l l egal i ty.   

 There was no issues that  I  th ink  we commit ted a  

cr ime.   These are the issues of  mora l  judgment  Mr 

Chaskalson.   I  am ta lk ing about  when we say th is  is  a  

moment  of  re f lect ion as leaders of  th is  count ry.   Cer ta in ly  

there must  be redempt ion af te r  renewal  and ref lect ions.   20 

 There must  be a  change,  and unless i f  we st i ck to  

what  went  wrong,  what  we th ink  ourselves we must  do,  

there must  be a  l ine now between how leaders re la te to  

business people and maybe the issues of  protocol ,  whether  

as  leaders of  the ANC or  as leaders of  government  we must 
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learn to  what  extent  can we re late,  to  what  extent  can we be 

c i rcumspect  that  our  names can be used and misused fo r  

o ther  u l ter ior  mot ives.   

 These are the issues that  as legals we must  

cont inue to  learn .   We must  re f lect  so that  when we ta lk  

about  eth ica l  leadership,  we ta lk  about  our  own exper iences 

because people  look at  us  as ind iv iduals and that  is  a  

context  o f  what  I  spoke about  when I  ta lk  about  learn ing 

f rom our  wi tnesses,  learn ing f rom our  own mistakes.   

 I t  was not  a  suggest ion that  there was an admission 10 

of  anyth ing wrong,  that  even what  that  which you th ink is  

r ight  in  the eyes of  the publ i c  may be wrong.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Mr  Kodwa,  I  s t i l l  do not  

understand what  i t  is  speci f i ca l l y  that  you say was an error,  

an error  o f  judgment .   Not  a c r ime,  but  an error  o f  judgment .   

What  i s  i t  that  you say you acknowledge was a mistake and 

that  you would do  d i f ferent ly  next  t ime round? 

MR KODWA:   For  an example now that  I  know f rom the  

documents in  th is  Commission,  that  my stay in  hospi ta l i ty  in  

Cape Town,  there  were payments that  were done wh ich I  do 20 

not  know.   To be c i rcumspect ,  i t  would mean even i f  you 

were to  f ind yoursel f  under those d i f f icu l t ies and ask for  

hospi ta l i ty,  now wi th  h indsight  you have got  to  know what  

you f ind yourselves,  what  you were  put t ing yoursel f  against .   

 In  other  words you have got  to  ask some of  the  
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uncomfor table quest ions.   I  made an example ear l ier  i f  I  

were to  host  you and g ive you and offer  you hospi ta l i ty  and 

I  s laughter  a goat ,  i t  means now you must  ask where d id  

you buy that  goat ,  because i t  could be a sto len goat .   

 I t  could  be a sto len goat .   You may not  be aware and 

I  am saying as leaders we have got  to  ask th is  d i f f icu l t  

because we must  c i rcumspect  ourselves so that  we do not  

land the percept ion in  publ i c  that  we are ind i f ferent  f rom the  

rest  o f  the people  who l i ve in  squalor  and the condi t ions of  

pover ty.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Okay,  I  appreciate that .   Is  there 

anyth ing e lse in  par t icu lar  that  you would ident i fy  in  that  

regard as someth ing . . .  [ in tervenes]   

MR KODWA:   There is  none Chai rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So i t  is just  the accommodat ion  

payment?  

MR KODWA:   I  was just  making  an example of  what  i t  

means the issues of  managing f r iendship.   The issues of  

managing the crowd,  th ings that  may land yoursel f  as a 

leader.   That  is  a  speci f i c  example  where a  cer ta in  payment  20 

was done and you were not  aware that  there was a payment  

being done.   

 You accepted an offe r  o f  hospi ta l i ty  f rom a f r iend,  

and I  am just  making that  one example.   Inc lud ing the 

impression that  could have been created,  that  as an  
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ind iv idual  you have got  cer ta in  author i t y  to  in f luence 

government  tenders which you d id not  have.   

 Cer ta in ly  in  my case,  I  d id  not  have any author i t y  to  

in f luence,  I  would  not  have in f luenced any tender processes 

or  procurement  in  government  and these are  the issues of  

leadership that  we must  c i rcumspect .   We must  re f lect  on 

our  conduct  and the d i f f i cu l ty  which the Chai rperson 

captured qui te  in  h is  summary ear l ier,  that  i t  could land us 

in to problems,  because we come here,  we deny and we 

defend ourselves because we th ink we are r ight .   10 

 Yes,  we may be r ight  but  in  the eyes of  the publ i c ,  

the publ ic  may perceive us d i f fe ren t ly.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So how are you suggest ing that  

those sor ts  of  s i tuat ions should be handled? 

MR KODWA:   Wel l ,  i t  s tar ts  wi th  ind iv iduals Chai rperson.   I  

am a member of  the Nat ional  Execut ive Commit tee of  the 

govern ing par ty,  the ANC.   S ince our  2017 conference we 

adopted a  program to renew the Af r ican Nat ional  Congress,  

because among o thers,  i f  you look at  what  you presented as  

a d iagnost ic  repor t  in  2017 before the conference was to 20 

look at  some of  the st range phenomenon’s that  have got  

robbed in  the organisat ion.   

 The issues about  manipulat ion  of  membership .   

Wrong th ings tha t  are associated  wi th  ANC leadership and 

membership.   Inc lud ing th is  not ion  I  was referr ing  to  ear l ie r,  
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that  to  the member of  the ANC,  to  the leader of  the  ANC to 

be in  government  is  equal  to  corrup t ion.   

 These are the percept ions that  we have got  to  look  

back and say what  went  wrong and i t  s ta r ts  wi th  ind iv iduals  

and i t  is  that  not ion that  I  made in  the statement ,  that  i f  we 

are to  renew ourselves,  i f  there is  to  be redempt ion we have 

got  to  accept  tha t  there must  be a star t ing point ,  and the  

star t ing point  i s  that  wi th  h indsight  now,  had we done th ings 

d i f ferent ly  as leadership,  we would not  have th is  

commission because we wi l l  not  have the scale of  10 

corrupt ion that  we see in  the count ry.   

 We wi l l  not  have the scourge o f  corrupt ion,  th is  

pandemic we see in  the count ry.   We wi l l  not  have th is  

percept ion of  the leadership of  our  people,  the i r  own 

leadership that  by v i r tue  of  be ing posi t ioned in  government  

we are abusing the power,  we are abusing the author i ty.   

 Therefore we are  inherent ly  corrup t .   These are the  

issues that  as we go a long,  we have got  to  f ind the way,  the 

va lues,  the system that  we must  manage our  own conduct  in  

order  to  restore the in tegr i t y  and credib i l i t y  o f  our  people to  20 

the leadership of  the Af r i can Nat ional  Congress and to the 

leadership of  the count ry.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  am st i l l  s t ruggl ing to  understand 

in  speci f i c  terms what  you are actual l y  suggest ing.   Let  me 

g ive you an example.   You have ta lked about  managing the  
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f r iendship wi th  more c i rcumspect .   So what  a re you 

suggest ing would  have been a bet ter  way to  deal  wi th  the 

s i tuat ion in  re la t ion to  your  need for  a  p lace to  stay  in  Cape 

Town? 

 I  mean,  i f  next  week you have to go to  Cape Town,  

what  a re you going to  do d i f fe rent ly?   

MR KODWA:   I  am a deputy min is ter  Mr Chai rperson.   I  am 

a deputy min is ter  o f  s tate.   There  are cer ta in  mat ters that  

wi th in  the state  are wel l  regulated,  and beyond that  

because i t  is  d i f f i cu l t  somet imes to  regulate behaviour,  but  10 

some of  the lessons that  cer ta in ly  one I  spoke about  in  my 

statement ,  assess that  when such issues come your  way,  

you have got  to  be able to  manage the percept ion.   

 In  2015 I  was not  in  government ,  where some of  th is  

hospi ta l i t y  was g iven.   In  2017 I  was not  in  government .   In  

2021 I  am par t  o f  the nat ional  execut ives of  the count ry and 

that  o f  the ru l ing par ty.   How somet imes we re late on  issues 

that  may g ive r i se to  the wrong percept ion which may 

dest roy the very same standing and revolut ion va lues which  

we represent ,  those are the issues that  as you go in to Cape 20 

Town,  i f  you were to  go to  Cape Town tomorrow,  

unfor tunate ly  we are locked in  Gauteng.   

 I  cannot  leave fo r  Cape Town.   Otherwise,  i f  I  were 

to  go to  Cape Town,  I  wi l l  cer ta in ly  make sure tha t  those 

issues are wel l  managed.   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  I  am looking for  speci f ics.   Let  

me ask you a very speci f ic  quest ion.   i f  next  t ime af ter  the 

lockdown is  l i f ted  and when you are on hol iday,  you need to 

go . . .  you want  to  go on hol iday  in  Cape Town and Mr  

McKay offers h is  house,  are you go ing to  take i t  or  not?  

MR KODWA:   Mr Chaskalson,  I  have got  a  number of  

f r iends.   Very good f r iends,  very genuine and they mean 

genuine,  when many of  them they offer  hospi ta l i ty.   I  am 

cer ta in  you have got  such f r iends,  whether  in  Cape Town or  

anywhere e lse.   10 

 Many of  them I  do not  have to suspect  them.   They 

are genuine f r iends who real ly  comes f rom the hear t .   Many 

of  them i t  is  because of  the i r  condi t ions Chai rperson.   How 

they were brought  up themselves.   They know what  i t  means 

to  help.   

 Because they themselves,  to  be where they are,  they 

were helped  by  others and th is  not ion in  our  re la t ions  

somet imes as human being we must  not  forget  because we 

must  not  c reate a socia l  d is tance between ourselves and 

those that  a re in  need and those who are our  f r iends.   20 

 I  am not  suggest ing that  you must  accept  anyth ing  

that  your  f r iendship,  your  f r iends are g iv ing to  you.   For  

example,  a  good f r iend now being the member of  a  deputy 

min is te r,  there are cer ta in  th ings that  you must  declare.   

You are requi red to  declare.   
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 So beyond that ,  you know that  you cannot  jus t  

accept  anyth ing,  because in  government  there  are cer ta in  

th ings that  you must  declare.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  maybe Mr Chaskalson is  not  put t ing 

th is  as d i rect l y  and maybe as i t  should be.   We do not  have 

Mr McKay’s vers ion about  these mat ters.   But  that  is  

because he has chosen not  to  g ive the Commission any 

vers ion,  but  on the face of  what  we see here and what  you 

have come to see here as wel l ,  i t  would appear that  he may 

wel l  have expected you or  asked you to  assis t  h im or  h is  10 

ent i t y  to  get  tenders in  c i rcumstances where he or  h is  ent i t y  

was going to  make some donat ions to  on or  o ther  s t ructure  

of  the ANC,  or  and he may have thought  that  because he 

has assis ted you as a f r iend you could agree to  p lay a ro le  

in  assis t ing h im.   

 Now on your  vers ion he cont inued to do that  even 

af ter  you had to ld  h im you do not  get  involved in  tenders.   

So I  th ink Mr Chaskalson may be want ing to  establ i sh  

whether  you would st i l l  p lace yoursel f  in  a s i tuat ion where 

you ask for  assis tance f rom somebody who is  go ing to  ask  20 

you to  get  involved in  tenders even when you have to ld  

them you do not  get  involved in  tenders.   

 I  th ink that  i s ,  a t  least  I  th ink that  is  what  he is  

having in  mind.   So in  other  words do you have a pr inc ip led 

posi t ion that  says i f  somebody has acted l ike th is ,  then I  am 
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not  go ing to  ask for  the i r  ass is tance or  i s  the posi t ion that  

look,  I  do not  know.   

 I  w i l l  see,  I  wi l l  look at  the s i tuat ion as i t  ar i ses or  

what  the posi t ion  is .   I  th ink that  is  what  he is  t ry ing to  

establ ish.   Whether  one of  the  th ings you would do 

d i f ferent ly  go ing forward would be that  i f  you know that ,  i f  I  

ask fo r  assis tance f rom th is  person,  th is  person might  be  

having  an expectat ion that  in  re turn I  wi l l  do someth ing that  

I  am not  prepared to  get  involved in ,  you would ra ther  not  

ask fo r  ass is tance f rom that  person.   10 

 Or how you would handle the  s i tuat ion going  

forward.   

MR KODWA:   Thank you very much Chai rperson for  that  

c la r i ty.   You have put  i t  in  much more c learer  te rms.   I  must  

say that  my pr inc ip le  is  captured in  my statement  

Chai rperson.   I  am unambiguous about  issues of  in f luencing  

tender procurement  wi th in  the  state,  us ing proximi ty  and I  

must  s tate that  my re lat ionship wi th  Mr McKay or  any other  

person is  not  a  procure re la t ionship  or  anyth ing.   

 There was never  on my par t  an expectat ion of  20 

grat i f icat ion or  reward or  a  k ickback.   There was not .   In  the 

absence of  h is  vers ion to  the  Commission,  i t  i s  poss ib le  that  

the sent iment  that  you are expressing Chai rperson is  

possib le  in  the absence of  h is  vers ion.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   
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MR KODWA:   But  I  do not  th ink that ,  there should  not  be  

any doubt  about  where I  s tand on issues of  s tate 

procurement  and how business people would pers is t  to  use 

the i r  prox imi ty.   I  have a lways made i t  very c lear  to  my 

f r iends,  that  our  f r iendship i s  somet imes based on va lues.   

 Not  on mater ia l  th ings what  you have and so on.   We 

may f rom t ime to t ime say a few th ings,  but  we share  

cer ta in  va lues of  f r iendship.   So the very c lear  p r inc ip le ,  I  

would not  put  mysel f  in  a s i tuat ion where I  have to  f ind 

mysel f  to  answer about  government  te l l ing us,  ar is ing out  o f  10 

our  re la t ionship.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Chaska lson? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  want  to  put  another  d i f f icu l t y  to  

you,  and i t  is  an issue that  I  f ind very t roubl ing.   You have 

expla ined ear l ie r  that  you owe Mr McKay a mi l l ion rand.   

You have expla ined ear l ier  that  i f  he were to  come to you 

tomorrow and say a l r ight ,  I  have had enough of  wai t ing,  you 

must  pay,  that  you would not  be in  a posi t ion to  pay.   

 That  g ives  h im a  huge amount  of  power over  you.   

Because i t  means that  he holds in  h is  hands,  the power to  20 

sequest rate you.   You appreciate that?  To make you 

insolvent .   Which  means you lose  your  job  as member of  

par l iament  and you lose your  job as  deputy min is te r.   

MR KODWA:   I  can assure you that  he wi l l  never  do that .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l ,  that  i s  what  you say and 
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that  is  what  you bel ieve and I  am sure i t  is  what  you hope.   

But  the ev idence that  we have heard at  th is  Commission,  

suggests that  there is  a t  least  a  st rong pr ima fac ie  case 

that  Mr McKay has been gui l ty  o f  repeated counts  of  f raud 

and cont ravent ions of  the prevent ion of  corrupt  act iv i t ies  

act .    

 Prevent ion and combat ing of  cor rupt  act i v i t ies act .   

A t  the very least ,  what  we have seen today is  that  he has 

been account ing  for  personal  payments to  you and 

donat ions to  the  ANC,  as leg i t imate company expenses 10 

re la t ing to  tenders.   

 Now that  is  a  f raud on the company and i t  i s  

probably  a  f raud on SARS as wel l .   Now I  want  to  pu t  to  you 

that  i t  is  an untenable posi t ion to  have a deputy min is ter  o f  

in te l l igence who is  behold to  a person who is  at  r isk of  

prosecut ion,  a t  ser ious r i sk of  prosecut ion for  f raud and 

corrupt ion.   

 What  i s  your  response to that?  

MR KODWA:   I  agree wi th  you Mr Chaskalson and these are 

the issues of  percept ion I  was ta lk ing about .   That  as  20 

leaders as we in teract  and in ter face wi th  cer ta in  ind iv iduals,  

where they found themselves as you just  descr ibed now,  i t  

does have an impact  on us.   

 So that  percept ion is  an issue that  i t  is  a  burden on  

me,  that  is  an issue that  I  have to  manage.   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l ,  how do you propose to 

manage i t?   I  am not  sure there  is  a  way of  managing i t ,  

shor t  o f  ask ing to  be redeployed somewhere.   

MR KODWA:  No.   I  am not  sure i f  that  quest ion is  fa i r  and 

appropr ia te Chai rperson.   Who must  be deployed? 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  what  Mr Chaskalson is  saying  is  th is .   

Your  response was that  you wou ld need to manage the 

s i tuat ion.   So he is  asking how you would propose to 

manage the s i tua t ion and he is  saying in  effect  as  long as 

you are in  government  he cannot  see how you would 10 

manage i t .   

 Maybe i f  you asked to be deployed somewhere e lse,  

that  might  be d i f ferent .   His po int  is  s imply th is  as  I  

understand i t ,  but  he wi l l  te l l  us i f  I  misunderstood h is  point .   

His point  i s  i t  is  a  s i tuat ion that  should  be avoided to be  

indebted to  somebody in  so be i t  an amount  over  a long 

per iod wi thout  paying i t  back,  par t icu lar ly  where and I  am 

adding th is .  

 Mr Chaskalson d id not  add i t ,  where on the face of  

i t ,  i t  would appear that  th is  person does have expectat ions 20 

for  you to  do cer ta in  th ings about  tenders affect ing h is  

ent i t y  and on your  vers ion,  he  cont inues to  harbour those 

expectat ions even when you have to ld  h im you do not  want  

to  get  involved in  tenders.   

 He cont inues to  send you emai ls .   He wants you to  
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be up to  date about  what  is  happening about  tenders that  

re la te to  h is  ent i t y.   So what  Mr Chaskalson is  saying,  th is  

is  a  dangerous s i tuat ion to  be in ,  when you are in  

government ,  par t icu la r ly  a t  execut ive level .   

 Because whi le  you might  say I  know h im,  he wi l l  not  

do A,  B,  C,  D,  maybe that  might  no t  be a good answer.   Just  

to  be in  that  s i tuat ion,  is  someth ing that  should be avoided 

because people to  change.   I  mean your  own brother  can 

change that  you th ink you have known a l l  your  l i fe .   

 So people do  change.   What  i f  he got  in to  a f i x  10 

h imsel f ,  and now said wel l ,  th is  i s  what  I  demand,  otherwise 

Mr Chaskalson made the example,  that  when you owe 

somebody money and they demand payment ,  you fa i led to  

pay.    

 That  is  a  ground for  them to br ing  an appl i cat ion to  

the High Court  to  have you sequest rated and i f  you get  

sequest rated,  you cannot  cont inue to  be a member of  

par l iament .   You cannot  cont inue to  be a member of  the 

execut ive.   

 So i t  is  a  th reat .   I t  is  someth ing  that  somebody in  20 

h is  d iscret ion can use any t ime,  i f  he wants to  achieve 

someth ing.   Mr Chaskalson is  saying i t  is  d i f f icu l t  to  see 

how you would manage th is  s i tuat ion,  should Mr McKay do 

what  you do not  expect  h im to do.   

MR KODWA:    I  agree,  I  accept  tha t  sent iment  Chai rperson.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.   Yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  want  to  put  i t  a  l i t t le  b i t  more 

st rongly.   I t  is ,  i f  we are ta lk ing at  the level  o f  percept ions,  

there i s  a  very rea l  r i sk that  Mr McKay may threaten to  do  

that  which you th ink he wi l l  not  do,  and because he holds 

power  over  you in  that  respect ,  the  publ i c  can never  be  

complete ly  conf ident  that  he is  no t  exer t ing that  power to  

make you do th ings that  you do not  want  to  do.   

 That  to  me,  seems to be a real  p roblem.  

MR KODWA:   I  th ink I  accept  to  an extent  that  as an opin ion 10 

Mr Chaskalson.   I  know Mr McKay has got  power over  me 

and I  do not  th ink  I  want  to  make fur ther  po int  about  i t .   He 

has no power over  me,  in  the same way I  have no power  

over  h im.   

 We are just  f r iends and I  th ink you were just  

expressing your  opin ion.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   [ ind is t inc t ]  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  cannot  hear  you Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai rperson,  i t  is  my opin ion that  

i t  is  someth ing that  I  would put  to  you as a very  wel l ,  I  20 

mean you have g iven . . .  I  put  i t  to  you as an untenable  

s i tuat ion.   You have g iven me your  response.   I  do not  th ink  

we need to take i t  fur ther  than that .   

 But  I  cer ta in ly  s tand by my submission that  i t  is  an 

untenable s i tuat ion.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  and Mr Kodwa,  I  do not  

have fur ther  quest ions beyond those that  I  have a l ready 

asked.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Thank you Mr Chaskalson.   Mr  

S ikakane,  Mr Kodwa your  counsel  would be  ent i t led to  re-

examine you.   That  is  to  ask you some quest ions of  

c la r i f icat ion where he th inks there is  a  need to c la r i fy  a t  th is  

s tage.   

 Mr S ikakane,  do  you have any re-examinat ion?  Can 10 

you hear me Mr S ikakane? 

ADV SIKAKANE SC:   Thank you,  I  can hear  you.   I t  is  not  

Mr Kodwa now,  i t  is  me.   

CHAIRPERSON:   JA.   

ADV SIKAKANE SC:   Chai r,  judging by the approach taken 

by  the wi tness and as candid as  he  was,  i t  would spoi l  

anyth ing for  me to ask h im quest ions.   I  th ink we must  be 

great ly  that  he is  candid and not  be  punished for  i t .   I  would  

not  l ike to  pun ish h im for  be ing candid wi th  fur ther  

quest ions.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SIKAKANE SC:   That  would be a l l  f rom us.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no that  i s  f ine.   Mr Kodwa,  we have 

reached the end of  . . .  we have reached the end of  your  

ev idence.   So unless you have someth ing to  say,  a  last  
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th ing to  say,  I  am ready to  excuse you.  

MR KODWA:   Thank you very much Chai rperson.   Thank 

you very much fo r  th is  opportuni ty.   A very ra re opportuni ty  

and a pr iv i lege to  come before you.   L ike I  sa id  in  my 

statement ,  I  am qui te  inspi red by the manner in  wh ich you 

carry yoursel f ,  in  par t icu lar  Chai rperson.   

 Inc lud ing as  we engage wi th  these d i f f icu l t  

quest ions,  that  your  ca l l  i s  not  a  condemnatory ca l l .   You do 

not  ca l l  us to  appear before you because you condemn our  

act ion.   As a Commission,  par t  o f  i ts  mandate is  to  enqui re,  10 

is  to  invest igate and make f ind ings.   

 So i t  is  possib le that  indeed people may pass 

judgments on the  basis of  the wi tness’s vers ion and I  th ink  

we must  cont inue to  support  you unt i l  you come wi th  a f ina l  

repor t  Chai rperson.   I  want  to  a lso thank you Mr Chaskalson 

for  the very d i f f icu l t  quest ions you have asked and put  me 

through today.   

 I  must  say that  they were not  easy quest ions,  but  

you had to ask those quest ions because i t  was important  o f  

me and important  for  the people of  South Af r i ca and for  th is  20 

Commission to  ge t  the s ide of  my vers ion,  because a  lo t  has 

been commented about ,  has been wr i t ten about  and I  th ink 

today those who care to  l is ten wou ld know what  is  an extent  

o f  my vers ion.  

 But  I  deal t  wi th  i ssues beyond just  what  may appear 
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to  be impl icat ing  me.   I  do want  to  thank the Mabuza 

at torney,  par t i cu lar ly  Mr S ikakane fo r  h is  leadership  

guidance.   As we were coming here,  many of  them I  

consul ted wi th  them,  they were not  avai lab le.    

 I  want  to  thank Mr S ikakane and Mr Mabuza fo r  the i r  

gu idance.   I  want  to  thank you very much Chai rperson,  I  

wish you a l l  the best .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much Mr Kodwa.   Thank 

you,  you . . .  thank you very much Mr S ikakane.   You are now 

excused Mr Kodwa.    10 

MR KODWA:   Thank you very much Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Mr Chaskalson,  thank you to  

you as wel l .   I  hope you can st i l l  hear  me.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  can Chai r,  and I  was about  to  

ask i f  I  could be excused to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no you are  a lso excused.   Just  fo r  

the benef i t  o f  the  publ i c ,  I  am going to  take a break when 

Mr Seleka wi l l  come in .   The next  wi tness I  wi l l  be hear ing 

is  an expert  who wi l l  g ive some evidence in  re la t ion to  

Eskom.  20 

 That  wi l l  be the next  wi tness.   So I  wi l l  ad journ,  we 

take a break so that  they can come in ,  but  o therwise Mr  

Chaskalson,  Mr S ikakane,  Mr Kodwa,  you are a l l  excused.   

Thank you.    

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   No put  h im on the screen not  – not  the  

wi tness.   Mr Seleka why are you running away?  Am I 

muted?  Oh I  am – why are you running away Mr Seleka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I   was c los ing the door  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For  the f ive minutes – past  f ive minutes  

she is  t ry ing to  ge t  you on the screen.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Good af te rnoon.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Good af te rnoon Chai rperson.  10 

MR POON:    Good af te rnoon Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Good af te rnoon Mr Poon.   Are you 

ready? 

MR POON:   I  am Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .   Mr Seleka do you want  to  

just  make a few points to  assis t  the  publ i c  to  fo l low what  Mr  

– what  necessi ta ted Mr Poon’s ev idence and what  i t  re la tes 

to  before he gets sworn in?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes thank you Chai rperson.   I  w i l l  

indeed do so.   Mr Poon is  ca l led as an expert  wi tness to  20 

test i fy  on the four  – three suspens ion le t te rs  that  had been 

tendered in to ev idence by Mr Zethemba Khoza par t icu lar ly  

to  test i fy  on the proper t ies of  those le t ters and the locat ion  

of  the le t ters wh ich would mean that  where those le t ters  

e i ther  o r ig inate or  where he was able to  f ind them in the 
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backed up computer  data of  the re levant  wi tnesses.  

 And th is  par t i cu la r  exerc ise by Mr Poon was done as 

a resul t  o f  Mr Koko’s  request  for  these le t ters  to  be  

searched for  in  the backed up data – computer  data of  Ms 

Danie ls ,  o f  Mr Koko h imsel f  and of  Mr Zethemba Khoza.    

 So the expert .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  maybe that  i s  not  the whole s tory.   I  

th ink that  the invest igators and the legal  team were  asked –  

I  cer ta in ly  sa id there must  be an invest igat ion in to the 

computers of  cer ta in  Eskom personnel  to  t ry  and see 10 

whether  there was support  –  I  sa id  there should be fur ther  –  

fur ther  exper t  to  look at  the repor t  that  was made by some 

previous experts  before Professor  Lawrence.  I  sa id in  o rder  

to  establ ish the i r  or ig in  and then as a resul t  o f  that  

Professor  Lawrence came and gave evidence.  He d id not  

complete g iv ing h is  ev idence because I  asked h im to go an 

look at  fur ther  ev idence.   But  Mr Koko d id say when he was 

to ld  about  Mr – Professor  Lawrence evidence in  re la t ion to  

the – those pre-suspension le t ters.   He d id say why or  

chal lenge the commission or  the  invest igators to  go and 20 

look at  h is  computer  because I  th ink wi ther  he  sa id 

expressly  o r  i t  was impl ied that  they would not  f ind anyth ing 

of  re levance to the issues in  h is  computer.   I  th ink that  –  

that  is  my recol lect ion of  how i t  came about .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no that  is  cor rect  Chai rperson.   I  
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was going to  go  in to the Chai rperson’s request  but  the 

Chai rperson has ar t i cu lated i t  that  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And Mr – or  Professor  Lawrence rather  

has done the subsequent  fo l low up to  the Chai rperson’s 

request  and in  that  process we then got  to  involve Mr Poon 

as wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay a l l  r ight .   The – Mr Poon the 10 

Regist rar  wi l l  admin iste r  the oath or  a ff i rmat ion to  you r ight  

now.  

MR POON:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Regist ra r.  

REGISTRAR:   Mr  Poon wi l l  you be tak ing the  oath  or  the  

aff i rmat ion? 

MR POON:   A ff i rmat ion p lease.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your  fu l l  names fo r  the record.  

MR POON:   My name Lance Poon 

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  mak ing the  20 

prescr ibed aff i rmat ion? 

MR POON:   Not  a t  a l l .  

REGISTRAR:   Do aff i rm that  the ev idence you wi l l  g ive wi l l  

be the t ru th;  the whole t ru th and noth ing but  the t ru th;  i f  so  

p lease ra ise your  r ight  hand and say,  I  t ru ly  aff i rm.  
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MR POON:   I  t ru ly  aff i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very  much Mr Poon.   Thank 

you fo r  avai l ing  yoursel f  to  ass is t  the commission.   Mr  

Seleka wi l l  then lead your  ev idence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai rperson.   Just  for  

housekeeping purposes Mr Poon’s aff idavi t  is  found in  

Eskom Bundle 19  on page 427 of  the hard copy.   Mr Poon 

wi l l  be us ing the e lect ronic bundle.   Mr Poon in  the 

e lect ronic i t  is  found on page 895.  

MR POON:   Thank you.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   The aff idavi t  Chai rperson runs f rom 

page 427 to 439 –  e lect ronic bundle .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   E lect ronic Bundle Mr Poon is  907 

the last  page.  

MR POON:   I  have i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You have i t .   On page 438 the hard copy 

page 906 Mr Poon there is  a  s ignature just  above name 

Lance Poon,  you see that?  

MR POON:   Yes I  do.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   You conf i rm tha t  to  be your  s ignature? 

MR POON:   That  i s  my s ignature.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Do you conf i rm th is  a lso to  be your  

aff idavi t?  

MR POON:   Yes I  do.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   You conf i rm the correctness of  the  

contents of  the af f idavi t?  

MR POON:   I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Chai rperson may I  beg 

leave to  have the  aff idavi t  o f  Mr Poon on page 427 of  the 

hard copies together  wi th  the annexures thereto admi t ted as  

Exhib i t  U44 .1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you just  to  – for  the sake of  

accuracy Mr Poon you conf i rm the contents of  your  aff idavi t  

to  be t rue  and cor rect  to  the best  knowledge of  your  – to  10 

your  best  knowledge and bel ie f?  

MR POON:   I  do Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   The aff idavi t  o f  Mr Lance Poon that  

s ta r ts  at  page 427 wi l l  be admi t ted and wi l l  marked as 

Exhib i t  –  just  repeat  i t  Mr Seleka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   U44.1  

CHAIRPERSON:   U 44.1.  Okay thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Thank you Chai rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you may proceed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  w i l l  proceed.   Mr Poon has expla ined 20 

in  the in t roductory remark – you have been cal led  as an 

expert  to  g ive  ev idence in  the f ie ld  of  in format ion  

technology par t i cu la r ly  in  regard  to  the proper t ies  that  

befa l l  suspension le t ters and the locat ion thereof .  The 

computer  imaged data base.   You understand that .  
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MR POON:   Yes I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Just  by way of  background could  

you te l l  the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second Mr Seleka.   Reg ist rar  I  

do not  know whether  you have adjusted anyth ing previously  

I  would see on the l ive screen the person speaking at  a 

par t icu lar  t ime r ight  now I  have Mr Seleka on the large 

screen when Mr Poon speak or  responds I  do not  see h im.   

So when Mr Poon speaks he should be on the la rge  screen 

and when Mr Seleka speaks he comes back.  Wi l l  you do 10 

that  now?  Okay a l l  r ight .   Okay a l l  r ight  cont inue Mr  

Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You should not  make me a l l  famous 

Chai r.   Mr Poon – Mr Poon what  is  –  just  expla in  to  the 

Chai rperson what  is  your  occupat ion.  

MR POON:   Chai r  I  am a Dig i ta l  Forensic Invest igator.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on one second.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You see at  the moment  Mr – yes th is  is  

how i t  should be.   When you respond Mr Poon you have – 20 

your  face should to  – be on the large screen and Mr  Seleka 

goes to  the back.   When he asks the quest ion he comes to 

the f ront  and you go back.   That  is  how i t  should be.   Now I  

th ink i t  i s  go ing  to  be l i ke  that .   Okay a l l  r ight .   P lease 

respond Mr Poon.  
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MR POON:   Thanks Chai r.   Mr  Seleka as I  was saying I  am 

a Dig i ta l  Forensic Invest igator  as  wel l  as an eDiscovery  

Pract i t ioner.   I  consul t  in  areas that  re la te to  the forensic 

co l lect ion and analys is  of  e lect ronic insta l l  in format ion.    

 Insofar  as i t  eDiscovery i s  concerned I  manage the  

process as  wel l  as assis tants.   My two assistants that  

support  the rev iew and analys is  of  –  as wel l  as the 

e lect ronic 00:12:02 in format ion that  is  typ ica l l y  considered 

in  an invest igat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So in  summary Mr Poon do you – your  10 

f ie ld  is  in  computers.  

MR POON:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Your  f ie ld  of  work.   And as a Dig i ta l  

Forensic Invest igator.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Cover  h is  academic prof i le  Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes that  is  correct  Chai r.  As a  Dig i ta l  

Forensic Invest igator  what  are your  qual i f i cat ions Mr  Poon.  

MR POON:   I  have a Bachelor  o f  Commerce and Informat ion 

Systems which I  obta ined f rom Wits Univers i ty  and in  

addi t ion to  that  over  the years I  have obta ined cer t i f icat ions 20 

re la t ing to  wi th  respect  to  eDiscovery as an example  I  have 

a c lear  00:12:54 cer t i f ied admin ist rat ion cer t i f icat ion and as  

for  Dig i ta l  Forens ics I  obta ined a cer t i f icat ion as an In  case 

cer t i f ied fo rensics examiner  and in  addi t ion to  that  not  

d i rect ly  re la ted to  IT forensics I  k ind of  a lso have a 
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cer t i f icate in  forensic law which I  obta ined f rom the North 

West  Univers i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When d id you obta in your B.Com degree 

in  in fo rmat ion sys tems? 

MR POON:   Oh Chai r  I  th ink that  was in  2000.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And f rom which univers i t y  d id  you get  i t?  

MR POON:   Univers i t y  o f  the Wi twatersrand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   And the cer t i f ied c learwel l  

eDiscovery Admin ist rator  Cert i f icate when d id you get  that?  

MR POON:   I  do not  have the date .   I  do not  have the exact  10 

year  but  I  th ink that  was around 2011/2012.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And in  order  to  do  that  cer t i f icate what  are  

the requi rements?  Must  you have a degree a l ready?  Must  

you have matr ic?  What  do you need to have? 

MR POON:   No so those par t i cu lar  cer t i f icat ions were pure ly  

IT re la ted and they are associated wi th  IT systems.   So i t  

invo lved – i t  invo lved me going in  – in  p rovid ing  formal  

t ra in ing wi th  the  var ious inst i tu t ions that  p rovided that  

cer t i f icat ion and – and then wr i t ing an examinat ion  in  order  

to  successfu l l y  ob ta in the cer t i f i cat ion.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   And what  is  i t s  durat ion in  terms o f  how – 

how long do you s tudy for  i t  before you get  i t  –  o r  t ra in ing? 

MR POON:   Wel l  I  mean – ja  there is  –  there is  a  week long 

course associated wi th  that  Chai r  and then however much 

t ime i t  then requi res to  go th rough the mater ia l  subsequent  
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to  that  and then leading up to  the examinat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes and … 

MR POON:   So i f  the subs.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR POON:   Sorry Chai r.  I t  is  not  l ike a univers i ty  degree 

that  car r ies on for  a  number of  years.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   And what  does i t  he lp  – what  

sk i l ls  does i t  or  knowledge does i t  g ive you in  the IT or  

Dig i ta l  Forensic sector?  

MR POON:   I t  ass is ts  wi th  the understanding of  IT and in  10 

re la t ion to  the data that  is  used in  a forensic invest igat ion.   

I t  he lps to  ident i fy  a l l  –  or  become fami l ia r  wi th  the meta  

data associated wi th  the f i les,  how to manage speci f ic  f i les 

dependent  on the  type of  f i les they are,  how to look at  and 

analyse the – the  content  and how i t  then f i ts  in  re la t ion to 

where the documents were found or  the f i les were found for  

that  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Mr Seleka le t  you cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.  Thank you Chai r.   Perhaps 

Mr Poon you could share some l igh t  a lso in  regard to  B.Com 20 

Informat ion Systems.   Is  i t  a lso re la ted to  in format ion 

technology? 

MR POON:   Yes i t  is .   That  – that  par t icu lar  B.Com course  

was focussed on an in format ion systems speci f ica l ly  was 

focussed on the  analys is  and development  of  computer  
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systems which i t  a lso involved then the coding and 

programming sur rounding the development  of  such.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see.   So does i t  a lso have a bear ing on 

d ig i ta l  forensics?  

MR POON:   No not  speci f i ca l l y  wi th  d ig i ta l  forensics .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   Then you have the  Incase 

cer t i f icate examiner.  

MR POON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is  that  a lso  a course or  is  that  a  

designat ion? 10 

MR POON:   That  is  a lso – I  suppose i t  could be regarded as 

both in  order  to  get  that  designat ion you a lso have to  go  

through a t ra in ing programme which was in  the  Incase 

s i tuat ion I  th ink was at  least  two weeks ’ worth of  formal  

t ra in ing person to person t ra in ing  which then led up to  the 

study mater ia l  and leading up to  the exam in  order  to  

qual i fy  for  the cer t i f icat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So in  d ig i ta l  forensics what  would 

you say has been the length of  your  exper ience or  how 

much exper ience do you have in  d ig i ta l  fo rensics? 20 

MR POON:   Wel l  I  have been operat ing wi th in  the d ig i ta l  

forensics indust ry fo r  a  l i t t le  over  f i f teen years now.   

In i t ia l ly  I  spent  – i f  I  may speak to  my work background 

Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR POON:   So o f  that  f i f teen years in i t ia l l y  I  spent  about  

n ine a lmost  ten years at  KPMG forensics as an IT d ig i ta l  

forensic invest iga tor.   Subsequent  to  that  in  2015 I  had le f t  

KPMG and I  was then employed by Ernst  and Young where I  

led the i r  d ig i ta l  fo rensics pract ice for  a  per iod of  four  years 

which then led me up unt i l  the beginning of  2019 and f rom 

there I  have been operat ing as a so le propr ie to r  – or  sorry 

s t i l l  w i th in  the – wi th in  d ig i ta l  fo rensics wi th  eDiscovery.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see so r ight  now you are se l f -

employed? 10 

MR POON:   R ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You … 

CHAIRPERSON:   And – p lease cont inue Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You operate your  own company Mr Poon.  

MR POON:   That  i s  r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The – the Incase cer t i f ied examiner  te l l  

me more about  that .  

MR POON:   That  a lso is  a l igned wi th  a par t i cu lar  p iece of  

sof tware that  is  used wi th in  d ig i ta l  forensics indust ry  Chai r.   

So wi th in  – wi th in  that  course they go through how do you 20 

ident i fy  d ig i ta l  forensic devices which may conta in 

potent ia l ly  re levant  in format ion to  a par t icu la r  invest igat ion 

as an example.   I t  then inc ludes the co l lect ion or  fo rensics 

acquis i t ion  of  that  data.   How to do i t  in  a cor rect  manner  so  

that  you do not  –  that  you do not  then spoi l  or  contaminate 
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the ev idence.   And then i t  proceeds – and again  th is  is  

speci f ic  to  a p iece of  forensics sof tware  but  i t  teaches you 

how to then use that  forensic so f tware in  o rder  to  then 

analyse fo rensic data over  a number of  used cases wi th in  

an invest igat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  take i t  you wr i te  a – some examinat ion in  

order  to  get  that  cer t i f icate? 

MR POON:   That  i s  correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And before you wr i te  that  exam how long 

would you have – would you be requi red to  undertake the 10 

t ra in ing? 

MR POON:   As  I  had ment ioned ear l ier  Chai r  that  par t icu la r 

t ra in ing course I  th ink is  conducted over  a per iod  of  two 

weeks.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

MR POON:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And in  o rder  to  – to  undertake that  course  

is  there some academic requi rement  o r  requi rements that  

you must  meet  o r  some work re la ted exper ience that  you 

must  have achieved – so many years in  the sector  fo r  20 

example? 

MR POON:   No prerequis i tes as far  as I  can recal l  insofar  

as the educat ion is  concerned.   But  I  do recal l  that  there is  

a  prerequis i te  on the number of  years that  you are requi red 

to  – to  work wi th in  the indust ry before the cer t i f icat ion is  
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prov ided.   And the employer  where  you are work ing for  – or  

who you are work ing fo r  a t  the t ime needs to  provide a 

statement  to  at tes t  to  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR POON:   And support  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Excuse me d id you say the B.Com 

Informat ion Systems is  not  l inked to  Dig i ta l  Forensics? 

MR POON:   Yes Chai r  I  sa id that .   The in fo rmat ion Systems 

is  more d i rect ly  re la ted to  the  development  of  computer  

systems.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay a l l  r ight .    

MR POON:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Cont inue Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   So does i t  mean Mr  

Poon that  you would have ventured in to d ig i ta l  forensics  

af ter  your  s tudies  of  B.Com Informat ion Systems? 

MR POON:   Not  d i rect ly.   A f ter  I  graduated f rom univers i ty  I  

in i t ia l l y  went  to  work fo r  another  company before KPMG that  

was a company ca l led EDS and I  was there for  about  

three/ four  years before I  went  to  KPMG and whi ls t  I  was at  20 

EDS I  was involved in  the development  of  IT systems.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   So your  exper ience or  exposure to  

d ig i ta l  fo rensics  would have star ted when you were at  

KPMG. 

MR POON:   That  i s  correct .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   And that  spans f rom that  t ime onwards i t  

spans a per iod of  over  f i f teen years  you say? 

MR POON:   That  i s  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So what  year  would i t  have been when 

you star ted at  KPMG? 

MR POON:   I  th ink that  would be 2006 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   And – and you le f t  –  when d id you 

leave KPMG? 

MR POON:   A t  the end of  2014 and then I  s tar ted  – I  am 

sorry.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   So f rom 2005 to  end of  2014 you were at  

KPMG? 

MR POON:   That  i s  r ight  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   And dur ing  the t ime that  you were there 

how much of  your  work re la ted to  forensic d ig i ta l  fo rensics? 

MR POON:   On a  fu l l - t ime basis Chai r  that  was – that  was 

my ro le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   100%.  

MR POON:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And f rom 2006 to 2014 would be  – is  i t  20 

e ight  years?  

MR POON:   I  th ink that  is  n ine I  th ink Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   N ine years.  

MR POON:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l l  r ight  cont inue Mr Seleka.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   And f rom there on Mr Poon you 

jo ined Ernst  and Young that  would be 2015.  

MR POON:   Yes that  i s  r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Would be r ight .   And were you 

cont inu ing  to  be  work ing in  the f ie ld  of  d ig i ta l  fo rensics  at  

Ernst  and Young? 

MR POON:   That  is  correct .   So as I  ment ioned ear l ier  I  was 

the – I  led that  –  the i r  d ig i ta l  fo rensic p ract ice.  So I  was the  

par tner  in  charge of  d ig i ta l  forensics at  Ernst  and Young.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see.  10 

MR POON:   For  that  per iod of  four  years whi ls t  I  was there.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Wel l  you – you d id not  speci f ica l l y 

ment ion that  in  your  aff idavi t .  

MR POON:   I  d id  ment ion that  I  he ld d i rectorsh ips at  Ernst  

and Young.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   But  that  you led the  d ig i ta l  

forensics were you – you undercut t ing yoursel f  there.    

CHAIRPERSON:   What  posi t ions d id you hold at  KPMG? 

MR POON:   I  am sorry Chai r  could you p lease repeat  that?  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  posi t ions d id you hold at  KMPG? 20 

MR POON:   I  s tar ted off  when I  jo ined KMPG in 2006 I  th ink 

I  s tar ted off  as a  jun ior  IT invest igator  and then over  the 

years I  proceeded – I  got  promoted to  senior  IT invest igator,  

manager,  senior  manager and u l t imate ly  when I  le f t  –  when 

I  le f t  KPMG I  he ld  the posi t ion of  associate d i rector.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Okay and that  – Ernst  and Young 

how long were you there f rom when to when? 

MR POON:   From the beginning  of  2015 up unt i l  I  th ink i t  

was January or  February of  2019.   So that  was – that  would 

have been about  four  years.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes and – and your  posi t ions there? 

MR POON:   I  was the par tner  o r  d i rector.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Where d id that  put  you in  – in  the –  

in  regard to  the h ierarchy of  the un i t  which deal t  wi th  d ig i ta l  

forensics?  Were you the head of  such a uni t  or  department  10 

or  where were you in  the h ierarchy? 

MR POON:   Yes I  was the head of  that  par t icu la r  un i t  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay and fo r  how long were you the 

head? 

MR POON:   For  four  years.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh when they appointed you they 

appointed you to  that  posi t ion.  

MR POON:   That  i s  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .   And for  the sake of  

completeness are  you by any chance able to  ind icate more  20 

or  less how many d ig i ta l  forensics you have done in  your  

l i fe?  

MR POON:   I  do not  th ink I  would  be  able to  quant i fy  that  

Chai r.   I t  –  as I  ind icated before i t  was my fu l l - t ime ro le at  

KPMG and then obviously at  Ernst  and Young as wel l .    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR POON:   And there were many pro jects that  we were 

involved in .  

CHAIRPERSON:   To t ry  and g ive  me a p ic ture because I  

want  to  have some p icture.   You know i f  you ta lk  about  a  

pol i ce off i cer  you could say how many cases have you 

invest igated – they might  say I  th ink over  1000 or  they 

might  say I  do not  know but  i t  cannot  be less  than X  

number.   I  am t ry ing to  estab l ish the extent  o f  your  

exper ience in  th is  f ie ld .   Are you able to  assis t  in  that  10 

regard? 

MR POON:   I  am not  sure I  would be able to  Cha i r  there 

were many engagements where they ran for  –  fo r  many 

months and then some that  ran jus t  for  a  week or  two.   So i t  

would be very d i f f icu l t  to  actual ly  quant i fy  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Wel l  there are s izes a lso  d i f fer.   

Some would be smal l  invest igat ions 

MR POON:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Others would  be medium,  others  wi l l  be  

qui te  b ig .  20 

MR POON:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Anyth ing you can te l l  me in  regard to  

those th ings that  could assis t  me.  I  made an example about  

a pol i ce off icer  I  should make an example maybe about  a  

Judge as wel l .    You can ask a Judge how many judgments  
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have you wr i t ten?  Or how many cases you have heard?  

You know.   And a Judge would be able to  say we l l  I  have 

wr i t ten no less than so many judgments.   He or  she might  

not  be able to  g ive you the exact  number but  he or  she can 

te l l  you at  least  not  less than X number.   So are you able at  

a l l  to  g ive me any ind icat ion? 

MR POON:   That  again Chai r  would  be very d i f f icu l t .   I  w i l l  –  

that  number that  comes to mind i f  I  had to  hazard a  guess 

you know at  least  100 but  how far  over  100 or  over  200 i f  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  know.  10 

MR POON:   I t  would be d i f f icu l t  to  say.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR POON:   I f  I  had known that  I  would one day answer th is  

quest ion I  would have taken more note.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no,  no that  is  a l l  r ight .   Wel l  maybe 

we should te l l  you why we ask these quest ions and you may 

know a l ready.   We just  need to –  to  see what  exper ience 

you have in  th is  par t icu lar  f ie ld  so – but  le t  me a l low Mr  

Seleka now to cont inue.    

MR POON:   Thank you Chai r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank – thank you.   Mr Poon r ight  now 

you say you own your  own consu l t ing f i rm EM Discovery 

PTY LTD.   Is  i t  d ig i ta l  forensics that  your  consul t ing f i rm is  

engaged in  o r  someth ing e lse? 

MR POON:   I t  is  engaged in  d ig i ta l  forensics as wel l  as 
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eDiscovery which is  –  which is  a  re la ted – re la ted task.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   You wi l l  just  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   You may have asked th is  Mr Seleka but  

just  in  case you d id not  i f  you d id  not  you can le t  h im ta lk  

about  h is  connect ion wi th  the commission.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   No I  have not  asked h im that .   

Thank you Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then Mr Poon you could expla in your  

connect ion wi th  the commission or  serv ice  to  the 10 

commission.  

MR POON:   Yes.   Chai r  f rom probably the middle of  2018 in  

the very ear ly  days of  the commission I  was – and at  that  

t ime I  was st i l l  work ing at  Ernst  and Young.   I  was 

appointed by the commission  and cont racted the 

commission to  per fo rm amongst  other  th ings d ig i ta l  

forensics and eDiscovery type serv ices.   And I  have been 

par t  o f  the – you would be aware o f  the DFT team.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR POON:   The Dig i ta l  Forensic Technology team.   I  have 20 

been a par t  o f  that  team s ince the – the star t  o f  my 

appointment .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    Okay.   And you cont inue to  be  par t  o f  

the – of  the – of  that  –  of  the DFT? 

MR POON:   That  i s  correct  Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Poon you wi l l  

expla in  in  a moment  what  the lega l  team had asked you to  

do pursuant  to  the Chai rperson’s request  but  can you 

expla in that  what  you were asked to do re la tes or  f i ts  in  the  

d ig i ta l  forensic f ie ld?  

MR POON:   Yes i t  does f i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You understand my quest ion.  

MR POON:   Yes that  is  cor rect .   I t  does f i t  w i th in  a d ig i ta l  

forensics f ie ld .   I  mean i t  invo lved the – the ext rac t ion of  10 

d ig i ta l  ev idence f rom even just  that  were requi red and 

involves the analys is  of  data that  is  conta ined wi th in  those 

images which is  very much a d ig i ta l  forensics task.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   So to  use the analogy i f  a  person 

has commit ted a  cr ime,  thef t  or  murder  you look fo r  a  

cr iminal  lawyer because whatever  offence the person has 

commit ted fa l ls  square ly  wi th in  a cr iminal  – the  cr iminal  

f ie ld  of  law.   

MR POON:   R ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So is  i t  the same exerc ise that  you were  20 

requi red to  do that  i f  fe l l  square ly  wi th in  the d ig i ta l  forensic  

f ie ld?  

MR POON:   Yes that  i s  what  my understanding of  that  would  

be.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes and just  before I  ask you that  I  see 
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that  you ment ion  in  your  aff idavi t  you are a fu l l  –  a fu l l  

member of  the Inst i tu te of  Commercia l  Forensic  

Pract i t ioners.  

MR POON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Can you expla in to  the Chai rperson what  

is  that  inst i tu te?  

MR POON:   The Inst i tu te o f  Commercia l  Forensic  

Pract i t ioners is  an NGO wi th in  South Af r ican which  has a  

membership of  –  I  have le f t  them qui te  some t ime ago so I  

am not  too sure  how b ig the membership i s  but  i t  is  a  10 

membership body which – which t r ies to  se l f - regulate  

themselves wi th in  the – the forens ic indust ry and i t  is  not  

l im i ted to  you know i t  evolves or  inc ludes a l l  types of  

commercia l  forensics.   So you have commercia l  forensic 

accountants.   Forensic at to rneys wi th  legal  backgrounds 

and then i t  a lso  inc ludes then memberships f rom dig i ta l  

forensic invest iga tors.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is  i t  l ike. .  

MR POON:   So. .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Go ahead.  20 

MR POON:   No I  was just  go ing to  add that  I  was co-opted 

onto that  board whi ls t  I  was st i l l  a t  KMPG and I  spent  four  

years as a non-execut ive d i rector  whi le  I  was at  ICFP.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see.   Is  i t  s imi lar  to  a pro fessional  

body l ike SICA for  accountants?  



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 158 of 266 
 

MR POON:   I  suppose i t  would be s imi la r.   I  th ink  the – in  

many respects they t ry  to  achieve the same th ing in  that  

they want  to  mainta in a h igh standard of  forensic 

pract i t ioners wi th in  South Af r i ca.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Your eth ics,  the professions,  the  

00:34:48.  

MR POON:   That  i s  correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   How ( ta lk ing over  one another) .  

MR POON:   That  i s  correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see.   Now le t  us  – le t  us  deal  w i th  what 10 

you were asked to do.  In  th is  case just  expla in what  you 

understood was the requi rement  in  – f rom your  – f rom our  

par t  to  yoursel f  and the exerc ise that  was requi red for  you 

to  do.  

MR POON:   Okay.   Wel l  as yoursel f  and Chai r  had 

previously spoken about  Professor  Ceci l  Louwrens test i f ied  

here at  the commission ear l ie r  th is  year  and – where he 

spoke about  you know cer ta in  – a cer ta in  four  pre-

suspension documents that  he had analysed which were 

at tachments to  an emai l  that  a  Mr Zethembe Khoza f rom 20 

Eskom had sent  to  Ms Veneta K le in and wi th in  tha t  emai l  

there were obviously the four  at tached emai ls  re la t ing to  the 

suspensions of  four  ind iv iduals.   And dur ing h is  test imony 

Professor  Louwrens inc luded h is  analys is  of  cer ta in  meta 

data that  he had found re lat ing to  those four  documents.  
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 But  Chai r  as you had ment ioned ear l ie r  there was 

some quest ions –  addi t ional  quest ions that  you asked which 

requi red – which  were unanswered and requi red  fur ther  

analys is  and you effect i ve ly  sent  h im to do some ext ra  

homework wi th  the analys is  of  computers.    

 So fo l lowing that  due to  you know resource  

const ra ints Professor  Louwrens requested me to assis t  h im 

in  ident i f y ing the very same four  documents – pre-

suspension documents on other  sets of  data that  inc luded 

backup fo lders  or  user  backup fo lders and emai l  a rch ives 10 

re la t ing to  Ms Suzanne Danie ls  as wel l  as Mr Zethembe 

Khoza and Mr Motshela Koko f rom Eskom which had 

previously not  been considered.  

 So that  was what  I  understood my task to  be.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  are you able then – do you conf i rm 

to the Chai rperson that  you were g iven suff i c ient  

in format ion to  do the exerc ise you were requi red to  do? 

MR POON:   Insofar  as the br ie f  is  concerned? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR POON:   I  be l ieve so yes.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   And d id you have to use any IT 

too ls  to  per form the task you were requi red to  do? 

MR POON:   I  was not  requi red to  but  obviously i t  becomes 

par t  and parcel  when you come to – to  analys ing d ig i ta l  

ev idence and in  th is  case I  u t i l ised a forensic  too l  –  



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 160 of 266 
 

analys is  too l  ca l led Newix Workstat ion and I  had ext racted 

the – the evidence which the commission  had acqu i red in to 

th is  too l  and ingested that  data in to the too l  in  o rder  to  then 

fac i l i ta te my analys is  of  the data conta ined wi th in  them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Okay.   So thank you –  so  once – 

once that  is  done you could – so you have the four  le t ters  

and you were requi red to  locate the whereabouts of  these 

le t ters,  the or ig in  of  the le t te rs,  the proper t ies of  the le t ters.   

Could you then  expla in to  the  Chai rperson in  respect  o f  the  

speci f ica l l y  the backed up computer  data of  the ind iv iduals  10 

which you had to look in to what  your  f ind ings were in  

re la t ion to  at  least  three of  them we have Ms Danie ls ,  Mr 

Koko and Mr Zethembe Khoza and you can take them one 

by one.    

MR POON:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe before –  maybe before that  Mr  

Seleka but  you must  te l l  me i f  I  misunderstood your  

quest ion.   Before  that  I  th ink i t  would be  important  for  the  

benef i t  o f  the pub l i c  to  be  to ld  what  these le t te rs ,  p re-

suspens ion  le t te rs  dea l t  w i th ,  who  were  they addressed to ,  20 

what  was –  and what  were  they say ing  to  the  addressees  

and who are  those addresses.   There  are  four  o f  them,  i s  i t  

no t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    There  a re  fou r,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   So,  you might  jus t  say  because the  
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ev idence has been led .   You mus t  –  you may jus t  do  tha t  

yourse l f  and say:   There  is  le t te r.   Th is  i s  what  –  th is  i s  –  i t  

was addressed to  so  and so .   Th is  i s  the  g i s t  o f  what  i t  

sa id .   And then move on and then you can take  i t  f rom 

there .   Jus t  so  tha t  the  pub l i c  knows what  a re  these pre-

suspens ion  le t te rs  tha t  we a re  obsessed w i th .   Okay? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    O therwise ,  they jus t  keep on hear ing ,  

you know,  th is  aspect ,  went  and look and come back and 

was sent  back and then th is  one  came back,  bu t  they do  10 

not  know what  these pre -suspens ions le t te rs  a re  a l l  about .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes-no,  cor rec t .   Mr  Poon,  we might  

have come to  touch on tha t ,  bu t  le t  me do the  exe rc ise  as  

the  Cha i rperson  requ i res .   You were  p rov ided w i th  two  

cop ies  o f  p re  –  t i t led  pre-suspens ions le t te rs  in  respect  o f  

four  Eskom Execut ives  back in  March 2015.   The one le t te r  

was addressed  to  Mr  Dan Marokane and tha t  le t te r  

purpo r ted  to  a l lege –  to  make cer ta in  a l legat ions about  

m isconduct  on  h is  par t ,  and tha t  re la ted  to  –  I  am look ing  

a t  the  le t te r  now a t  page 440 o f  the  bund le ,  page  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .11  March 2015 .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   Page 908  o f  the  

e lec t ron i c  bund le .   That  le t te r  i s  da ted  11 March 2015,  as  

the  Cha i rperson po in ts  ou t .   And i t  reads:  
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“Dear,  Mr  Marokane.  

Inv i ta t ion  to  a  pre -suspens ion  meet ing . ”  

Paragraph 1  reads:  

“The company i s  p resent ly  conduct ing  an  

invest iga t ion  in to  a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  

a l leged ly  commi t ted  by  you.  

The a l legat ion  o f  m isconduct ,  wh ich  w i l l  be  

invest iga ted  re la te  to ,  amongst  o thers ,  the  

fo l low ing. ”  

And th ree  sub-paragraphs 4 ,  the  f i rs t  one:  10 

“1 .1  As the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Emergency 

Commi t tee ,  you have been neg l igent  in  the  

management  o f  the  e lec t r i c i t y  sys tem dur ing  

the  t imes o f  emergency tha t  resu l ted  to  

unnecessary  load-shedd ing .  

1 .2  You were  gross l y  neg l igent  in  

manag ing  the  b road p rog ramme for  Medup i  

tha t  resu l ted  in  de lays  and costs  over runs.  

1 .3  You ac ted  i r regu lar ly  in  admin is te r ing  

and manag ing  the  coa l  purchase cont rac ts  to  20 

the  de t r iment  o f  Eskom. ”  

Paragraph 2 :  

“The company  has not  comple ted  i t s  

invest iga t ions.  

The pu rpose o f  the  invest iga t ions is  to  
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es tab l i sh  whether  they have grounds fo r  

d isc ip l ina ry  ac t ion .  

Hav ing  had regard  to  the  ser iousness o f  the  

a l legat ions and  the  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  your  

p resence may jeopard ise  the  i nves t iga t ion  in to  

the  a l leged misconduct ,  the  company is  o f  the  

v iew tha t  you shou ld  be  suspended  on fu l l  pay  

pend ing  the  f ina l i sa t ion  o f  the  invest iga t ion . ”  

Paragraph 3 :  

“You are  temporar i l y  suspended unt i l  fu r ther  10 

no t ice . ”  

Paragraph 4 ,  says:  

“You are  inv i ted  to  make a  representa t ion  to  

the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Board  o f  D i rec tors .  

The meet ing  w i l l  be  he ld  on  12 March 2015 a t  

09 :45 . ”  

And paragraph 6(s ic ) . . .  

Shou ld  I  cont inue  there ,  Cha i rperson?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe because  –  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  the 

o thers  are  the  same as th is  one,  except  fo r  the  a l legat ions  20 

o f  m isconduct  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . you  can comple te  –  cont inue up  to  7 .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And –  ja .   And then when you go to  the  
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o thers ,  i f  I  am r igh t  in  say ing  what  i s  d i f fe ren t  i s  the  

a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . you  w i l l  jus t  say  tha t  they a re  the  

same except  in  regard  to  so  and so ,  the  fo l low ing are  the  

a l legat ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  ge t  tha t ,  

Cha i rperson.   Then paragraph 6  reads:  

“Dur ing  the  mee t ing ,  you have the  fo l low ing  

r igh ts :  10 

6 .1  You are  en t i t led  to  be  present  a t  the  

meet ing .  

6 .2  You are  en t i t led  to  be  represented  in  the  

meet ing  by  a  fe l low employee or  an  employee 

rep resenta t i ve .  

6 .3  You are  en t i t led  to  have the  fac i l i t y  o f  an  

in te rpre ter  i f  so  requ i red .  

6 .4  You are  en t i t led  to  confe r  i f  you r  

rep resenta t i ve  had reasonab le  t imes before ,  

dur ing  or  a f te r  the  meet ing .  20 

6 .5  You are  en t i t led  persona l ly  w i th  your  

rep resenta t i ve  to  quest ion  us  as  to  the  

reasons why we  be l ieve  tha t  you shou ld  be  

suspended. ”  

And then the  las t  parag raph,  parag raph 7 :  
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“We env isaged tha t  our  invest iga t ion  shou ld  be  

comple ted  w i th in  a  per iod  o f  four  weeks. ”  

And then the re  is  p rov i s ion  fo r  peop le  to  s ign .   The second  

le t te r  on  the  ha rd  copy a t  page 442 is  addressed to  

Ms Tsho lo fe lo  Mole fe ,  the  F inance D i rec tor  a t  the  t ime.   

A lso  da ted 11 March 2015.   I t  i s  a lso  an  invest iga t ion(s ic )  

to  a  pre -suspens ion  meet ing  and pa ragraph 1  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  invest iga t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  you shou ld  invest iga t ion .   I t  says  

inv i ta t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Inv i ta t ion ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Sor ry.   Thank  you.   A lso  an  inv i ta t ion  

to  a  pre-suspens ion  meet ing .   Paragraph 1  reads:  

“The company i s  p resent ly  conduct ing  an  

invest iga t ion  in to  a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  

a l leged ly  commi t ted  by  you.  

The a l legat ions o f  m isconduct ,  wh ich  w i l l  be  20 

invest iga ted ,  re la te  to ,  amongst  o thers ,  the  

fo l low ing:  

1 .1  You have v io la ted  the  tender  p rocess by  

be ing  in  contac t  w i th  a  b idder  du r ing  an  ac t ive  

tender  p rocess.  
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1 .2  You ac ted  neg l igent ly  by  procur ing  

f inance fo r  Eskom at  in f la ted  ra tes ,  thereby 

adverse ly  impact ing  Eskom:  

Paragraph 2 ,  says:  

“The Company has not  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  no t  –  i s  the  res t  no t  the  same? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    The res t  then reads s im i la r l y  to  the 

le t te r  read before  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .about  the  ser iousness o f  the  10 

a l legat ions and when the  meet ing  is  a lso  ca l led  to  be  on  

the  12 t h  o f  March 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  on ly  the  t imes may be d i f fe ren t  fo r  

the  meet ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   Then you have the  th i rd  le t te r,  

a lso  da ted 11 March 2015.   Th is  t ime,  i t  i s  a  le t te r  

addressed to  Mr  Matshe la  Koko,  the  Group Execut ive ,  

Techno logy and Commerc ia l .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  th ink  you  –  a f te r  ment ion ing  tha t  

the  head ing  is  the  same.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Every th ing  is  the  same,  even w i th  regard  

to  h is ,  except  the  a l legat ions.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  you  can  jus t  go  s t ra igh t  t o  those  

a l legat ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Say the  res t  i s  the  same,  except  fo r  the  

t ime o f  the  meet ing ,  bu t  the  da te  i s  the  same.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The date  i s  the  same,  yes.   In  h is  

case,  the  a l lega t ions o f  m isconduct  as  se t  ou t  a re  as  

fo l lows:  

“1 .1  As the  Head o f  Eng ineer ing ,  you caused  10 

the  appo in tment  o f  A ls tom to  execute . . .  

A ls tom is  a - l - s - t -o -m.  

“ . . . to  execute  the  cont ro l ,  an  ins t rumenta t ion  

cont rac t  fo r  Medup i  and Kus i le . . . ”  

I  see  they have spe l t  i t  incor rec t l y,  Cha i r.   K -u-s - i - l -e .  

“ . . .Kus i le  Pro jec ts  when they  were  no t  

techn ica l l y  qua l i f ied  to  do  the  job .    

Th is  caused a  de lay  on  both  the  Medup i  and  

Kus i le  Pro jec t s .  

1 .3  You were  gross ly  neg l igent  by  fa i l ing  20 

to  cont ro l  the  we ld ing  qua l i t y  i ssues a t  Medup i  

Power  S ta t ion .   Th is  resu l ted  in  a  th ree-year  

de lay  fo r  the  Medup i  Pro jec t  and a  s ign i f i can t  

increase in  costs  over run . . . ”  

Then the  res t  o f  the  a l legat ions are  the  same about  the  
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ser iousness o f  the  a l leged misconduct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bas i ca l l y,  no t  the  a l legat ions,  the  res t  o f  

the  contents  o f  the  le t te r,  I  th ink .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because the  a l legat ions were  the  ones  

you have read.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then the  nex t  one is  Matona.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The next  i s  and las t  one is  tha t  

addressed to  Mr  Matona who was the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  10 

Off i cer  a t  the  t ime.   The le t te r  i s  a lso  da ted 11 March 2015.   

Exact ly  an  inv i ta t ion ,  a lso ,  to  a  pre -suspens ion  meet ing .   

The a l legat ions i n  regard  to  h im were  s ta ted  as  fo l lows.   

Wel l ,  there  i s  on l y  one.  

“1 .1  Fa i lu re  to  sa t is fac to r i l y  to  per fo rm job  

requ i rements  as  se t  ou t  in  the  job  descr ip t ion  

or  work  p lan  wh ich  cost  o r  resu l ted  i n  a  

ser ious adverse  impact  on  Eskom. ”  

Aga in ,  the  contents  a re  s im i la r ly  worded as  the  prev ious 

le t te rs .   H is  mee t ing  was se t  to  be  on  12 March 2015 a t  20 

09 :00.   So,  those  are  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    These are  the  pre-suspens ion  le t te rs ,  

when we ta lk  about  the  pre-suspens ions le t te rs .   I s  tha t  

r igh t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now what  I  have –  what  confuses me 

now a  l i t t le  b i t  i s  tha t ,  in  the  ev idence tha t  was led  be fore  

the  Commiss ion .   I  cannot  –  what  I  cannot  remember  i s  

whethe r  the  le t te rs  tha t  were  issued to  the  four  execut ives 

on  the  11 t h  by  the  board  or  the  Governance,  Peop le  in  

Governance Commi t tee  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes?  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .were  these le t te rs  o r  they were  10 

d i f fe ren t  le t te rs .   What  ra ises  tha t  quest ion  is  tha t ,  as  you 

w i l l  reca l l ,  Mr  Se leka,  the  board  members  who tes t i f ied  

sa id  tha t  the  board ’s  approach in  mak ing  a  dec i s ion  to  

suspend these  execut ives  was tha t  they were  no t  

suspended pend ing  any invest iga t ion  in to  the  a l lega t ions o f  

m isconduct  on  the i r  par t .   That  was the  ev idence tha t  was 

g iven.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  do  reca l l  tha t  Mr  Koko d id ,  in  

g iv ing  h is  ev idence,  says tha t  some a l legat ion  was made 20 

aga ins t  h im about  sabotage and  so  on  and he fe l t  very  

s t rong ly  about  tha t ,  bu t  I  have not  had a  chance to  go  back 

and compare  the  le t te rs  tha t  were  ac tua l l y  g iven  to  the 

execut ives  upon the i r  suspens ion  and these le t te rs .   So,  as  

we speak,  I  do  no t  know whethe r  these pre -suspens ion  
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le t te rs  we have here ,  wh ich  you have read . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .a re  cop ies  o f  the  le t te rs  tha t  were  

g iven to  the  execut ives  when they were  suspended,  o r  they 

are  le t te rs  tha t  may have been prepared in  advance,  bu t  

were  never  g iven because,  u l t imate ly,  the  dec is ion  tha t  

was taken was tha t  the  suspens ion  had noth ing  – the 

suspens ions had noth ing  to  do  w i th  a l legat ions o f  

m isconduct .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   The . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .aga in .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   No the  la t te r  i s  the  cor rec t  

pos i t ion ,  Cha i rpe rson.   These le t te rs  tha t  we are  busy w i th  

now were  never  used.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    They were  never  used.   D i f fe ren t  

le t te rs  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    D i f fe ren t  le t te rs  were  used w i th  the  

ass is tance o f  Mr  N ick  L inne l l .    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Those le t te rs  do  no t  o r  d id  no t  have 

ind iv idua l  –  o r  a l legat ions or  spec i f i c  m isconduct  in  

re la t ion  to  each execut ive .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  they d id  no t  have tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  were  the  board  members  who 

tes t i f ied  asked what  they knew about  these pre-suspens ion  

le t te rs  tha t  were  never  i ssued to  the  execut ives?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    There  are  two board  members  who 

have each reduced these le t te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So ,  the  o ther  board  members  were  no t  

asked about  these le t te rs .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    And i t  wou ld  –  we l l ,  i t  does not  appear  

to  me tha t  the  o ther  board  members  were  aware ,  bu t  i t  i s  

no t  someth ing  I  can ca tegor ica l l y  a f f i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Bu t  the  two board  members  who have 

in t roduced these le t te rs ,  wh ich  i s  Mr  Zethembe Khoza and  

Ms Venete  K le in  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .were  asked about  the  le t te rs  inso fa r  

as  they in t roduced them and,  o f  course ,  they  had a  20 

purpose why they were  in t roduc ing  them,  wh ich  was,  

acco rd ing  to  them,  to  show the  meter  da ta  tha t  l inks  Ms 

Dan ie ls  to  the  d ra f t ing  o f  these le t te rs  and the  mod i f ie r  

be ing  Mr  Sa l im Essa.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    So ,  tha t  i s  the  connect ion  they sought  

to  use but  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Bu t  they d id  conf i rm tha t  these  le t te rs  

were  no t  used.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And in  te rms o f  how they came to  be  –  

we l l ,  as  I  unders tand i t  –  as  I  unders tand the  pos i t ion .   

Mr  Khoza sent  them to  Ms K le in .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  Ms K le in  –  d id  Mr  Khoza accept  tha t  10 

the  sent  them to  Ms K le in  and d id  Ms K le in  accept  tha t  she 

rece ived them f rom h im? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Yes.   In  fac t ,  Mr  Khoza is  t he  one  

who te l l s  us  in  h i s  a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . . tha t  he  fo rwards these le t te rs  –  tha t  

he  fo rwarded these le t te rs  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .on  the  14 t h  o f  March 2015 to  

Ms Venete  K le in .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And where  does he say  he  got  

them f rom? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    How does i t  come to  be  in  possess ion  o f  

the . . .?  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  i s  an  impor tan t  quest ion ,  Cha i r.   And 

I  am go ing  to  read f rom h is  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    He says . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease do,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .    

CHAIRPERSON :    You know,  one has been hear ing  a  lo t  o f  

ev idence.   So,  somet imes some o f  the  issues come back 

and you have quest ion  marks .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ cough ing ]   Excuse me.   Yes.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Then jus t  fo r  the  reco rd .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Bu t  when. . .   I t  i s  Eskom Bund le  14(a)  

on  page 283.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   283?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    283,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Paragraph 46.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .   And he says:  

“ I  do  no t  reca l l  exact ly  when and cannot  f ind  a 

record  o f  same,  bu t  Tsots i  sent  me p re-

suspens ion  le t te rs  fo r  Marokane,  Mole fe ,  Koko 

and Matona wh ich  a l luded to  the i r  a l leged 
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m isconduct . . . :  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So ,  he  does not  reca l l  exac t ly  when  

and he cannot  f ind  a  record  o f  same.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And then i t  goes on:  

“A t  tha t  t ime,  I  thought  tha t  the  le t te rs  were  

prepared by  L inne l l  in  o rder  to  ass is t  the  

board .  

However,  as  the  board  d id  no t  charge the  10 

execut ives  in  any way,  these le t te rs  were  

u l t imate ly  never  u t i l i sed . . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

“As I  was re l ieved f rom my ro le  as  the  

Cha i rman o f  the  Peop le  in  Governance 

Commi t tee ,  I  t ransmi t ted  cop ies  o f  these 

le t te rs  to  K le in  on  14  March 2015.  

A copy o f  th is  emai l  i s  annexed he re to ,  marked 

ZK-9 . ”  20 

So tha t  i s  paragraph 46.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And then he goes to  exp la in :  

“Whi le  p repar ing  the  a f f idav i t ,  I  no t iced tha t  

the  pre-suspens ion  le t te rs  were  ac tua l l y  
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p repared by  Dan ie ls  and ed i ted  by  Mr  Sa l im 

Essa.  

The proper t ies  o f  the  document  show th is  as  I  

have now d i scovered.  

Aga in ,  I  d id  no t  know how to  check who has  

authored i t  o r  ed i ted  the  Word  document  p r io r  

to  now. . . ”  

And then he a t taches those pre-suspens ion  le t te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Now –  and has Tsots i  responded to  

these ev idence by  Mr  Khoza to  the  e f fec t  tha t  he  has go t  10 

these le t te rs  f rom h im,  these pre-suspens ion  le t te rs  f rom 

h im?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.   We –  he  has den ied  ever  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    He den ies  hav ing  anyth ing  to  do  w i th  

these le t te rs ,  no r  send ing  them to  Mr  Khoza.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.   Wel l ,  he  needs to  be  asked  20 

whethe r  he  had –  I  th ink  Mr  Poon w i l l  dea l  w i th  th is .   He  

had computer  –  what ,  an  App le  or  someth ing  computer?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  App le  compute r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  App le  computer.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  and what  we need to  know about  the  

App le  computer  a lso .   I s  whether  w i th in  Eskom the re  were  

peop le  who used such computers  because i f  the re  were  no  

peop le  us ing  those computers ,  tha t  t ype o f  compute r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . then i t  may we l l  be  tha t  the  conc lus ion  

wou ld  be  tha t  the  App le  computer  tha t  was used,  accord ing  

to  Mr  Poon,  tha t  tha t  computer  may we l l  have been f rom 

somebody outs ide  o f  Eskom.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  th ink  tha t  i s  f ine .   Now,  

le t  us  cont inue.   What  I  th ink  you cou ld  do ,  i f  you  a re  ab le  

to ,  now tha t  we have asked abou t  a compar ison o f  these  

pre -suspens ion  le t te rs  tha t  came f rom Mr  Khoza,  and the  

ac tua l  le t te rs  o f  suspens ion  tha t  were  g i ven to  the 

execut ives ,  we cou ld  no t  ind ica te  where  those are  to  be  

found fo r  the  fou r  execut ives ,  the  ac tua l  le t te rs  tha t  were  

g iven to  them.   You cou ld  do  tha t  la te r  i f  i t  i s  no t  a l ready 

a t tempt .    20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  so  tha t  whoever  reads the  record  

who wants  to  compare ,  they know where  to  f ind  them.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  do  i t  la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   Your  jun io r  cou ld  be  look ing  in  
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the  meant ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The jun io r  i s  now away,  Cha i r.   

[ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe she is  l i s ten ing  somewhere .   

[ laughs]   Whi le  do ing  someth ing  e lse ,  and she w i l l  send 

you a  message . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  you can then cont inue w i th  

Mr  Poon.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Poon,  t he  -so ,  

we have t raversed the  le t te rs ,  the  contents  o f  the  le t te rs  

and you were  asked to  do  an  exe rc ise  in  regard  to  those 

le t te rs  to  loca te  where  they cou ld  have or ig ina ted .   Can  

you then take  us  th rough the  exe rc ise  or  your  f ind ings in  

regard  to  each ind iv idua ls  whose backed up da ta  you  

looked a t?   Le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  Ms Dan ie l s .  20 

MR POON :    Sure .   Cha i r,  be fore  I  do  tha t .   Jus t  to  sor t  o f  

se t  the  scene o f  how I  go t  to  ident i fy  var ious documents  

w i th in  the  fo rens ic  ana lyses too ls  tha t  I  spoke about  

ear l ie r,  the  New(?)  X(?)  Too l .   I  ran  var ious search  cr i te r ia  

wh ich  inc luded,  f i rs t  o f  a l l ,  the  names o f  the  f i les  as  they  
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had appeared w i th in  Mr  Khoza ’s  emai l  to  Venete  K le in  as  

we l l  as  the  MD5# s ignatures  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  one second,  Mr  Poon.   Cer ta in l y  

f rom my ass is tance because I  am not  good w i th  techno logy.   

Cer ta in ly  f rom my ass is tance,  i t  wou ld  he lp  i f  you  are  ab le  

to  say be fore  you  exp la in  what  you  ac tua l l y  d id .  

MR POON :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  say,  when you got  an  ins t ruc t ion  or  

request ,  such as  f ind  the  or ig in  o f  a  par t i cu la r  le t te r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

MR POON :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .where  i t  came f rom and what  has been  

i t s  journey dur ing  the  d i f fe ren t  s tages o f  mod i f i ca t ion  and  

cor rec t ions and  whatever,  where  –  w i th in  the  d ig i ta l  

fo rens ic  wor ld ,  what  does tha t  requ i re?   I t  requ i res  you to  

engage in  the  fo l low ing s teps,  A ,  B ,  C,  D,  whatever.   Th is  

i s  how you f ind  ou t  and in  th is  case,  th is  i s  what  you d id  to  

f ind  ou t .   That  wou ld  he lp  me.  

MR POON :    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR POON :    So ,  inso fa r  as  the  –  or  shou ld  I  say,  a f te r  the  

request  had been made to  ass is t ing  in  f ind ing  these  

documents ,  what  I  d id  was,  the  Commiss ion  has an  

ev idence,  a  d ig i ta l  ev idence reg is te r  and main ta ins  a  

d ig i ta l  ev idence reg is te r  o f  a l l  the  d ig i ta l  ev idence tha t  has 
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been acqu i red  and/or  co l lec ted  by  the  Commiss ion  over  t he  

dura t ion  o f  the  Commiss ion .  

 So,  what  I  had  done was to  then search  the  

ev idence reg is te rs  fo r  da ta  tha t  had been co l lec ted  i n  

re la t ion  to  o r  pu t  –  da ta  tha t  was acqu i red  –  what  the  le t te r  

o f  Eskom.   Excuse me.   And to  then search  spec i f i ca l l y  fo r  

the  da ta  sect ion  wh ich  conta ined data  re la t ing  to  Ms 

Dan ie ls ,  Mr  Khoza and Mr  Koko.    

 So,  f rom there ,  look ing  up  those or  sea rch ing  fo r  

those ind i v idua ls  w i th in  the  ev idence reg is te r,  I  then 10 

ident i f ied  the  va r ious ha rd  d r ives ,  e lec t ron i c  hard  dr ives  

wh ich  conta ined the  da ta  tha t  had been co l lec ted  and thus,  

subsequent ly,  been s to red on those hard  dr i ves .  

 I  went  in to  then the  ev idence s torage loca t ion  

where  those hard  dr i ves  are  kep t ,  checked those  out  o f  

them the  ev idence s tore  and then  I  had then mounted or  

had a t tached them to  the  computer  sys tems tha t  the  

Commiss ion  u t i l i ses  fo r  those purpose.  

 Wi th in  those data  se ts  then spec i f i ca l l y  look ing  fo r  

those th ree  ind iv idua ls ,  backup da ta  as  we l l  as  the i r  emai l  20 

arch ives,  and i t  i s  f rom tha t  po in t  where  I  then ingested 

them in to  the  New X  app l i ca t ion ,  wh ich  I  ment ioned ear l ie r.    

 So ,  once the  da ta  had then been ingested in to  New 

X ,  I  then ran  a  number  o f  sea rch  te rms o r  search  –  or  

executed some search  c r i te r ia  wh ich ,  as  I  s ta r ted  to  
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ment ion  ea r l ie r,  inc luded the  f i les  names o f  the  document  

a t tachments  wh ich  are  the  pre-suspens ion  le t te rs  tha t  were  

a t tached to  the  emai l  tha t  in  the  emai l  tha t  Mr  Khoza had  

sent  to  Mr  K le in  on  the  14 t h  o f  March o f  2015.  

 In  add i t ion  to  us ing  the  f i le  names ,  I  a lso  searched 

fo r  the  MD5# s ignatures  o f  those  f i les .   And to  p re-empt  

your  quest ion  to  what  an  MD5# is ,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :    I f  I  may jus t  exp la in  very  br i e f l y  what  they a re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  p lease,  yes .  10 

MR POON :    So ,  an  MD5# fo r  a  –  fo r  any p iece o f  da ta  i s ,  

e f fec t i ve ly,  o r  essent ia l l y  a  d ig i ta l  feeder  p r in t  fo r  a  p iece  

o f  da ta .   So,  i t  i s  ca lcu la ted  by  a  programme and what  you 

w i l l  then do is ,  the  prog ramme wou ld  read tha t  da ta .   In  

th is  case,  i t  i s  the  four  p re-suspens ion  documents .   I t  

wou ld  ca l cu la te  and i t  has  i t s  own a lgor isms and 

ca l cu la t ions.    

 And i t  wou ld  then ca l cu la te  the  i n fo rmat ion  based  

on i t s  a lgor ism and i t  wou ld  then resu l t  in  a  32-character  

va lue  wh ich  rep resents  tha t  d ig i ta l  f ingerpr in t  o f  tha t  20 

document .  

 So,  documents  wh ich  a re  ident ica l  to  each o the r  

w i l l  have the  same d ig i ta l  f ingerpr in t .   Documents  wh ich  do  

not  o r  have d i f fe ren t  content  w i l l  have d i f fe ren t  MD5#’s .   

And so . . .   So,  as  I  ment ioned,  I  then searched  fo r  the 



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 181 of 266 
 

MD5#’s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   I  am sor ry,  Mr  Poon.  

MR POON :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You ta lk  about ,  what ,  a  d ig i ta l  f ingerpr in t  

o r  someth ing .   [ laughs]   So,  wou ld  tha t  –  wou ld  you then  

do a  compar ison?   Or  does th is  re la te  to  a  compar ison tha t  

happens in  th is  way,  tha t  i f  you  have been asked to  

invest iga te  the  o r ig in  o f  a  cer ta in  document ,  l i ke  a  le t te r,  i f  

you  use whatever  too l  you are  us ing ,  le t  us  say in  regard  

to  a  cer ta in  lap top  or  compute r.  10 

 Then i f  tha t  computer  o r  lap top  does have in  i t s  

backup data  or  whatever,  o r  i f  tha t  document  has gone  

th rough tha t  computer  a t  some s tage or  another,  then when 

tha t  document  i s  tes ted ,  us ing  whatever  too l  you  use in  

regard  to  tha t  compute r,  then the  compute r  o r  your  too l  w i l l  

te l l  you  tha t  th is  document  -  i t  has  go t  fea tures  wh ich  are  

ident ica l  to  a  document  tha t  has been in  th is  computer  o r  

has been used in  th is  compute r  in  way or  anothe r,  o r  has 

been typed in  th i s  computer?   I s  t ha t  more  or  less  t ha t  an  – 

i s  tha t  a  cor rec t  way o f  pu t t ing  i t  fo r  a  lay  person? 20 

MR POON :    That  –  more  or  less ,  Cha i r,  tha t  w i l l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    So ,  what  I  am hav ing  in  m ind is  tha t .   

For  example ,  you are  ta lk ing  about  a  f ingerpr in t .   I f  a  

compute r  has  go t  my f ingerpr in t  and then I  come and  
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maybe put  my f ingerpr in t  o r  my f ingerpr in t  i s  b rought ,  then 

the  computer  w i l l  say,  I  have got  th is  f ingerp r in t .   I t  i s  the  

same f ingerpr in t .   So,  i f  you  are  no t  supposed to  b r ing  th is  

f ingerpr in t  two t imes or  i t  i s  no t  supposed to  s to re  two o f  

the  same f ingerp r in ts ,  then i t  w i l l  te l l  you :   No,  I  a l ready 

have got  th is .   Then you know tha t  i t  i s  the  same 

f ingerpr in t .   I s  tha t  k ind  o f  exp lanat ion  cor rec t  fo r  what  you  

are  ta lk ing  about?  

MR POON :    More  or  less ,  Cha i r.   So,  in  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  fo r  a  layperson ’s  way o f  10 

exp la in ing  i t .   [ laughs]  

MR POON :    Yes,  Cha i r.   I f  I  may maybe jus t  e labora te  on  

then the  task  o f  f ind ing  those documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR POON :    You know,  w i th  these ident i f ied .   I  th ink  i t  w i l l  

i l l us t ra te  how i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR POON :    So ,  jus t  tak ing  anothe r  s tep  backwards.   When  

I  had ingested a l l  o f  the  da ta  wh ich  I  had ident i f ied  the 

backup data  as  we l l  as  then the  emai l  a rch ives.   Once I  20 

had ingested tha t  in to  the  New X  app l i ca t ion ,  au tomat ica l l y  

in  the  process o f  ingest ing  tha t  da ta  in to  the  app l i ca t ion ,  

the  app l i ca t ion  au tomat ica l l y  ca lcu la tes  th i s  d ig i ta l  

s ignature  fo r  a l l  o f  the  f i les  tha t  a re  conta ined w i th in  the  

da ta  wh ich  I  had put  in to  the  sys tem,  a l r igh t?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    So ,  every  s ing le  f i le ,  as  I  sa id ,  wou ld  have an 

assoc ia ted  d ig i ta l  f ingerpr in t  w i th  i t .   So ,  when i t  comes to  

then search ing .   What  I  d id .   Obv ious ly,  P ro fessor  

Louwrens w i th in  h is  tes t imony,  he  had ident i f ied  a l ready 

what  those d ig i ta l  f ingerpr in ts  were  fo r  those four  f i l es .   

So,  us ing  those s ignatures  tha t  he  had a t tes ted  to ,  I  then 

knew what  the  d ig i ta l  f ingerpr in ts  I  needed to  search  fo r.  

 I  then wou ld  en te r  those f ingerp r in ts  o r  the  va lues,  

MD5#’s  in to  the  sys tem and then  the  sys tem wou ld  then  10 

f i l te r  and te l l  me,  you know,  yes,  these f i les  are  here ,  o r  no  

these f i les  are  no t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR POON :    Does tha t  he lp  exp la in  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja ,  no ,  tha t  does he lp  me.   That  

does he lp  me,  de f in i te ly.  

MR POON :    So ,  you a re  qu i te  r igh t .   I t  does do a  

compara t ive  exerc ise  be tween what  i t  knows and what  i t  

then is  p rov ided.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  okay,  okay.  20 

MR POON :    Okay.   So,  in  add i t ion  to  those searches,  

be ing  the  f i le  names and the  MD5#’s .   In  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  

what  I  a lso  d id  . . . [ in te rvenes]    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Can I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POON :    Yes,  Commiss ioner?  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Can I  a lso  –  can I  ask  th is  ques t ion?  

MR POON :    Sure .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Which  I  th ink  the  Cha i rperson  is  a lso  

ask ing .   I f  I  do  a  document  on  my  computer  and I  remove 

tha t  document  and save i t  in  a  d i f fe ren t  computer  o f  Mr  X ,  

and there  i s  a  document  tha t  a lso  Mr  X  has wh ich  comes,  

no t  f rom me,  bu t  f rom Mr  B .   The document  dea ls  w i th  the  

same issue,  bu t  they or ig ina te  f rom two d i f fe ren t  mach ines.   

A re  you ab le  to  t e l l  wh ich  o f  the  two documents  come f rom 

my mach ine  when  you a re  look ing  a t  Mr  X ’s  mach ine?  10 

MR POON :    Not  spec i f i ca l l y,  no .   So,  i f  a  document  does  

no –  i s  no  longer  s to red w i th in  a  mach ine ,  as  you put  i t ,  

and tha t  document  has been comple te ly  e rased and there  

is  ev idence o f  –  o r  the re  is  no  remnant  o f  tha t  document  

tha t  appears .   When we put  tha t  in to  the  –  or  use  the  too ls  

to  ca lcu la te  the  f i les ,  because tha t  f i l es  i s  no  longer  there ,  

i t  wou ld  no t  f ind  tha t  s ignature .   Inso far  as  da ta  tha t  may  

have come f rom o ther  mach ines,  we t ry  to  ana lyses the  

meta-data  to  t ry  and g i ve  us  ind ica t ions where  i t  may have 

come f rom but  hav ing  sa id  tha t .   There  are  no  f ie lds  tha t  20 

spec i f i ca l l y  go  –  move a long w i th  f i les  to  say i t  came f rom 

or ig ina l l y  mach ine  A or  mach ine  B  or  mach ine  C.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

MR POON :    There  are  on ly  the  meta-data  wh ich  Pro fessor  

–  i f  I  may remind  you –  P ro fessor  Louwrens then spoke to  
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about  inso far  as  the  au thor  o r  the  las t  au tho r  o f  the  

documents .   Those meta-data  tha t  i s  g iv ing  an  ind ica t ion  

where  i t  may have come f rom,  bu t  i t  does not  necessar i l y  

mean tha t  i t  de f in i t i ve ly  came f rom a  par t i cu la r  mach ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.    

MR POON :    Does tha t  he lp  answer  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  bu t  I  assume fo r  a  moment ,  the 

in fo rmat ion ,  the  t ra i l  o f  in fo rmat ion  is  no t  de le ted .   Assume 

fo r  a  moment  I  s t i l l  have the  document .  

MR POON :    I f  you  s t i l l  have the  document ,  the  s ignature  10 

tha t  can then be ca l cu la ted  and we cou ld  –  wou ld  then be  

ab le  to  f ind  i t .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

MR POON :    Bu t  aga in ,  i f  there  are  d i f fe ren t  vers ions o f  the  

document  wh ich  may s i t  on  your  –  on  a  par t i cu la r  

compute r,  then  tha t  wou ld  have a  d i f fe ren t  MD5# 

assoc ia ted  w i th  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh,  I  see.   I  see .    

MR POON :    Which  I  th ink  w i l l  lead me to  the  nex t  se t  o f  

search  c r i te r ia  wh ich  I  per fo rmed.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

MR POON :    I f  I  may move in to  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  p lease.  

MR POON :    Okay.   So,  as  I  ment ioned,  I  looked fo r  the  f i le  

name,  I  looked fo r  the  MD5#,  bu t  in  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  what  I  
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d id  was,  I  took  the  four  p re-suspens ion  le t te rs  and I  t r ied 

to  f ind  common s t reams o f  tex t  tha t  appeared commonly  

w i th in  in  a l l  four  o f  those f i les .   And I  ident i f ied  four  p ieces 

o f  tex t  wh ich  we re fer red  to  as  s t reams o f  tex t ,  and  I  then 

used tha t ,  a lso ,  as  search  cr i te r ia .   And the  purpose o f  that  

wou ld  be  to  a t tempt  to  ident i f y  var ied  ve rs ions .   Not  

necessar i l y  one  hundred percent  hav ing  conta ined the  

en t i re  content ,  bu t  vary ing  vers ions,  hopefu l l y,  wh ich  may  

conta in  the  common p ieces o f  tex t  wh ich  I  then ident i f ied .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So ,  th is  wou ld  be  l i ke  your  search  10 

words?  

MR POON :    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POON :    In  th is  case,  I . . .   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   So,  

then u t i l i s ing  the  le t te rs  wh ich  we  are  aware  o f  a l ready.   I  

ex t rac ted  te rms and phrases f rom those le t te rs  to  then 

search  fo r  add i t i ona l  –  w i th  a l te r ing  vers ions o f  them or  

d i f fe ren t  vers ions  o f  them.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Okay,  ca r ry  on .  

MR POON :    A l r igh t .   So,  by  app ly ing  those search  cr i te r ia ,  20 

I  was then p resented w i th  12  documents  and th ree  

assoc ia ted  emai l s  w i th  those documents .   I  th ink  I  have 

tha t  in  Annexure  LP. . .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR POON :    . . .  i f  I  am not  m is taken .  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Can you use the  word  –  a  d i f fe ren t  

word  fo r  p resented?  So,  you were  ab le  to  –  your  search  

resu l ts  showed –  came up as  12  documents?  

MR POON :    Yes.   So . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR POON :    . . .what  was respons ive  to  those  search  

cr i te r ia  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR POON :    . . . the  too l s  then presented those or  f i l t e red  

the  f i les  and p resented those to  me.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay?  

MR POON :    So ,  i t  i s  a lmost  l i ke  i f  you  are  us ing  an  Exce l  

document ,  an  Exce l  spreadsheet .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes?  

MR POON :    And there  are  f i l te rs  enab led  on tha t  and you 

put  the  var ious cond i t ions  w i th in  the  f i l te rs  ou t  o f  a l l  the 

var ious records  tha t  may appear  in  your  sp readsheet ,  once 

you app ly  those  –  i t  i s  jus t  c r i te r ia ’s ,  the  sp readsheet  

wou ld  then f i l te r  and wou ld  on ly  show you those  reco rds  

wh ich  a re  respons ive  to  those search  cr i te r ia .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR POON :    So ,  s im i la r ly,  the  fo rens ic  so f tware  does the  

same.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Cha i r,  jus t  be fore  Mr  Poon  

proceeds.   May I  g ive  the  Cha i rperson re ference to  –  where  
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to  f ind  the  suspens ion  le t te rs  tha t  were  g iven  to  the  

execut ives .   I t  wou ld  be  Eskom Bund le  7 ,  page 627.   And I  

th ink  i t  i s . . .   I t  m igh t  be  7(a ) .   I f  Mr  Tsots i  has two bund les .   

You got  i t ,  Cha i rperson?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  th ink  –  d id  we lose  the  Cha i rperson?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .   Mr  Poon,  I  th ink  we have los t  the  

Cha i rperson.    

MR POON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR POON :    I t  appears  to  be  so .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Ja ,  i t  says  the  Cha i rperson has  

dropped o f f .    

MECHANICAL INTERRUPTION IN VIDEO LINK 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you,  le t  us  cont inue.   Mr  

Poon,  can you hear  me?  He canno t  hear  me.  

MR POON :   I  can ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  you can.   Okay,  Mr  Se leka,  can you  20 

hear  me?  Mr  Se leka?  Oh,  maybe he has muted h imse l f .   

Okay,  cont inue,  Mr  Poon.  

MR POON :   Cha i r ,  I  th ink  where  I  le f t  o f f ,  I  spoke about  

how I  app l ied  the  search  cr i te r i a .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR POON :   To  the  fo rens i cs  so f tware  and based on how 

tha t  search  cr i te r ia  matched any  documents  wh ich  was  

conta ined w i th in  the  sys tem and data  wh ich  had been  

processed in  i t ,  i t  then re tu rned the  12  documents  and  

th ree  assoc ia ted  emai ls  tha t  matched …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  hang on,  Mr  Poon?  Jus t  hang on,  

we do not  see Mr  Se leka.   Mr  Se leka can you hear  me? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  I  can hear  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay,  Mr  Poon,  le t  us  see 

or  am I  f rozen.   Mr  Poon?  10 

MR POON :   I  can  hear  you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  cont inue.  

MR POON :   Okay .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You might  w ish  to  s ta r t  a  few sentences 

back.  

MR POON :   No prob lem,  Cha i r .   Aga in ,  I  had app l ied  the  

search  cr i te r ia  wh ich  I  had spoken about  ear l ie r  aga ins t  

the  da ta  wh ich  had been ingested  in to  the  app l i ca t ion ,  the 

fo rens ic  app l i ca t ion  and based  on tha t  c r i te r ia  the  

app l i ca t ion  then re turned documents  wh ich  matched tha t  20 

cr i te r ia  i n  wh ich  case i t  re tu rned 12 documents  and th ree  

assoc ia ted  emai ls  to  those documents .   So tha t  i s  in  

essence the  bu lk  o f  the  ana lys i s  wh ich  I  had per fo rmed  

wh ich  I  w i l l  then speak to  go ing  fo rward .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  
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MR POON :   So ,  Adv Se leka,  inso fa r  as  your  quest ions 

re la ted  to  the  funds I  had fo r  the  th ree  ind iv idua ls ,  I  w i l l  

s ta r t  w i th  Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls .   So,  w i th in  her  da te ,  her  

emai l  a rch i ve ,  I  found two emai ls  tha t  were  sent  by  Ms  

Dan ie ls  to  Mr  Koko on the  25  and 26 February  o f  2015.    

 The f i rs t  emai l ,  wh ich  was sent  on  the  25  February  

was sent  a t  approx imate ly  6  p .m .  in  the  even ing  and i t  

conta ined a  Mic rosof t  Word  document  wh ich  appeared to  

be  a  pre-suspens ion  le t te r ,  based on i t s  content ,  tha t  was  

addressed to  a  Malese la  Sekhas imbe and w i th in  the  10 

document ,  the  document  re f lec ted  Matshe la  Koko  as  the  

issuer  o f  the  document .  

 Then w i th  regard  to  the  second emai l  tha t  was  sent  

the  day a f te r  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on one second?  

MR POON :   Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  your  a f f idav i t  you have made tha t  f i rs t  

emai l  annexure  LP8,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR POON :   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  cont inue ,  te l l  us  what  annexure  20 

you have ass igned to  each emai l .  

MR POON :   I  w i l l  do  so ,  Cha i r .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :   So ,  as  you had cor rec t l y  s ta ted ,  the  emai l  I  

had ass igned annexure  LP8 to  i t  and the  document  
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a t tachment  to  tha t  emai l  I  had ass igned annexure  LP9 to  i t .  

 Then w i th  regard  to  the  second  emai l  tha t  I  had 

ident i f ied ,  tha t  was …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  you  have jus t  spoken about  

LP8 and LP9.  

MR POON :   Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Annexure  LP8 is  the  document  tha t  you  

are  ta lk ing  about  as  a  document  tha t  Ms Dan ie ls  appears  

to  have send to  Mr  Koko tha t  re la ted  to  the  pre-suspens ion  

meet ing  o f  Mr  Sekhas imbe,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MR POON :   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  tha t  i s  LP8 and what  i s  LP9? 

MR POON :   I s  i t  the  document ,  the  ac tua l  le t te r  tha t  was 

a t tached to  the  emai l ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So  LP8,  Cha i r,  i s  the  emai l  and LP9 is  

the  document  a t tached to  the  emai l ,  so  maybe 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  was LP8 a  cover ing  emai l  in  o ther  

words?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  20 

MR POON :   That  i s  r igh t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so  the  LP8 was the  cover ing  emai l  

f rom Ms Dan ie ls  addressed to  Mr  Koko?  

MR POON :   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then the  ac tua l  p re-suspens ion  
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le t te r  tha t  re la ted  to  Mr  Sekhas imbe you ass igned the  LP9 

as  i t s  annexure ,  so  i t  i s  annexure  LP9 to  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR POON :   Cor rec t ,  Cha i r .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  now I  unders tand.   Cont inue.  

MR POON :   Okay .   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cha i r ,  the  page –  maybe Mr  Poon  

cou ld  re fe r  to  the  page numbers  and the  documents  

themse lves.   Cha i r ,  i t  i s  455 o f  the  hard  copy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr  Poon,  fo r  yourse l f ,  i t  i s  923.   455,  10 

Cha i rperson and 456.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  and I  th ink  you are  r igh t ,  Mr  

Se leka,  as  you go a long i t  i s  impor tan t  to  go  and have a  

look a t  the  le t te r .   Do you want  to  take  h im th rough tha t  o r  

Mr  Poon,  on  my page 455 on  the  ha rd  copy,  tha t  i s  

annexure  LP –  tha t  i s  marked annexure  LP8.  

MR POON :   Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Suzanne Dan ie ls ,  

Dan ie lsm@eskom.co.za  ,  i t  was sent  on  Wednesday 25 

February  2015 a t  two minutes  pas t  s ix  and the  sub jec t  i s  20 

Sekhas imbe documents ,  and i t  says :  

“A t tachments  2150223 and then says memorandum,  

execut ion  copy.docx:2015.02.25,  Inv i ta t ion  to  Pre-

suspens ion  Meet ing ,  Execut ion  Copy.docx.   H igh  

impor tance,  Conf ident ia l ,  regards Suzanne.  
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I s  tha t  the  cover ing  emai l  you are  ta lk ing  about  tha t  you  

say you found in  Ms Dan ie ls ’  computer?  

MR POON :   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :   And  to  e labora te ,  the  a t tachment  tha t  I  am 

re fer r i ng  to ,  Cha i r ,  i s  the  one tha t  you read out  now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   Which  s ta r ts  w i th  the  20150225 inv i t a t ion  to  

pre -suspens ion  meet ing ,  execut ioncopy.docx.   That  i s  the  

a t tachment  I  am re fer r ing  to  in  the  a f f idav i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  the   -  on  page 456 o f  the  ha rd  copy 

there  i s  a  le t te r  addressed to  Malese la  Sekhas imbe,  

genera l  manager  Commodi ty  Sourc ing ,  Group Commerc ia l ,  

Eskom Hold ings Soc L td ,  i t  i s  da ted  25 February  2015,  i t  

says :  

“Dear  Malese la ,  inv i ta t ion  to  a  pre-suspens ion  

meet ing . ”  

And on page 457 ,  hard  copy,  i t  i s  no t  s igned but  where  –  

jus t  be low the  l ine  where  the  s ignature  i s  supposed to  

appear ,  i t  i s  wr i t ten  Matshe la  Koko,  Group Execut ive  20 

Techno logy and Commerc ia l  (Act ing)  and then be low tha t  i t  

says :  

“ I ,  Ma lese la  Sekhas imbe,  acknow ledge rece ip t  o f  

th is  no t ice  to  a t tend a  pre-suspens ion  hear ing . ”  

But  i t  i s  no t  s igned by  e i ther  Mr  Koko or  Mr  Sekhas imbe.   
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And i t  says  i t  inv i tes  –  i t  te l l s  Mr  Sekhas imbe tha t :  

“The company was conduct ing  an  invest iga t ion  to  

a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  a l leged ly  commi t ted  by  

you. ”  

That  i s  the  f i rs t  sentence under  1 .   Then i t  says :  

“The a l legat ions  o f  m isconduct  wh ich  wou ld  be  

invest iga ted  re la te  to  among o thers ,  the  fo l low ing. ”  

Then there  are  th ree  –  there  is  1 ,  2  and 3 .   1 .1 ,  1 .2  and  

1 .3  where  the  a l legat ions are  made and then in  paragraph 

3  i t  says :  10 

“You a re  inv i ted  to  a t tend a  meet ing  to  d iscuss your  

poss ib le  suspens ion . ”  

And then number  4  i t  says :  

“The meet ing  w i l l  be  he ld  on  Monday 2  March 2015 

a t  e leven o ’ c lock ,  11h00. ”  

And then under  parag raph 5  i t  te l l s  h im what  r igh ts  he  

wou ld  have dur ing  the  meet ing .   I s  tha t  document  s ta r t ing  

on  hard  copy page 456 and go ing  up to  hard  copy 457 the  

document  tha t  you have –  tha t  you found in  Ms Dan ie ls ’  

compute r  tha t  you marked as  annexure  LP9? 20 

MR POON :   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   However ,  Cha i r ,  I  d id  

no t  f ind  i t  in  her  computer ,  I  found i t  w i th in  her  emai l  

a rch ives.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  in  her  emai l  a rch i ves,  okay.   And 

tha t  i s  the  same wi th  the  cover ing  emai l?  
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MR POON :   Cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka,  you can  take  i t  

f rom there  or  he  can cont inue.  

MR POON :   Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r .   So tha t  dea ls  w i th  the  

f i rs t  emai l  and the  a t tachment  to  tha t  emai l  tha t  I  had 

found wh ich  was  sent  on  the  25  February  o f  2015.   The  

second emai l ,  wh ich  I  had ident i f ied ,  Cha i r ,  jus t  to  be  c lear  

the  cover ing  emai l  i s  LP10.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  Mr  Poon,  to  take  you back 

aga in ,  I  am a  layperson w i th  techno logy.   You sought  to  10 

make a  d is t inc t ion  be tween f ind ing  –  say ing  you  found  

these documents  in  Ms Dan ie ls ’  computer  and say ing  you  

found them in  he r  a rch ives.  

MR POON :   Cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you want  to  exp la in  tha t  to  a 

layperson l i ke  me? 

MR POON :   So  u l t imate ly ,  the  way s im i la r  i s  tha t  they are  

bo th  backups o f  da ta ,  so  tha t  i s  they are  s im i la r .   However ,  

the  d is t inc t ion  tha t  I  speak to  in  my a f f idav i t  be tween an 

emai l  a rch i ve  and  a  use r  backup is  tha t  the  emai l  a rch i ve  –  20 

and Cha i r ,  I  was not  -  you know,  I  was not  invo l ved  in  the 

co l lec t ion  o f  th is  da ta .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR POON :   Bu t  f rom what  I  can see is  tha t  the  emai l  was  

spec i f i ca l l y  expor ted  f rom Eskom’s  sys tems as emai l  f i l es .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR POON :   So  spec i f i ca l l y ,  the  emai ls  were  expor ted ,  and  

the  Commiss ion  had co l lec ted  tha t ,  so  tha t  speaks  to  the  

arch ives.   Inso far  as  the  user  fo lde rs  are  concerned,  wh ich  

I  re fe r red  to  in  my a f f idav i t ,  the  user  fo lders  i s  e f fec t i ve ly  

l i ke  in  your  own computer ,  Cha i r ,  the  da ta  tha t  i s  conta ined 

under  your  own user  p ro f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   And tha t  wou ld  i nc lude your  desktop ,  tha t  

wou ld  inc lude your  documents  fo lder ,  your  p ic tu res  fo lder ,  10 

your  v ideos fo lde r ,  e tce tera .   That  da te  I  re fe r red  to  then  

as  the  use r  fo lder ’s  backup.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :   So ,  in  th is  case the  emai l  tha t  I  re fe r red  to  

wh ich  I  ident i f ied  f rom Ms Dan ie ls ’  a rch ive  came f rom the  

spec i f i c  emai ls  t ha t  were  expor ted  ou t  o f  Eskom systems 

before  we app l ied  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you,  you may  

cont inue.  

MR POON :   Thank you,  Cha i r .   Then mov ing  to  the  second 20 

emai l  tha t  was sent  by  Ms Dan ie ls  to  Mr  Koko the  day  

a f te r ,  wh ich  was the  26  February  2015,  the  cover ing  le t te r ,  

Cha i r ,  I  have a l loca ted  annexure  LP10.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  i s  on  page 458.  

MR POON :   Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    O f  the  hard  copy,  926 o f  the  e lec t ron ic  

pag ina t ion .  

MR POON :   Wou ld  you l i ke  me to  e labora te  on  the  cover  

le t te r ,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me jus t  ge t  there ,  where  is  the  cover  

le t te r  on  the  ha rd  copy?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    58 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    458?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    458 yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  read in to  the  record  what  i s  10 

conta ined in  the  cover  emai l ,  Mr  Poon.  

MR POON :   Yes,  cer ta in ly ,  Cha i r .   The cover ing  le t te r  i s  

bas ica l l y  a  fo rward  o f  the  emai l  wh ich  we spoke o f  ear l ie r  

wh ich  was sent  the  prev ious day.   So,  i f  you  look  a t  the  

bo t tom o f  tha t  emai l ,  you w i l l  see i t  says  the re  f rom 

Suzanne Dan ie l s  sent  on  Wednesday 25 February  2015 a t  

6 .02  p .m.  and  tha t  re fe rs  to  the  emai l  tha t  was sent  the  day  

be fore ,  okay?  Inso far  as  the  po r t ion  o f  the  emai l ,  wh ich  

was app l i cab le  to  the  26  February  2015,  tha t  emai l  aga in  

was sent  f rom Suzanne Dan ie ls  w i th  emai l  address 20 

Dan ie lsm@Eskom.co.za  wh ich  was sent  on  Thursday the  

26  February  2015  a t  8 .22  in  the  morn ing ,  and i t  s ta ted  tha t  

i t  was sent  to  Matshe la  Koko w i th  sub jec t :   

“Re:   Sekhas imbe  documents . ”  

And i t  conta ined an a t tachment  wh ich  i s  named 20150225,  

mailto:Danielsm@Eskom.co.za
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Inv i ta t ion  to  p re-suspens ion  meet ing ,  execut ioncopy.docx  

and the  emai l  ind ica tes  the  impor tance as  h igh  and the  

sens i t i v i t y  as  con f ident ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And the  message in  the  emai l?  

MR POON :   Yes,  i t  jus t  says:  

“C leaned up copy,  regards Suzanne. ”  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.  

MR POON :   Okay.   And,  Cha i r,  the  a t tachment  tha t  was 

conta ined w i th in  tha t  cover  emai l ,  I  have a l loca ted  annex  10 

LP11 wh ich  is  on  page 459 o f  the  hard  copy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MR POON :   And Cha i r,  I  jus t  wanted to  po in t  ou t  tha t  th is  

f i l e ,  th is  le t te r  had the  same f i le  name as the  f i le  name tha t  

was sent  the  prev ious day by  Ms Dan ie l s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   And when I  had opened up th is  par t i cu la r  

document ,  I  no t iced tha t  i t  appeared to  be  an  updated 

vers ion  o f  the  one sent  to  Mr  Koko by  Ms Dan ie l s  the  day  

be fore .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR POON :   Cor rec t .   So bas ica l l y ,  LP1,  annexure  LP11,  

was an updated vers ion  o f  LP8.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you ab le  to  ident i f y  where  the  

d i f fe rences were?  
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MR POON :   I  d id ,  Cha i r .   So,  when compar ing  LP9 ,  wh ich  

is  the  le t te r  f rom the  day be fore  to  LP11 wh ich  is  the  le t te r  

f rom ( ind is t inc t  –  record ing  d is to r ted) ,  the  da te  on  the  

le t te r  tha t  was sent  on  the  26 t h ,  i t  re f lec ts  26  February  

2015 as  opposed to  25  February  2015 on a  p rev ious 

vers ion  and the  major i t y  o f  the  le t te r  i s  most ly  the  same,  

Cha i r ,  so  I  w i l l  jus t  re fe r  to  the  spec i f i c  d i f fe rences tha t  I  

ident i f ied ,  i f  tha t  i s ,  okay?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR POON :   So ,  w i th in  annexure  LP11 in  po in t  1 .2  wh ich  is  10 

the  sect ion  tha t  dea ls  w i th  the  a l legat ions aga ins t  the  

rec ip ien t  o f  the  emai l  o r  the  i n tended rec ip ien t  o f  the 

emai l .   I t  reads:  

“D is regard ing  or  w i l fu l l y  fa i l ing  to  car ry  ou t  a  lawfu l  

o rder  g i ven to  you by  a  person au thor ised to  do  so ,  

more  spec i f i ca l l y  fa i l ing  to  ensure  tha t  the  

t ransact ion…”  

And the  res t  o f  the  sentence:  

“ fo l low ing t ransac t ion . ”  

I s  what  was upda ted in  LP11,  Cha i r .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :   So ,  cont inu ing  on  tha t  sentence i t  says  tha t :  

“Fa i l ing  to  ensure  tha t  the  t ransact ion  i s  p roper l y  

au thor ised in  te rms o f  the  prescr ibed procedures. ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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MR POON :   So ,  the  por t ion  tha t  says:  

“ . . .p roper ly  au thor ised in  te rms o f  the  prescr ibed 

procedures” .  

I s  what  was added to  the  document  o r  updated f rom the  

prev ious vers ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   So,  f rom:    

“…is  p roper l y  au thor i sed. ”  

MR POON :   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  were  the  new words?  

MR POON :   The new words:  10 

“…is  proper ly  au thor i sed in  te rms o f  the  presc r ibed  

procedures” .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR POON :   Okay .   And then there  is  a  th i rd  d i f fe rence tha t  

I  ident i f ied  Cha i r .   That  i s  on  page 2  o f  annexure  LP11  

wh ich  is  on  page 460 o f  the  hard  copy.  

 Under  the  sect ion  where  i t  shows  the  issuer  o f  th is  

document ,  i t  shows Matshe la  Koko as  be ing  the  issuer  o f  

th is  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR POON :   And beneath  tha t  i t  says  –  i t  re fe rs  to  h is  t i t le  

be ing  Group Execut ive  Techno logy and Commerc ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   Now in  the  prev ious vers ion ,  tha t  phrase,  

Group Execut ive  Techno logy and  Commerc ia l  was  on the  
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same l ine  as  Matshe la  Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   And on the  prev ious  vers ion  i t  a lso  had the  

word  (Act ing)  a f te r  the  t i t le .   Which  in  th is  copy has now 

been removed?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   Okay,  so  tha t  i s  the  ex ten t  o f  the  d i f fe rences 

tha t  I  had ident i f ied  w i th in  the  two documents ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   Okay .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  cont inue?  

MR POON :   A l r igh t ,  so  –  and once I  had ident i f ied  those  

d i f fe rences,  Cha i r ,  I  looked a t  the  metadata  o f  bo th  

documents  spec i f i ca l l y  to  do  w i th  the  au thor  o r  the  or ig ina l  

au thor  and las t  au thor  metadata  f ie lds  o f  bo th  documents  

and they bo th  re f lec ted  Suzanne Dan ie ls  as  the  o r ig ina l  

au thor  and las t  au thor  o f  bo th  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :   Okay.   And,  Cha i r ,  the  s ign i f i cance o f  these 

…[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  does  tha t  mean in  the  contex t  o f  

the  fac t  tha t  we know f rom your  a f f idav i t  tha t  you say she  

sent  them to  Mr  Koko,  when you say they re f lec t  Ms 

Dan ie ls  as  the  las t  au tho r ,  what  does tha t  mean  in  tha t  

contex t?  
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MR POON :   Wel l ,  I  th ink ,  Cha i r ,  i t  jus t  means tha t  i t  i s  

cons i s ten t  w i th  the  events  tha t  had taken p lace o r  

appeared to  have taken p lace.   So,  in  the  f i rs t  emai l  Ms 

Dan ie ls  had sent  Mr  Koko the  documents  as  an  a t tachment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .    

MR POON :   Wi th in  tha t  emai l ,  w i th in  the  metadata  o f  the  

document  tha t  was a t tached,  i t  shows tha t  she was the  

au thor  o f  the  document ,  and she was the  las t  au thor  o f  the 

document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  ( ind is t inc t  –  record ing  d i s to r ted)  10 

MR POON :   Wel l ,  one cannot  te l l  i f  there  were  add i t iona l  

peop le  in  be tween the  f i r s t  and  the  las t  au tho r  o f  the 

document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR POON :   I t  on ly  shows you the  f i rs t  one and then the  

most  recent  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :   Okay.   And tha t  occur red  s im i la r l y  w i th in  the  

second document  wh ich  was a t tached to  the  emai l  sent  on  

the  26 t h .   So,  what  I  am t ry ing  to  jus t  convey there ,  Cha i r ,  20 

is  tha t  the  cons is tency o f  the  metadata  in  re la t ion  to  the 

events  as  we unders tood took p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  cont inue.  

MR POON :   In  te rms o f  the  s ign i f i cance o f  these  

documents ,  Cha i r ,  I  w i l l  i n  the  nex t  sec t ion  when I  re fe r  to  
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the  documents  tha t  I  f ind  on  Matshe la  Koko ’s  user  da ta ,  I  

w i l l  e labora te  on  what  the  s ign i f i cance o f  these spec i f i c  

documents  are .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :   So ,  Adv Se leka,  tha t  i s  the  ex ten t  o f  my 

f ind ings inso far  as  Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls  i s  concerned.   I  

w i l l  now,  w i th  permiss ion ,  move  on to  the  f ind ings as  i t  

re la ted  to  Matshe la  Koko ’s  da ta .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  do  so  un less  Mr  Se leka has  10 

quest ions on  the  sect ion  tha t  you have jus t  dea l t  w i th .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    No.   Thank you,  Cha i r ,  maybe there  is  

a  quest ion  lead ing  to  the  next  i tem.   Mr  Poon,  you sa id  tha t  

you found the  emai ls  and the  a t tachment  in  the  ema i l  da ta  

o f  Ms Dan ie ls .   D id  you a l so  f ind  them in  the  emai l  da ta  o f  

Mr  Matshe la  Koko?  

MR POON :   Yes,  I  indeed do tha t ,  Adv Se leka,  so  I  found 

both  emai ls  w i th in  bo th  a rch ives,  tha t  o f  Ms Dan ie ls  and Mr  

Koko.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   D id  you f ind  what  m ight  have 20 

been the  unc leaned copy because  in  the  second emai l  Ms 

Dan ie ls  says:  

“F ind  the  c leaned  up copy. ”  

Cou ld  you f ind  one w i th  t rack  changes?  
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MR POON :   So  those exact  –  no ,  there  were  no t  any t rack  

changes in  any  o f  the  documents  tha t  I  [ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   Okay,  in  o ther  words,  what  I  am 

t ry ing  to  ask  you is  whether  a f te r  the  emai l  o f  25  February  

2015 f rom Ms Dan ie ls  to  Mr  Koko. . .  

MR POON :   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    D id  you f ind  a  rep l y  to  Ms Dan ie ls  f rom 

Mr  Koko w i th  a  document  tha t  had  t rack  changes?  

MR POON :   No,  there  was no rep ly  f rom Mr  Koko to  Ms  10 

Dan ie ls .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  see .  

MR POON :   In  re la t ion  to  those le t te r  tha t  I  cou ld  f ind .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay,  you may  proceed.  

MR POON :   Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So ,  in  regard  to  Mr  Koko,  you say you 

found these documents ,  the  ema i ls  and the  a t tachments  

a lso  in  h i s  emai l  a rch ives.   You can exp la in  to  the  

Cha i rperson then  f rom there .  

MR POON :   R igh t ,  thank you.   So ,  moving  on to  the  next  20 

sect ion  o f  f ind ings,  Cha i r,  wh ich  dea ls  w i th  the  documents  

wh ich  I  had found w i th in  Matshe la  Koko ’s  use r  backup  

fo lders ,  r igh t?    

 So based on the  search  c r i te r i a ,  wh ich  I  have 

spoken o f  ear l ie r,  I  found two documents  w i th in  Mr  Koko ’s  
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backup data  wh ich  appeared to  be  re levant  to  th is  mat te r  

in  tha t  they were  very  s im i la r  to  the  pre -suspens ion  le t te rs .  

 The f i rs t  document ,  wh ich  I  have a l loca ted  

annexure  LP12,  wh ich  is  found on page 461 o f  the  hard  

cop ies ,  Cha i r.   From pages 461,  i t  con t inues unt i l  462.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have got  i t .  

MR POON :   Tha t  f i l e  I  found in  Mr  Koko ’s  user  backup  

fo lders ,  and i t  was spec i f i ca l l y  found w i th in  a  fo lder  tha t  10 

was labe l led  Matshe la ’ s  S tu f f  wh ich  was loca ted on the  

desktop.   

CHAIRPERSON :    So,  th is  i s  –  annexure  LP 12 is  a  le t ter  

addressed to  Malese la  Sekhas imbe,  genera l  manager ,  

Group Sourc ing  Group Commerc ia l ,  Eskom.   I t  i s  da ted  26 

February  2015 and the  au thor  i s  Matshe la  Koko,  Group  

Execut ive  Techno logy and Commerc ia l .   I t  says  Dear  

Malese la ,  and the  head ing  is  inv i ta t ion  to  a  pre-suspens ion  

meet ing .   Yes cont inue.  

MR POON:   Yes Cha i r ,  so  s im i la r ly  to  the  documents  20 

wh ich  were  d i scussed and ident i f ied  to  da te  th is  f i l e  had  

aga in  the  same f i le  name as those  wh ich  were  a t tached in  

the  emai ls  f rom Ms Dan ie l s  to  Mr  Koko,  wh ich  I  had spoken 

about  ear l ie r  wh ich  was sent  on  the  25 t h  and 26 t h  o f  

February  o f  2015.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    You made a  re ference ea r l ie r  on  to  Mr  

Matshe la  Koko ’s  desktop ,  jus t  go  back to  the  po in t  –  what  

was the  po in t  you  were  mak ing?  

MR POON:    Jus t  tha t  i t  was not  found w i th in  an  emai l  i t  

was found as  a  loose f i le  w i th in  a  fo lder  on  h i s  desktop  

Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t ,  cont inue then.   

MR POON:    Thank you.   So,  when I  opened th is  document  

Cha i r  and looked  a t  the  contents  i t  appeared,  a lso  to  be ,  

as  you have read out ,  a  p re-suspens ion  le t te r  and i t  was 10 

cons is ten t  in  con tent  w i th  the  prev ious two le t te rs  wh ich  

we had a l ready  d iscussed but  there  were  some minor  

a l te ra t ions to  i t  okay.   I f  I  may,  wou ld  you l i ke  me to  work  

th rough those a l te ra t ions aga in  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    ( Ind is t inc t  –  d is to r t ion) ,  ja  p lease.  

MR POON:    Okay so  essent ia l l y  what  I ’m  do ing  now,  

Cha i r ,  i s  I ’m  compar ing  Annexure  LP12 wh ich  i s  the  le t te r  

tha t  I  found on Mr  Koko ’s  desktop  in  a  fo lder  on  Mr  Koko ’s  

desktop  and we ’ re  compar ing  i t  to  the  prev ious le t te r  wh ich  

had –  wh ich  was Annexure  LP11 wh ich  Ms Dan ie ls  had 20 

sent  to  Mr  Koko,  aga in  Cha i r ,  there  are  documents  –  

major i t y  o f  the  document  i s  –  the  content  i s  very  s im i la r  

and ident ica l .   The on ly  par t  o f  the  document  now tha t  has 

changed,  i f  I  can  re fer  you to  pa ragraph 1 .1  in  tha t  le t te r  o f  

Annexure  LP12.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR POON:    I t  reads,  

“Cont ravent ion  o r  fa i lu re  to  comply  w i th  Eskom’s 

procedures,  d i rec t i ves  and app l i cab le  s ta tu tory  

requ i rements ,  more  spec i f i ca l l y  caus ing  the 

Cha i rman –  and there  Cha i r ,  you see the  word  “o f ” ,  

tha t  p recedes Eskom Hold ings SOC,  tha t  word   “o f ”  

was not  inc luded in  the  dra f t  okay ” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR POON:    That  “o f ”  was not  in  a  prev ious dra f t  and then  10 

what  fo l lows,  

“Eskom Hold ings  SOC L im i ted  to  commi t  and the  

words fo l low ing commi t  wh ich  is ,  Eskom Hold ings 

SOC L im i ted  to  a  payment  o f  ZAR60 506 852.00  to  

Sumi tomo Corpora t ion  (Japan)  wh ich  he  was not  

au thor ised to  do  so” .  

 So tha t  por t ion  o f  the  sentence was modi f ied  in  th is  

vers ion  o f  the  documents ,  Cha i r .   The prev ious ve rs ion  d id 

no t  have –  d id  no t  inc lude the  words “ to  a  payment  o f  

ZAR60 odd mi l l ion  to  Sumi tomo Corpora t ion  o f  Japan.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay ja .  

MR POON:    And  tha t  was the  ex ten t  o f  the  a l te ra t ions to  

th is  ve rs ion  o f  the  document  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR POON:    Okay,  then proceed ing ,  Cha i r ,  the  le t te r  was  
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s t i l l  addressed to  Malese la  Sekhas imbe as  i t  was in  the  

prev ious ve rs ion  tha t  we had d i scussed and a lso  Matshe la  

Koko was s t i l l  re f lec ted  as  the  issuer  o f  the  document ,  

r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    When I  looked  a t  the  metadata  fo r  th is  

f i l e  Cha i r ,  I  looked a t  the  las t  mod i f ied  da te / t ime and th i s  

document  had been las t  mod i f ied  on  the  26 t h  o f  February  o f  

2015 a t  10h57am in  the  morn ing  wh ich  was the  same day  

tha t  Ms Dan ie ls  had sent  the  prev ious vers ion  to  Mr  Koko,  10 

bu t  i t  was two and a  ha l f  hours  la te r .   Inso fa r  as  the  

metadata  tha t  re la tes  to  the  au thors  o f  th is  document  

Cha i r ,  the  or ig ina l  au thor  re f lec ted  as  –  was re f lec ted  as 

Suzanne Dan ie l s  bu t  now the  las t  au tho r  ins tead o f  

Suzanne Dan ie l s  as  was in  the  prev ious vers ions,  i t  now 

re f lec ted  Matshe la  Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POON:    So ,  based on th i s  me tadata ,  Cha i r ,  i t  appears  

tha t  then th is  document  was mod i f ied  by  Mr  Koko or  a t  

leas t  i t  was mod i f ied  on  h is  computer ,  Cha i r .   Some two 20 

and a  ha l f  hours  a f te r  he  had rece ived i t  f rom the  emai l  

tha t  Ms Dan ie l s  had sent  h im ear l ie r  in  tha t  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR POON:    Okay,  so  Cha i r  tha t  dea ls  w i th  the  f i rs t  

document  wh ich  I  had found on Mr  Koko ’s  compute r ,  okay.   
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I ’ l l  then move on to  another  document  wh ich  I  had found.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POON:    So,  the  second document  tha t  I  had found  

wh ich  I  have a l loca ted ,  Cha i r ,  the  Annexure  numbered  

LP13,  Annexure  LP13 wh ich  is  on  page 463 o f  the  hard  

cop ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POON:    Okay,  now th is  document ,  Cha i r ,  i t  aga in  i t  

had the  same f i le  name as the  prev ious f i les  we had 

d iscussed,  tha t  be ing  2015/02/25 inv i ta t ion  to  p re-10 

suspens ion  meet ing  execut ion  copy.docx and I  had  found 

th is…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry ,  you sa id  once aga in  [ ind is t inc t  –  

d is to r ted ]  the  document  you a re  now ta lk ing  abou t  a t  463 

hardcopy.   

MR POON:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    463 or  465?  

MR POON:    463.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay I ’ ve  go t  i t ,  I  jus t  wanted to  

make sure  I ’ ve  go t  i t  r igh t ,  okay cont inue.   20 

MR POON:    Yes,  Cha i r  and i t  con t inues onto  page 464.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay.  

MR POON:    R igh t ,  so  Cha i r ,  th is  par t i cu la r  document  as  I  

sa id  had the  same f i le  name as  the  f i le  names wh ich  I  

spoke o f  ear l ie r .   Th i s  f i le ,  however ,  I  found in  a  d i f fe ren t  



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 210 of 266 
 

loca t ion  w i th in  Mr  Koko ’s  backup data .   I  had found i t  

w i th in  the  rou te  wh ich  is  the  top  most  fo lde r  w i th in  h is  user  

p ro f i le  tha t  was conta ined in  tha t  backup data .  So,  i t ’ s  just  

to  say tha t  i t  was  found in  a  d i f fe ren t  loca t ion ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  now you read  a  f i le  

number…[ in tervenes] .  

MR POON:    Yes,  a  f i le  name.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A  f i le  name I  don ’ t  see tha t  on  th is  –  on  

th is ,  i s  tha t  because you noted tha t  somewhere  e lse ,  I  

don ’ t  see the  f i le  name appear ing  on  463,  i s  tha t  because  10 

i t ’ s  no t  supposed to  appear  the re  anyway? 

MR POON:    No,  i t  wou ldn ’ t  because the  le t te r  in  463 is  the  

content  o f  the  f i le  Cha i r ,  you wou ldn ’ t  –  when pr in t ing  the 

f i le  ou t  you wou ldn ’ t  see the  f i le  name.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  okay cont inue.  

MR POON:    Okay,  so  in  th is  par t i cu la r  Cha i r ,  aga in 

look ing  a t  the  metadata  the  las t  mod i f ied  da te  in  th is  

ins tance was the  10 t h  o f  March o f  2015,  mod i f ied  a t  

approx imate l y  a  quar te r  past  th ree  in  the  a f te rnoon wh ich  

is  …[ in tervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Be fore  you get  t here ,  le t ’ s  dea l  w i th  what  

i t  says ,  Annexure  –  the  document  you are  ta lk ing  about  

tha t  you –  i s  a  document  you marked Annexure  LP13 in  

your  a f f idav i t  and  i t  i s  a  le t te r  addressed to  Matshe la  Koko,  

Group Execut ive…[ ind is t inc t  –  d is to r ted ]  2015 i t  says ,  
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“Dear  Matshe la  and then the  head ing  is  inv i ta t ion  to  

a  pre-suspens ion  meet ing ,  and  i t  says ,  1 )  the 

company is  p resent ly  conduct ing  an  invest iga t ion  

in to  a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  a l leged ly  commi t ted  

by  you.   The a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  wh ich  w i l l  be  

invest iga ted  re la te  to ,  amongst  o thers ,  the  

fo l low ing:  

1 .1  As the  head o f  Eng ineer ing ,  you  caused the  

appo in tment  o f  …[ ind is t inc t  –  d i s to r ted ]  to  

execute  the  cont ro l  and ins t rumenta t ion  10 

cont rac t  fo r  Medup i  and Kus i le  p ro jec t s  when  

they were  no t  techn ica l l y  qua l i f ied  to  do  the  

job .   Th i s  caused the  de lay  on  both  the  

Medup i  and Kus i le  p ro jec ts .  

1 .2  You were  g ross  neg l igent  –  I  guess tha t ’s  

supposed to  be  …[ ind i s t inc t  –  d is to r ted ]  i t  

says  you were  g ross  neg l igent  fo r  fa i l ing  to  

cont ro l  the  we ld ing  qua l i t y  i ssues  a t  Medup i  

Power  S ta t ion .   Th is  resu l ted  in  a  th ree  year  

de lay  fo r  Medup i  Pro jec t  and a  s ign i f i can t  20 

increase in  cost  over run  and then  a t  the  end 

o f  –  and then i t  says ,  pa ragraph 2 ,  the  

company has  not  comple ted  the  

invest iga t ions,  the  purpose o f  the 

invest iga t ion  is  to  es tab l i sh  whethe r  there  a re  
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g rounds fo r  d isc ip l inary  ac t ion ,  and i t  says ,  

hav ing  regard  to  the ,  

2 .1     ser iousness o f  the  a l legat ions and,  

2 .2     the  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  your  p resence…[ ind is t inc t  

-d is to r ted ]  does  the  invest iga t i on  in to  a l leged 

misconduct  the  company is  o f  the  v iew tha t  you 

shou ld  be  suspended on fu l l  pay  pend ing  the 

f ina l i sa t ion  o f  the  invest iga t ion  and ,  

4 .   The meet ing  w i l l  be  he ld  on  Monday 2  March 

2015 a t  11 ,  10 

5 .   Exp la ins  the  r igh ts  tha t  the  addressee wou ld  

have a t  such a  meet ing ,  and i t  says ,   

6 .   We env isage  tha t  our  invest i ga t ion  shou ld  be  

comple ted  w i th in  a  per iod  o f  four  weeks and the  –  i t  

purpo r ts  tha t  i t  is  no t  s igned,  there  i s  a  l ine  fo r  

s ignature  and a  l ine  fo r  a  da te  then i t  says ,  

Matshe la  Koko,  Group Execut ive  Techno logy and 

Commerc ia l  (ac t i ng) .  

Okay,  take  i t  f rom there  then.  

MR POON:    Thank you Cha i r .  Inso far  as  the  content  tha t  20 

you ’ve  read out ,  Cha i r ,  what  I  had not iced was tha t  the  

content  was s im i la r  to  two documents  and I ’ l l  take  you  

th rough to  each o f  them,  Cha i r ,  wh ich  w i l l  then – you ’ l l  

then unders tand  the  s ign i f i cance o f  them.   The f i rs t  

document  I  had compared th is  to  was the  document  tha t  Ms  
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Dan ie ls  had in i t ia l l y  sent  to  Mr  Koko v ia  emai l  on  the  25 t h  

o f  February  2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That ’s  LP9.  

MR POON:    That ’s  cor rec t ,  tha t  was LP9.   So,  Cha i r ,  I  

compared i t  to  tha t  document  and what  I  found were  –  was 

tha t  i t  appeared tha t  th is  document ,  LP13 was a  mod i f ied  

vers ion  o f  LP9 okay and what  led  me to  tha t  Cha i r ,  

asse r t ion ,  was tha t  i f  you  look a t  LP13 page –  the  second 

page o f  LP13  wh ich  is  on  page 464 o f  the  

hardcopy…[ in tervenes] .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    464.  

MR POON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR POON:    Po in t  number  4 ,  where  i t  says ,  

 “The meet ing  w i l l  be  he ld  on  Monday 2n d  o f  March  

2015 a t  11 .00  am” ,  

 That  i s  the  same date  and t ime as  i t  had appeared  

in  the  le t te r  o f  NHLP9 wh ich  was addressed to  Malese la  

Sekhas imbe and then fu r ther…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ Ind is t inc t  –  d is to r ted ]  paragraph  4  and 20 

i t  appeared a t  paragraph 4  o f  the  – o f  Annexure  LP9 jus t  

as  i t  appears  a t  paragraph 4  o f  Annexure  LP13  is  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR POON:    That ’s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  
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MR POON:    And fu r ther  to  tha t ,  Cha i r…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So…[ in tervenes ] .  

MR POON:    Yes,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  the  –  in  LP13 the  document ,  the  

le t te r  to  Mr  Koko  wh ich  wou ld  have –  wh ich  is  re f lec ted  as  

coming f rom Mr  Koko is  da ted  11  March,  bu t  i t  says  –  i t  

inv i tes  h im to  a  pre -suspens ion  meet ing ,  and i t  says  the  

pre -suspens ion  meet ing  is  on  the  2 n d  o f  March 2015? 

MR POON:    That ’s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MR POON:    That ’s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Yes okay,  cont inue.  

MR POON:    Okay,  then aga in  on  Annexure  LP13  on the  

second page o f  tha t  document  a t  the  bo t tom where  i t  

ind ica tes  the  issuer  o f  a  document ,  i t  says  there ,  Matshe la  

Koko,  Group Execut ive  Techno logy and Commerc ia l  

(ac t ing) .   Now,  Cha i r ,  i f  you  reca l l ,  I  re fe r red  ea r l ie r  to ,  

when I  compared two  o f  the  prev ious  

documents…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Our  connect ion  seems to  be  –  Okay,  Mr  20 

Poon there  seems to  be  ins tab i l i t y  in  the  connect ion ,  bu t  I  

th ink  you are  back –  I  th ink  you are  back –  oh  i t ,  th is  i s  

what  i t  says ,  oh  i t  says  been res tored –  okay you were  

say ing  someth ing  about  –  go  back to  ear l i e r ,  you were  

say ing  someth ing  about  ac t ing?  
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MR POON:    Yes,  Cha i r  i f  you  reca l l  when I  had ment ioned 

prev ious l y  when  we compared  two vers ions  o f  the 

documents ,  we had prev ious ly  spoken about  I  ment ioned 

tha t  there  was the  word  “ac t ing”  in  b rackets  a f te r  the  t i t le  

o f  Matshe la  Koko  wh ich  had subsequent ly  been removed in  

a  mod i f ied  vers ion .   In  th is  ins tance o f  th is  le t te r  o f  

Annexure  LP13 we see tha t  i t  ind ica tes ,  and i t  shows 

ac t ing  aga in .  So,  what  tha t  then led  me to  th ink  was tha t  

th is  document  o f  Annexure  LP13 was a  mod i f ied  ve rs ion  o f  

Annexure  LP9 in  wh ich  tha t  word  “ac t ing ”  a f te r  the  t i t le  o f  10 

Matshe la  Koko or ig ina l l y  appeared .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR POON:    Okay,  so ,  tha t  i s  what  jus t  gave me a  c lue ,  

Cha i r ,  to  nar row down wh ich  document  I  be l ieved th is  was  

a  mod i f ied  vers ion  o f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR POON:    So ,  Cha i r  as  I  ind ica ted  ea r l ie r ,  I  compared 

Annexure  LP13 to  documents ,  so  I  had jus t  spoken about  

the  f i rs t  one be ing  Annexure  LP9.   The second document  I  

had compared Annexure  LP13 to  i s  the  document  wh ich  I  20 

have a l loca ted  as  LP3 and Cha i r ,  th is  document  –  i f  I  can  

jus t  ge t  the  page number  fo r  you…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    444.  

MR POON:    Thank you Advocate  Se leka you beat  me to  i t ,  

yes ,  page 444 Cha i r ,  wh ich  is  Annexure  LP3…[ in tervenes] .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Poon.  

MR POON:    Yes,  Advocate  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You know,  somet imes one remembers  

–  one is  v i sua l ,  and you remember  th ings be t te r  when you  

see them.   I  th ink  you need to  show the  Cha i rperson 

these…[ ind is t inc t  –  d is to r t ion ]  you ’ re  ta lk ing  about  the  

des ignat ion  o f  Mr  Koko in  LP9,  LP11 and LP13 because i t ’ s  

eas i l y  ident i f iab le .    Cha i r ,  i f  you  –  jus t  be fore  Mr  

Poon…[ ind i s t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    LP9 is  on…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Annexure  LP9?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes LP9,  i f  you  go to  

the…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’ ve  go t  i t ,  page  456.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    456,  Cha i r ,  go  to  457.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  where  I ’ ve  a l ready seen i t ,  tha t  

ac t ing ,  I  went  there ,  I  went  there ,  I ’ ve  even gone  – I ’ ve 

even checked e lsewhere  as  we l l ,  so  I ’ ve  gone ahead o f  h im  

but  you ’ re  r igh t ,  I  wanted to  check  and see,  I  saw,  yes and  20 

I  saw tha t  in  the  one o f  26 ,  ac t ing  is  no t  there  as  Mr  Poon  

sa id  ja .   Okay,  no  thank you Mr  Se leka,  yes  Mr  Poon? 

MR POON:    Thank you Cha i r .   So ,  as  I  ind ica ted  ear l ie r ,  I  

in i t ia l l y  compared LP13 to  LP9 but  then I  subsequent ly  

compared LP13 to  Annexure  LP3 wh ich  was on page 444 o f  
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the  hardcop ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POON:    And Cha i r ,  th is  document  –  th is  document  tha t  

appears  on  page  444,  Annexure  LP3,  tha t  is  the  or ig ina l  

document  wh ich  was a t tached  to  the  emai l  tha t  

Mr…[ ind is t inc t ]  had sent  to  Ms K le in  on  the  14 t h  o f  March 

o f  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  be fore  you p roceed,  le t ’ s  make  

sure  the  pub l i c  knows what  Annexure  LP3 is ,  Mr  Se leka,  do  

you want  to  take  care  o f  tha t?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  te rms  o f  the  contents ,  what  i t  i s  a l l  

about  so  tha t  the  pub l i c  can fo l low? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  the  Annexure  LP3 i t ’ s  a lso  an  

inv i ta t ion  to  a  pre-suspens ion  meet ing .   The Annexure  is  

da ted  –  the  le t te r  i s  da ted  11 March 2015,  th is  t ime around 

i t ’ s  addressed to  Mr  Matshe la  Koko as  the  Group Execut ive  

Techno logy and Commerc ia l ,  i t  says ,  

“Dear  Matshe la ,  paragraph 1  then i s  s im i la r ly  

worded,  the  company i s  p resen t ly  conduct ing  an 20 

invest iga t ion  in to  a l legat ions  o f  m isconduct  

a l leged ly  commi t ted  by  you.   The a l legat ions o f  

m isconduct  wh ich  w i l l  be  invest iga ted  re la te ,  to  

amongst  o thers ,  the  fo l low ing:  

1 .1  As the  head o f  Eng ineer ing ,  you  caused the  
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appo in tment  o f  A ls tom to  execute  the  cont ro l  

and ins t rumenta t ion  cont rac t  fo r  Medup i  and 

Kus i le  Pro jec ts  when they were  no t  techn ica l l y  

qua l i f ied  to  do  the  job ,  the  caused the  de lay  

on  both  the  Medup i  and Kus i le  p ro jec ts .  

1 .2  You were  g ross ly  neg l igent  by  fa i l ing  to  

cont ro l  the  we ld ing  qua l i t y  i ssues a t  Medup i  

Power  S ta t ion .   Th is  resu l ted  in  a  th ree  year  

de lay  fo r  the  Medup i  Pro jec t  and a  s ign i f i can t  

increase in  cost  over run” .  10 

So,  the  pub l i c  w i l l  reca l l ,  th is  sounds s im i la r .   

exact ly  the  same,  ra ther ,  as  one  o f  the  le t te rs  we have 

a l ready read,  and the  res t  o f  the  contents  a re  a lso  

…[ ind is t inc t ]  o r  repeat  o f  what  i s  a l ready read out  except  

tha t ,  in  th is  case,  the  da te  fo r  the  meet ing  is  changed to  12  

March 2015 a t  11h15 wh ich  is  parag raph 5 .   In  the 

prev ious le t te r  i t  was 2  March 2015 a t  11 .00  and then a t  

the  end o f  –  the  person meant  to  s ign  the  le t te r  i t  i s  s t i l l  Mr  

Matshe la  Koko i t  says ,  

 “ I  Matshe la  Koko” ,  20 

 Oh no so r ry .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No tha t ’s  no t  the…[ ind is t inc t  – 

d is to r ted ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  there  i s  a  l ine  where  somebody  
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wou ld  have wr i t ten  the  le t te r  to  Mr  Matshe la  Koko wou ld  

have s igned and a  l ine ,  wh ich  I  assume wou ld  have  been a  

l ine  fo r  the  da te  o f  s ignatu re  bu t  there  i s  no  name or  

pos i t ion  ind i ca ted  o f  the  pe rson who wou ld  have  wr i t ten  

th is  le t te r  to  Mr  Koko but  be low where  the  person wou ld  

have s igned and  where  the  person ’s  pos i t ion  wou ld  have 

appeared there  is  a  l ine  tha t  says,  

“ I  Matshe la  Koko  acknowledge rece ip t  o f  th is  no t ice  

to  a t tend a  pre-suspens ion  hear ing” ,  

 So –  and then a  s ignature  fo r  emp loyee and date  so  10 

tha t ’s  when he wou ld  have s igned tha t  says,  

“ I  hereby cer t i f y  tha t  the  above r igh ts  have been 

read and exp la ined to  the  employee and the re ’s  a  

space fo r  s ignatu re  and a  da te  fo r  –  a  l ine  fo r  the  

da te  and i t  says  –  be low the  l ine  fo r  s ignatu re ,  

s ignature  o f  person serv ing  no t ice ” .  

 Yes,  okay,  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Mr  Poon then…[ ind i s t inc t ]  LP3  

and how you compared i t  w i th  LP19 what  do  you  want  to  

te l l  the  Cha i rperson.  20 

MR POON:    Yes,  thank you and I  jus t  want  to  re -

emphas ise  Cha i r ,  tha t  the  Annexure  LP3,  tha t  i s  as  we 

unders tand i t  to  be  the ,  I  suppose ,  f ina l  le t te r  o r  the  le t te r  

tha t  I  was requested to  search  fo r  wh ich  was a t tached to  

the  emai l  f rom Mr  Khoza to  Ms K le in .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  are  you say ing  tha t  th is  le t te r ,  

Annexure  LP3 is  ident ica l  to  one  o f  the  pre  –  one o f  the 

four  p re-suspens ion  le t te rs  tha t  you had been asked to  

invest iga te?  

MR POON:   Yes,  Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and ident ica l  i s  the  r igh t  word?  

MR POON:    Yes,  tha t  i s  r igh t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  cont inue.  

MR POON:    So ,  in  compar ing  Annexure  LP13 wh ich  is  the  

second document  wh ich  I  had ident i f ied  and found  on Mr  10 

Koko ’s  backed up data  and compar ing  i t  to  then Annexure  

LP3,  what  I  found was  tha t  the  sect ion  tha t  dea ls  w i th  the  

va l ida t ions as  i t  appears  in  Annexure  LP3 is  a lmost  

ident ica l  to  tha t  –  to  the  cor respond ing  a l legat ions as  

appear ing  in  Annexure  LP13 tha t  was found on Mr  Koko ’s  

backup data .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  me go  to  Annexure  LP13 okay,  

the  a l legat ions,  

“As the  head o f  Eng ineer ing  you cause the  

appo in tment  o f  b lah ,  b lah ,  b lah” .  20 

MR POON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  you say,  1 .1  and 1 .2  o f  Annexure  

LP3 is  the  same as parag raph 1 .1  and 1 .2  o f  Annexure  

LP13 in  par t i cu la r  bu t  you say,  you say,  there  are  more  – 

there ’ s  more  commonal i t y  than jus t  tha t?  
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MR POON:    Ja ,  Cha i r  i f  I  may,  so  i f  you  look a t  pa rag raph 

1 .1  o f  bo th  le t te rs ,  LP13 and LP3,  1 .1  in  bo th  ve rs ions are  

ident ica l ,  word  fo r  word .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POON:    In  LP –  sor ry  in  paragraphs 1 .2 ,  however ,  in  

bo th  documents  t he  –  and i f  I  may  read out ,  Cha i r ,  s ta r t ing  

w i th  the  ve rs ion  tha t  i s  in  Annexure  LP13 aga in  wh ich  I  

found on Mr  Koko ’s  backup data ,  i t  reads there ,  

 “You were  gross  neg l igent ” ,  

 Now on the  word  gross  and you read i t  ou t  yourse l f  10 

ear l ie r ,  Cha i r ,  wh ich  you ind i ca ted  tha t  i t  shou ld  read,  

“g ross ly  neg l igen t ” ,  in  the  document  o f  LP13 i t  jus t  says 

gross  whereas in  LP3 i t  says  gross ly ,  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POON:    So ,  read ing  tha t  sentence fu r ther ,  

“You were  gross  neg l igent  fo r  fa i l ing  to  cont ro l  the  

we ld ing  qua l i t y  i ssues a t  Medup i  Power  S ta t ion” ,  

 Okay tha t ’s  the  f i rs t  sentence in  tha t  paragraph,  the  

second sentence reads,  

“Th is  resu l ted  in  a  th ree  years  and years  wr i t ten  in  20 

p lu ra l ,  th ree  years  de lay  fo r  Medup i  P ro jec t ” ,  

 Whereas in  paragraph 1 .2  o f  Annexure  LP3 tha t  

sentence reads,  

 “Th is  resu l ted  in  a  th ree  year  de lay” ,  

 So,  the  p lu ra l  o f  year  was changed to  s ingu lar  and  
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then fo l low ing tha t  in  LP3 i t  says  fo r  “ the”  Medup i  Pro jec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR POON:   And then fo l lowing that  in  LP3 i t  sa id for  the 

Medupi  Pro ject .   So the word that  was omi t ted  in  the 

annexure of  LP13.  

 So Chai r  apar t  f rom those d i f ferences which I  had 

pointed out  those three d i f ferences between the two 

vers ions in  essence the rest  o f  i t  insofar  as the a l legat ions 

are concerned are ident ica l .   R ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay wel l  you say a l legat ions is  i t  not  that  10 

except  for  those three d i f ferences which are  in  the 

a l legat ions under 1.1 and 1.2.  

MR POON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The contents  of  the two documents 

namely annexure LP13 and annexure LP3 are ident ica l .  

MR POON:   No I  am – in  th is  compar ison Chai r  I  am only  

referr ing to  paragraphs 1.1 and 1.2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Is  that  because you d id not  

undertake a fu r ther  exerc ise.  

MR POON:   No.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  is  i t  because you d id undertake i t  but  

you found that  they were not  ident ica l .  

MR POON:   No so i f  I  may Chai r.   I f  you recal l  annexure 

LP13 i f  I  may re-summarise.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR POON:   LP13 I  had found i t  on Mr Koko’s backed up – 

backed up data.   Right .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    Ja.  

MR POON:   And when I  had opened th is  f i le  and then 

per fo rmed my var ious compar isons I  f i rs t  compared i t  w i th  

the vers ion of  the le t ter  which Ms Danie l ’s  had sent  Mr  

Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR POON:   On the 25 t h  o f  February  2015.   So the point  that  

I  want  to  make in  compar ing those two documents Chai r  and 10 

in  h igh l ight ing the s imi la r i t ies between those documents 

based on th is  and the – the content  the s imi la r i t ies i t  

appears that  then Mr Koko had modi f ied the vers ion f rom 

Ms Danie ls ’ emai l  r ight  and had modi f ied that  par t i cu lar  

copy of  that  document  and had then draf ted the document  of  

LP13.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR POON:   Okay so that  was the f i rs t  po int  I  wanted to  

make Chai r.   The second point  Chai r  is  that  g iven that  in  

compar ing annexure LP13 to then LP3 g iven that  the  20 

a l legat ions as speci f ied in  the two documents are so s imi lar  

and except  for  those th ree l i t t le  spel l ing d i f fe rences or  

grammat ica l  d i f fe rences those a l legat ions were the same in  

essence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   
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MR POON:   So what  the point  I  am t ry ing to  make Chai r  i s  

that  as i t  appears  and we wi l l  ta lk  about  the meta data in  a 

couple of  moments which then you know supports  – 

supports  my comment  but  what  I  am t ry ing to  say is  that  the 

annexures LP13 was modi f ied f rom a vers ion  of  the  

document  that  Ms Danie ls  had sent  to  Mr Koko and i t  would 

then appear that  annexure LP13 was then subsequent ly  

then used to then draf t  and f ina l i se  the vers ion that  appears  

in  LP3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  10 

MR POON:   Which  was the vers ion of  the pre-suspension  

document  that  was at tached to the emai l  that  Mr  Khoza had 

sent  to  Ms K le in.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

MR POON:   Does – does that  make sense Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  does thank you very much.   Cont inue.  

MR POON:   Thank you Chai r.   So as I  had sa id insofar  as  

the meta data is  concerned fo r  annexure LP13 I  noted … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sor ry Mr Poon.  

MR POON:   Yes Mr Seleka.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   The Chai rperson was t ry ing  to  de termine 

whether  there were any other  d i f ferences between the 

le t ters.   I  see the  – that  LP3 has seven paragraphs whereas 

LP13 has s ix  paragraphs.   And the – the t ime for  the 

meet ing I  a lso ind icate  that  is  –  in  LP3 is  d i f fe rent  f rom the 
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–  I  th ink the date and t ime for  the meet ing in  LP13.  

MR POON:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So you may –  draw those d is t inct ions 

a lso to  the Chai rperson’s at tent ion.  

MR POON:   So.   Yes.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or  i f  you p ick  them up because I  see 

that  –  I  mean i t  is  –  i t  appears on the face of  i t  that  there is  

a  paragraph 3 in  LP3 which is  not  in  LP13.  

MR POON:   Yes that  i s  r ight .   So the point  that  I  was t ry ing 

to  make Advocate Seleka is  that  annexure LP13 –  LP13 is  10 

not  as a document  as a whole a dupl icate to  LP3.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR POON:   Just  in  the compar isons.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   No I  understand your… 

MR POON:   I  am not  –  not  as a  document  as a  whole –  yes 

sorry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No I   understand your  point  and your  

emphasis in  regard to  the a l legat ions because that  is  the  

substance of  the document .    

MR POON:   Correct .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   The a l leged issues of  misconduct  but  

just  to  answer the Chai rperson’s  quest ion I  thought  you 

could point  out  that  there are those d i f ferences as wel l  

whether  or  not  they are mater ia l  the Chai rperson w i l l  make 

that  decis ion.  
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MR POON:   Oh okay.   A l l  r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  see for  example  that  in  LP13 what  

appears to  be miss ing in  terms of  paragraphs is  the 

paragraph which we f ind in  LP3 wh ich says 

“You are temporar i ly  suspended unt i l  fur ther  

not ice. ”  

That  paragraph is  paragraph 3  in  annexure LP3.   In 

annexure LP13 paragraph 3 does not  say you are  

temporar i ly  suspended unt i l  fur ther  not ice but  i t  says 

“You are inv i ted  to  at tend a meet ing to  10 

d iscuss your  poss ib le  suspension. ”  

I  do not  know whether  any of  you are able to  p ick up that  

the sentence paragraph saying “you are”  have not  p icked i t  

up but  probably cannot  be the (bad audio)  because th is  one 

says effect i ve ly  come and le t  us d iscuss your  possib le  

suspension.  So they cannot  say you are suspended 

immediate ly  in  the same le t te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chai r  –  Chai rperson LP… 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  –  I  th ink – I  th ink fo r  a l l  in tents and 

purposes subject  to  the number o f  paragraphs and maybe 20 

one or  two th ings that  we might  no t  have p icked up LP13 is  

substant ia l l y  the  same as LP3 and in  many respects  

ident ica l  but  there are some d i f fe rences.   I  th ink one can 

summarise i t  l ike that .  

MR POON:   Yes thank you very much Chai r  for  do ing i t  as  
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you have.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   ( Inaudib le)  Chai r  can we just  po int  th is  

out  to  the Chai rperson? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chai r  what  i s  –  paragraph –  what  i s  

paragraph 3 in  LP13 i t  is  paragraph 4 – i s  paragraph 4 in  

LP3? 

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  in  paragraph 3 in  LP13 is  

paragraph – oh that  makes i t  qu i te  awkward.   Wel l  in  other  

words in  LP3.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   There is  th is  anomaly that  i t  says you are 

temporar i ly  suspended in  paragraph 3 but  in  paragraph 4 – 

no,  no I  am sor ry – d id you say paragraph 4:  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no i t  is  not  exact ly  what  I  was th ink ing  

of  when I  was ta lk ing in  the context  o f  LP13 because LP – 

in  paragraph 3 in  LP13 says you are inv i ted to  a t tend a  

meet ing to  d iscuss your  possib le  suspension.   In  other  

words you have not  been suspended as yet .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  come and le t  us d iscuss.   In  

paragraph 4 i t  says – oh you are inv i ted to  make 

representat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   To the chai rperson of  the board of  

d i rectors.   Wel l  I  guess – I  guess the – I  guess what  i t  –  

what  i t  says is  that  you are g iven 01:09:54 af te r  you – the  

decis ion has been made.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is  r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja.   No,  no you are r ight .   Okay le t  

us cont inue.   Let  us cont inue.  

MR POON:   Okay.   Are we – are we happy w i th in  the  

compar isons Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

MR POON:   Okay,  great  thank you.   So in  looking  then at  

the meta data  of  annexure LP13 speci f i ca l ly  to  do wi th  the –  

the author  and last  authors of  that  document .   The last  

author  of  that  document  is  re f lected as Matshela Koko.   

Okay.   So then go ing back to  then to  summarise the points  I  

am t ry ing to  make Chai r  i s  that  based on the contents and 

compar isons.  

CHAIRPERSON:   One second.   One second.   The point  that  

you just  made about  Mr Matshela Koko just  repeat  i t .  

MR POON:   The author  – the last  author  meta data va lue 20 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR POON:   Ref lects Matshela Koko as the last  author  as in  

the last  person to  have saved the document .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Now when you say that  i t  re f lects 
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Mr Koko as the – the last  author  and you say as  the last  

person to save i t  whose name to that  because i t  was h is  

computer  – i t  was h is  desktop – i t  was h is  emai ls  back up.  

MR POON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  i s  there someth ing e lse technologica l ly  

that  makes you say that .   In  other  words i f  somebody e lse 

used h is  computer.  

MR POON:   R ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  you cannot  – you cannot  exclude 

that .  10 

MR POON:   No not  a t  a l l  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  correct?  

MR POON:   That  is  cor rect  and that  is  –  that  i s  100% 

correct .   So what  I  was going to  say is  that… 

CHAIRPERSON:   So you – you make the conclus ion – you 

make the conclus ion that  he was the last  person to –  

because the computer  was that  –  was the one used by h im.  

MR POON:   No not  necessar i l y  Chai r.   I  am not  say ing that  

i f  he was the last  user  of  the computer  where th is  data 

or ig inated f rom.   A l l  I  am saying is  that  insofar  as… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  mean the – I  mean what  I  am 

saying is  a re  you saying that  on the  basis that  the computer  

or  the backup is  one that  was genera l ly  used by h im or  that  

is  associated wi th  h im? 

MR POON:   I t  is  more – i t  i s  a  – yes.   I t  i s  more than i t  is  an 
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associat ion or  associated wi th  h im Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja,  ja .  

MR POON:   But  what  I  wanted to  say Chai r  was a l though 

the meta data ref lects Matshela Koko as the last  author  of  

the document  obv iously based on what  the meta data  says i t  

would appear that  Matshela Koko authored the document .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR POON:   But  the point  I  want  to  make and you qui te  

r ight ly  say i t  does not  necessar i ly  mean that  he h imsel f  was 

the ind iv idual  s i t t ing behind the keyboard.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR POON:   Of  that  computer  at  that  po int  in  t ime who then 

modi f ied the document  and c l icked save.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And that  po int  –  and that  po int  you 

make holds  t rue a lso in  regard  to  whatever  you have said  

wi th  regard to  Ms  Danie ls  and the emai ls  that  you have sa id  

she seems to have sent  to  Mr Koko and so on.  

MR POON:   Yes Chai r  that  i s  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR POON:   And wi th  – wi th in  d ig i ta l  forensics we can never  20 

– one can never  at test  to  – to  you know saying that  even 

though a speci f ic  ind iv idual  is  re f lect ing wi th in  the meta  

data as such one can never  actual ly  say that  he indeed or  

she indeed were the authors of  that  –  wi th  that  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  you can say for  sure is  which  
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computer  was used to do that .  

MR POON:   Correct .   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  –  and i f  that  computer  is  one that  

is  genera l ly  used by  the person tha t  is  just  an in ference that  

can then be made or  a determinat ion that  can be made 

based on whatever  e lse  but  in  te rms of  the techno logy a l l  

you can say is  th is  was created on th is  – th is  was last  

o ffered in  th is  par t icu lar  computer  that  i s  associated wi th  so 

and so.  

MR POON:   That  i s  correct  Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l l  r ight .   Thank you.   Cont inue.  

MR POON:   And so Chai r  you made my point  exact ly  so I  

th ink that  is  go ing to  then conclude th is  par t icu lar  set  o f  

data as -  as i t  re la tes to  what  I  had found on Mr  Koko’s  

data.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .   Okay.  

MR POON:   Then  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Just  before … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe le t  me ask th is  quest ion.   Are you 

able to  say having maybe done many invest igat ions 20 

involv ing t rac ing documents and so on – are  you ab le to  say 

how re l iab le i t  has been – i t  has been proved to be  in  your  

exper ience that  i f  a  document  was offe red on your  

invest igat ion on a par t i cu la r  computer  used genera l ly  by a 

par t icu lar  person that  –  are you able to  say in  your  
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exper ience most  of  the t ime the posi t ion would be that  that  

person is  the person who d id i t  –  who wrote the document  

or  who was the last  one to  wr i te  someth ing on i t  or  say i t  or  

are you only able  to  say,  look in  my exper ience i t  is  more or  

less 50/50 somet imes i t  is  that  person but  somet imes i t  is  

not .    

Or  a re you able  to  say,  wel l  cer ta in ly  in  the-  my 

exper ience what  has been shown has been that  i t  is  most  of  

the t imes i t  is  not  the person i t  is  who authored – somebody 

e lse d id.    10 

Or is  your  exper ience that  i t  rea l ly  depends.   In  

some p laces where people  share computers maybe th is  is  

what  you wi l l  f ind and where usual ly  the computer  is  used 

by one person then th is  i s  what  you f ind.   Is  that  someth ing  

that  you are able  to  deal  wi th  o r  i s  that  someth ing  that  you 

are not  ab le to  deal  wi th?  

MR POON:   Wel l  Chai r  what  I  can say is  that  par t icu lar ly  

wi th  the author  and the last  author  meta data va lues those 

two f ie lds genera l ly  speaking is  not  re l ied upon on i t s  own.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  20 

MR POON:   R ight .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR POON:   And – and the reason for  that  Chai r  i s  because 

those two – the va lues which is  conta ined wi th in  those two 

f ie lds can be changed to ref lect  d i f ferent ly  to  someth ing  
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e lse.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Someth ing e lse.  

MR POON:   R ight .   So as an example Chai r  i f  –  i f  a  

document  that  was or ig ina l ly  d raf ted by me and or ig ina l l y  

saved by me that  meta data would  ref lect  Lance Poon r ight .   

I f  subsequent  to  that  to  me draf t ing that  le t te r  you get  ho ld 

of  i t  a t  some poin t  in  the fu ture and you wish to  then modi fy  

i t  and use i t  for  complete ly  d i f fe ren t  purpose however there  

are cer ta in  sect ions or  maybe even the  format t ing  of  the  

document  you want  to  reuse you are able on your  s ide to  10 

change the name complete ly  – my name – as the or ig ina l   -  

as the or ig ina l  au thor.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR POON:   Okay.   So that  is  complete ly  a l te rable and i t  

can be easi l y  done so as wel l .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes 

MR POON:   Inso far  as the last  author  va lue is  concerned 

the – that  is  generated or  that  gets  f i l led by the appl icat ion  

that  is  used to modi fy  that  document  or  to  – that  ed i ted that  

document .   Now in  the case – in  the case that  we are  20 

speaking about  we wi l l  be – we – the appl icat ion that  was 

used was Microsof t  Word r ight .    

So Chai r  when your  computer  i s  conf igured fo r  the  

f i rs t  t ime – in  other  words the insta l la t ion of  Microsof t  Word 

is  done on your  computer  there  is  a  sect ion dur ing the 
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insta l la t ion where  you can speci fy  what  name you want  to  –  

to  apply and make i t  appear wi th in  these of  contexts.    

So hypothet ica l l y  speaking Chai r  i f  –  i f  and tha t  

va lue you can change even af ter  i t  has been conf igured 

dur ing insta l la t ion .   So theoret ica l l y  Chai r  what  I  could do is  

on a document  that  you had saved and you had sent  to  me I  

can change my prof i le  to  say someth ing complete ly  d i f ferent  

than Lance Poon.   I  can change i t  to  Mickey Mouse for  that  

mat te r  and… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

MR POON:   And af ter  having saved that  document  i t  would 

then ref lect  Mickey Mouse as the last  author  of  the 

document .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR POON:   So –  so  that  is  the extent  to  which these va lues 

can be a l te red to  – to  show someth ing d i f ferent  f rom real i ty.   

So Chai r  go ing back to  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  –  but  i t  seems f rom what  you say that  

anybody change – who changes i t  would do so del iberate ly  

and in tent ional ly.  20 

MR POON:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The – there is  l i t t le  chance of  such a 

change being overs ight  or  negl igence.  

MR POON:   That  is  my v iew Chai r.   I t  is  a  ( ta lk ing over  one 

another ) .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja somebody who – somebody who would  

make a decis ion I  am changing th is .   

MR POON:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   They would not  be doing someth ing e lse  

and then i t  changes and puts somebody e lse ’s  name by – by 

mistake.    Is  that  r ight?  

MR POON:   Wel l  that  i s  –  that  is  my take on that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay a l l  r ight .   Cont inue.   Mr  

Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Mr Poon and that  quest ion  I  mean 10 

i t  must  be asked of  you spec i f ica l l y  because of  the 

statement  you make in  your  aff idavi t  that  the last  author  – 

the f ie ld  of  the last  author  a l though i t  can be a l te red is  not  

an act iv i ty  that  is  done in  the normal  course of  ed i t ing a  

document .  mean i t  must  be asked of  you speci f ica l l y  

because of  the statement  you make in  your  aff idavi t  that  the  

last  author  – the f ie ld  of  the last  author  a l though i t  can be 

a l tered is  not  an act iv i t y  that  is  done in  the normal  course  

of  ed i t ing a document .  

MR POON:   Yes that  i s  r ight  Advocate Seleka.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No because … 

MR POON:   Now… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is  why when you need to make the 

Chai rperson understand the statement  you were mak ing but  

a lso I  th ink the  Chai rperson understands what  you are 
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saying that  is  why he is  saying to  you the change must  be  

made consciously.   So a person must  take steps to  go  

change the f ie ld  of  the  last  author  i s  not  someth ing that  

changes automat ica l l y  by i tse l f  f rom the last  au thor  to  

somebody e lse.  

MR POON:   Yes that  i s  cor rect .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you.   Okay cont inue.  

MR POON:   So –  so – sorry i f  I  may just  add insofar  as my 

aff idavi t  i s  concerned I  ment ion that  i t  would then base on 10 

the analys is  of  the content  and the  meta data would  appear  

that  –  and I  speci f ica l l y  ment ion e i ther  Mr Koko had a l tered 

the document  o r  a t  least  the computer  was used 00:24:12 to  

that  document  and necessar i l y  then the person behind – 

behind the computer  which we cannot  p rove – we cannot  

ver i fy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course somebody who would be  able to  

change that  –  the  – who the author  was would need to know 

some – someth ing i f  he or  she was going to  do so wi thout  

Mr Koko’s permiss ion – would need to know how to  – to  –  20 

what  do you ca l l  th is  – not  the p in –  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes the password of  accessing the 

computer  of  somebody e lse.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  do you ca l l  i t  again?  

MR POON:   The password.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   The password.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja and so on.   Is  i t  –  the –  

MR POON:   That  i s  r ight  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes so they would  need to do that .  

MR POON:   That  is  –  and I  mean i t  depends how that  

computer  i s  conf igured which  – wh ich  we do not  know.   I  do  

not  have access to  that  and obviously the analys is  of  

thereof  could  not  be  done Chai r.   And a lso  you know i t  

speaks to  then the potent ia l  behaviour  of  the user  of  the 

computer  as wel l .   To what  extent  is  that  person or  to  what  10 

extent  does tha t  person safeguard the access to  the 

computer.   How easy or  how d i f f i cu l t  i s  a  password that  i s  

appl ied and – you know but  genera l ly  speaking and I  do not  

want  to  make an –  an over  exaggerated statement  but  

genera l ly  speaking the computer  that  i s  assigned to you is  

genera l ly  used by  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR POON:   For  a  major i ty  o f  the t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.   Okay you may cont inue.  

MR POON:   Okay thank you Chai r.   So that  then concludes 20 

then the sect ion that  deals wi th  what  I  had ident i f ied in  Mr  

Koko’s data.   I  now then move over  to  the – to  what  I  had 

ident i f ied in  Mr Zethembe Khoza ’s back up data.   Okay.   So 

again based on the cer ta in  cr i ter ia  that  I  had ear l ier  

ment ioned I  had found a l l  four  of  the documents that  I  had – 
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that  I  was tasked to ident i f y  that  be ing the four  pre-

suspension documents that  had been conta ined or  that  were  

at tached to the emai l  that  Mr Khoza had sent  to  Ms K le in on  

the 14 t h  o f  March 2015.   And these f i les matched by f i le  

name as wel l  as  MD5# the e lect ronic s ignature which I  

re ferred to  ear l ier  Chai r.    

So the f i les that  I  had found on Mr  Khoza’s back up 

data were ident ica l  to  those that  were found in  the emai l  

that  he had sent  to  Ms K le in.   Okay.    

Except  in  th is  instance that  I  am speaking of  I  d id  10 

not  f ind them wi th in  an emai l .   I  found them as loose 

documents in  a  fo lder  that  was ca l led Today which  was 

located wi th in  the documents fo lder  of  Mr Khoza’s back up 

data.   Okay.    

The last  modi f ied dates of  these documents were 

var ied before the  four  documents wi th  the ear l iest  be ing 25 

past  6  in  the even ing and the la test  modi f ied t ime was about  

6 minutes to  7 in  the evening of  the 10 t h  o f  March of  2015.   

Okay.    

Now g iven that  these f i les were ident ica l  to  those 20 

which were found in  the emai l  which Professor  Louwrens 

had previously test i f ied to  i t  is  very possib le  that  these are  

the very documents that  he had then used and had a t tached 

to the emai l  that  he had sent  to  Ms K le in on  the 14 t h  o f  

March 2015.   Okay.   Chai r  –  ja  –  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Sorry you wi l l  not  forget  what  you want  

to  say hey? 

MR POON:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  wanted to  – to  say because I  do not  

know i f  I  have missed th is  Mr  Poon.   What  is  the  ear l iest  

date that  these pre-suspension  le t ters that  you invest igat ing 

are associated – associated wi th  Mr Khoza’s computer.  

Whether  they are or ig inated f rom there? 

MR POON:   Yes I  wi l l  –  I  wi l l  speak to  that  in .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You wi l l  speak to  that  okay.  10 

MR POON:   Yes Chai r.   So I  just  wanted to  sor t  o f  set  out  

the d iscussion that  I  had ident i f ied  those four  f i les as loose 

f i les wi th in  a fo lder  on Mr Khoza’s back up data which were  

ident ica l  to  those that  were conta ined in  the emai l  to  Ms 

K le in.    

So fo l lowing tha t  Chai r  the loca t ion where these 

documents were found I  had a look at  the other  f i les that  

were a lso conta ined wi th in  th is  – w i th in  th is  fo lder.   Chai r  I  

th ink we have lost  Advocate Seleka.   Oh okay he is  back.   

CHAIRPERSON:   There he comes back ja .  20 

MR POON:   Okay.   So Chai r  as I  sa id I  had looked at  the 

other  f i les that  were a lso conta ined wi th in  that  very same 

fo lder  and I  not iced wi th in  that  fo lder  that  there were other  

f i les that  looked out  o f  the ord inary to  me than that  the f i le  

names a l l  s ta r ted wi th  a dot  underscore fo l lowed by  the 
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or ig ina l  f i le  names of  those very same four  documents.   So 

in  other  words Chai r  in  addi t ion to  those four  documents  

which were pre-suspension MK pre-suspension DM pre-

suspension  FD and pre-suspension TM doc doc x  for  a l l  o f  

them I  had a lso found f i les that  looked – that  were s imi lar  in  

f i le  name except  they a l l  had a dot  underscore preceding  

that  –  those f i le  names.   Okay.    

So that  is  what  drew my at tent ion to  those f i les  

Chai r  because the – i t  was a very unusual  to  – to  see a f i le  

s ta r t ing wi th  dot  underscore.  So in i t ia l l y  I  had thought  that  10 

perhaps they were just  d i f ferent  vers ions of  those 

documents and when I  a t tempted to  open them the Microsof t  

Word appl i cat ion  could not  open them and the –  i t  re tu rned 

wi th  a message saying someth ing to  the effect  that  the f i les  

were not  recognised and therefore could not  be opened.   

Okay.   So fo l lowing that  Chai r  I  then went  back to  the  

01:33:29 appl i cat ion which I  had … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sor ry  that  par t  is  what  you are  deal ing 

wi th  in  paragraph 49 of  your  aff idav i t .   Can you check that .  

MR POON:   Yes i t  be moments.    20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Paragraph 49 on page 435.  

MR POON:   That  i s  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes cont inue.  

MR POON:   Thank  you.  So Chai r  I  went  back to  the 

01:32:58 appl i ca t ion to  see what  addi t ional  in fo rmat ion 
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01:33:03 could provide me in  re la t ion to  these documents  

and I  found that  the documents were descr ibed as Apple 

Double Fi les.   So ord inar i l y  the word document  i t  would be 

regarded as a  Word document  o r  a  document  in  genera l  but  

these f i les were being refer red to  by the 01:33:25 

appl i cat ion as  Apple Double Fi les which I  was not  fami l iar  

wi th  the term Chai r.   Now what  was seemingly obv ious to  

me was that  the Apple Double Fi les re la ted in  some way to  

an Apple system as – as the name is  – the name re fers to  

Apple Double and Chai r  however you know I  am not  and I  10 

speci fy  as such w i th in  my aff idavi t  I  am not  an Apple expert .   

The major i t y  o f  p laces and  invest iga t ions,  d ig i ta l  

invest iga t ions tha t  I  have worked on were ,  p r imar i l y,  

Microsof t  based.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR POON :    And  i t  i s  very  on  a ,  you know,  on  very  scarce  

occas ion  tha t  you wou ld  come ac ross an  App le  dev ice  fo r  

invest iga t ion .   But  be  tha t  as  i t  may,  Cha i r.   I  d id  some 

research  in to  what  these App le  doub le  f i les  were  and my 

unders tand ing ,  based on the  research ,  was tha t  these f i les 20 

-  when f i les  a re  c rea ted on an App le  compute r  and an  

App le  f i le  sys tem,  the  App le  f i le  sys tem –  and Cha i r,  jus t  

te l l  me i f  I  lose  you.   I  w i l l  t ry  and  exp la in  th is  as  best  as  I  

can.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR POON :    The App le  f i le  sys tem – w i th in  the  s t ruc ture  o f  

an  App le  f i le  sys tem,  i t  ca ters  fo r  add i t iona l  in fo rmat ion  

wh ich  is  spec i f i c  on ly  to  an  App le  f i le  sys tem or  an  App le  

mach ine ,  r igh t?   So,  jus t  as  a  hypothet ica l  example ,  Cha i r.   

I f  you  save a  Word  document ,  i t  may have add i t iona l  

in fo rmat ion  about  maybe the  s ize  o f  the  f i le  o r  the  loca t ion  

o f  the  f i le .   And I  am jus t  say ing  th is  hypothet ica l l y.    

 Bu t  essent ia l l y,  i t  i s  add i t iona l  in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  

to  tha t  f i l e ,  r igh t?   So,  whereas in  o ther  f i l e  sys tems wh ich  

m ight  have been-  wh ich  i s  p redominant ly  o r  may o f ten  be  10 

used w i th in  a  M icrosof t  env i ronment ,  those f i le  sys tems 

may not  ca ter  fo r  tha t  add i t iona l  in fo rmat ion  tha t  an  App le  

sys tem wou ld  ca ter  fo r  tha t  App le  –  fo r  tha t  add i t iona l  

in fo rmat ion  w i th in  i t s  s t ruc tures ,  r i gh t?    

 So,  what  I  -  based on the  research ,  Cha i r.   I  found  

tha t  when a  document  tha t  was crea ted o r  saved  on an 

App le  sys tem is  cop ied  o f f  o f  the  App le  sys tem onto  

another  f i l e  sys tem,  as  I  ind ica ted  ear l ie r  o r  a l luded to ,  

one tha t  i s  more  typ i ca l l y  compat ib le  w i th  Microsof t  

Windows sys tem.    20 

 Dur ing  the  copy  process,  what  the  App le  sys tem 

wi l l  do  is ,  i t  w i l l  save tha t  add i t iona l  in fo rmat ion ,  wh ich  is  

on ly  spec i f i c  to  App le  sys tems,  in  a  separa te  f i le .   I t  w i l l  

save i t  in  an  App le  doub le - f i le .    

 And based on the  research ,  i t  con f i rmed tha t  tha t  
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add i t iona l  f i l e ,  i t  wou ld  name the  f i le  as  a  do t  underscore ,  

fo l lowed by  the  res t  o f  the  normal  f i l e  name.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :    And what  i t  then –  what  the  –  and the  purpose  

o f  tha t  App le  doub le  f i le ,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t ,  in  a  s i tua t ion  or  a  

scenar io  in  wh ich  a  f i le  i s  cop ied  f rom an App le  sys tem to  

a  non-App le  f i le  sys tem and then back on to  an  App le  

sys tem,  the  rec ip ien t  App le  sys tem wi l l  then read tha t  

App le  doub le  f i le  and reconst i tu te  tha t  add i t iona l  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  may be re la ted  to  tha t  f i l e .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    Okay?  So,  Cha i r,  what  tha t  means to  me then  

is ,  and based on the  research ,  what  tha t  means is  tha t ,  the 

pre -suspens ion  documents  tha t  I  had found in  the  today-

fo lder  wh ich  was conta ined in  Mr  Khoza ’s  document  fo lder,  

i t  appears  tha t  because those App le  doub le  f i les  ex i s t ,  i t  

means tha t  those f i les  or ig ina l l y  came f rom an  App le  

dev ice  pr io r  to  i t  hav ing  been  saved on Mr  Khoza ’s  

compute r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  may mean tha t  there  were  –  they 

may have or ig ina l l y  been wr i t ten  o f f  tha t  –  in  an  App le  

dev ice  computer  o r  someth ing  l i ke  tha t?  

MR POON :    Ja .   Ja ,  and i t  does not  necessar i l y  mean tha t  
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i t  was mod i f ied  on  tha t  dev ice .   I t  jus t  means tha t  i t  a t  

some po in t  was saved on tha t  dev ice .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :    So ,  Cha i r,  I  c lose  then . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :    . . . to  then summar i se  or  maybe go back to  the  

sect ion  where in  I  spoke about  tha t  document  in  Mr  Koko ’s  

da ta ,  the  one in  wh ich  was,  accord ing  to  meta-data ,  las t  

au thored by  Matshe la  Koko,  wh ich  was then addressed to  

h im h imse l f  and conta ined the  a l legat ions as  i t  appeared in  10 

the  document  tha t  had been a t tached to  Mr  Khoza ’s  emai l ,  

tha t  the  las t  mod i f ied  da te  f rom Mr  Koko ’s  –  f rom the  

documents  in  Mr  Koko ’s  mach ine  was the  

10 t h  o f  March 2015 a t  about  quar te r  past  th ree  in  the 

a f te rnoon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    These documents ,  as  i t  appears  on  

Mr  Khoza ’s  backed-up dated occur red  a t  approx imate ly  –  

around,  le t  us  say ha l f -past  s ix  o f  tha t  same day.   So,  there  

is  a  gap,  a  t ime . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ha l f -past  s ix  in  the  even ing?  

MR POON :    That  i s  r igh t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR POON :    So ,  there  is  a  per iod  o f  about ,  you  know,  

approx imate l y,  th ree  hours ,  g ive  o r  take ,  Cha i r  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    . . .where-  based on  the  da ta  and the  meta-

data ,  i t  appears ,  and a lso  because o f  the  ex is tence o f  

these App le  doub le  f i les ,  i t  appears  tha t  be tween the  

documents ,  as  we had ident i f ied  in  Mr  Koko ’s  backup data  

and the  documents  tha t  we had ident i f ied  on  Mr  Khoza ’s  

da ta ,  i t  appears  tha t  there  must  have been an App le  dev i ce  

somewhere  in  the  m idd le  used to  a t  leas t  s to re  or  poss ib le  

mod i fy  those documents .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    And i t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :    And,  Cha i r,  there  i s  an  add i t iona l  po in t  I  just  

want  to  make.   That  suppor ts  th is ,  i s  tha t  in  Pro fessor  

Louwrens ’ tes t imony . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR POON :    . . .wh ich  is  on  the  21s t  o f  Apr i l ,  when he 

appeared a t  the  Commiss ion .   He  ment ioned tha t  when he 

looked a t  the  meta-data  o f  those f i les ,  i t  ind ica ted  in  the  20 

meta-data  tha t  those f i les  had been las t  mod i f ied  us ing 

Microsof t  Word  fo r  App le  or  Microsof t  Word  fo r  App le  

Mcin tosh.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    So ,  w i th  the  ex i s tence o f  the  App le  doub le  
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f i l es  and then meta-data  tha t  P ro fessor  Louwrens tes t i f ied  

to ,  i t  wou ld  then suppor t  the  no t ion  tha t  there  was an App le  

mach ine  or  dev i ce  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    In  be tween.  

MR POON :    In  be tween and  the  mak ing  o f  these  

documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now,  you ment ioned –  you h igh l igh ted  

the  t imes o f  a round  th ree  o ’ c lock  in  Mr  Koko ’s  compute r,  

backup and abou t  s ix  o ’c lock  or  thereabout  in  regard  to  Mr  

Khoza ’s  compute r.   I  do  no t  th ink  I  unders tood comple te l y  10 

what  s ix  o ’c lock  or  whatever  rep resented in  the  contex t  o f  

Mr  Koko and the  documents .   Is  tha t  when he rece ived  

them? 

MR POON :    Not  necessar i l y,  Cha i r.   So,  go ing  back to  the 

las t  mod i f ied  da te  o f  the  document  tha t  was on Mr  Koko ’s  

mach ine  be ing  quar te r  past  th ree .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR POON :    So ,  i f  we look a t  the  t ime l ine  o f  events  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR POON :    . . .o r  the  t ime l ine ,  as  dep ic ted  w i th in  the  

mod i f ied  da tes  o f  these documents .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR POON :    So ,  s ta r t ing  f rom quar te r  past  th ree  in  the  

a f te rnoon o f  the  10 t h  o f  March o f  2015,  we see  tha t  a  
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document  wh ich  is  very  s im i la r  to  tha t  o f  the  f ina l  vers ion ,  

was las t  mod i f ied  on  –  w i th in  Mr  Koko ’s  da ta ,  r igh t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    And then we see la te r  in  the  day tha t  the  las t  

mod i f ied  da tes  o f  the  documents  tha t  we had found ,  wh ich  

were  the  –  wh ich  were  os tens ib le  the  f ina l  vers ions  o f  the 

documents ,  were  found on Mr  Khoza ’s  backup data ,  r igh t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    The document  f rom Mr  Koko ’s  mach ine  o r  

da ted  to  Mr  Khoza ’s  da ta  was modi f ied  a t  tha t  –  a t  some 10 

po in t  be tween those t imes to  lead  to  the  f ina l  vers ions as  

appears  in  Mr  Koko ’s  da ta .   And then,  where  I  have 

re fer red  to  then the  App le  doub le  f i les ,  i t  means tha t ,  p r io r  

to  Mr  Khoza hav ing  rece ived those f i les ,  there  was an 

App le  dev ice  tha t  s to red  those f i les  be fore  i t  had got ten  to  

Mr  Khoza ’s  da ta ,  r igh t?   Now . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   So,  somewhere  be tween quar te r  

past  th ree  or  jus t  a f te r  the  t ime g i ven in  regard  to  Mr Koko 

and s i x  o ’c lock ,  they were  saved,  o r  someth ing  was done  

us ing  an  App le  dev i ce  to  them? 20 

MR POON :    Cor rec t .   And Cha i r,  I  jus t  want  to  po in t  ou t  

tha t  P ro fessor  Louwrens in  h is  –  un for tunate ly,  he  has no t ,  

you know,  presented h i s  ev idence befo re  you pr io r  to  me,  

bu t  in  h is  updated a f f idav i t ,  he  spec i f ies  and conf i rms tha t  

based on h is  ana lyses,  Mr  Koko ’s  mach ine  or  h is  computer  
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was a  Mic rosof t  mach ine .   I t  was not  an  App le  dev ice .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR POON :    And s im i la r ly  w i th  Mr  Khoza ’s  da ta ,  wh ich  I  

had a  look a t . . .   I  looked a t  a  backup o f  h is  da ta  and I  d id  

no t  look  a t  h is  l ap top  dev i ce  per  se .   So I  cannot  then  

conf i rm tha t  h is  mach ine ,  Mr  Khoza ’s  mach ine  was an  

App le  –  sor ry,  a  Microsof t  dev ice .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    But  based on the  fo lde r  s t ruc ture  tha t  was  

conta ined w i th in  the  backup o f  Mr  Khoza,  based  on the 10 

fo lder  s t ruc ture ,  I  can conf i rm tha t  h is  mach ine  was  not  an  

App le  dev i ce  e i ther.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    Because the  fo lder  s t ruc ture  was more  

cons is ten t  o r  was cons is ten t  w i th  the  fo lde r  s t ruc ture  tha t  

you wou ld  typ ica l l y  f ind  in  a  Microsof t  based computer  

sys tem.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay?  

MR POON :    So ,  aga in ,  be tween those two po in ts  in  t ime,  

there  was an App le  dev ice  tha t  was used to  then modi fy  20 

the  documents  po tent ia l l y,  o r  a t  leas t  s to re  those  

documents  be fo re  i t  reached Mr  Khoza ’s  compute r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.   Yes .   Yes,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Poon,  

cou ld  you determine how Mr  Khoza  might  have rece ived the  
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documents  on  h i s  mach ine?  

MR POON :    So ,  the  –  aga in ,  Advocate  Se leka ,  I  on ly  

looked a t  h is  backed-up data  and not  o f  an  image o f  h is  

mach ine  i t se l f .   I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  the  Commiss ion  has 

an  image o f  h is  compute r.   And i t  i s  w i th in  tha t  compute r  

image tha t  you wou ld  then per fo rm an ana lyses  to  see  

potent ia l l y  how those documents  came to  be  on –  to  –  f rom 

h is  da ta .    

 Now,  inso fa r  as  what  I  cou ld  see is ,  whether  o r  no t  

–  because there  is  a  number  o f  ways data  can get  on to  a  10 

mach ine ,  r igh t?   Through a  USB,  th rough the  C loud  or  even 

th rough emai l .    

 Now,  based on the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  had ava i lab le  

to  me,  wh ich  essent ia l l y  i s  jus t  a  da ta  f rom h i s  backup data  

as  we l l  as  h is  emai l .   From the  emai l ,  I  d id  no t  see any  

emai l  coming in  conta in ing  those documents .    

 The on ly  emai l  I  found conta in ing  those documents  

was the  emai l  tha t  he  had sent  Mr  Venete  K le in  on  the  14 t h  

o f  March.   That  was the  on ly  emai l ,  and i t  was an iPhone 

emai l ,  bu t  o therw ise ,  I  was not  ab le  to  de termine how. . .   20 

Ja ,  bu t  based on  the  App le  doub le- f i les ,  i t  suggests  tha t  i t  

may have been t ransfer red  v ia  a  USB,  d isk  o f  some sor t s .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  see .   You –  I  mean,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  

you found the  in fo rmat ion  in  h is  –  in  the  backed-up data  o f  

Mr  Khoza.   Cou ld  one a lso  make a  de te rminat ion  as  to  
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when tha t  –  these documents  cou ld  have been saved on  

h is  mach ine?  

MR POON :    No.   So,  the  –  there  are  two dates  tha t  you 

wou ld  cons ider  when ana lys ing  the  f i les  in  genera l .   That  

wou ld  be  the  crea ted date  t ime as  we l l  as  the  mod i f ied  

da te  t ime.   Now,  the  mod i f ied  da te  t ime wh ich  wou ld  be  the  

las t  t ime tha t  the  document  was  saved is  re f lec ted ,  as  I  

have re f lec ted  i t  in  paragraph 47  in  my a f f idav i t  on  page 

435.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes?  10 

MR POON :    Now,  i f  I  reca l l .   The crea ted date  t imes were  

the  same fo r  those f i les  wh ich  then suggest  to  me  tha t  the  

mod i f i ca t ion  d id  no t  occur  on  Mr  Khoza ’s  mach ine  d i rec t l y.   

I t  had been modi f ied  on  another  dev i ce  and then had been 

cop ied  onto  Mr  Khoza ’s  mach ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So ,  mod i f ied  pr io r  to  i t  be ing  cop ied  on 

h is  mach ine?  

MR POON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .   So.   Wel l ,  I  guess my –  what  I  am 

t ry ing  to  de termine is  whether  these le t te rs  wou ld  have  20 

ar r i ved on h is  mach ine  on the  10 t h  o f  March 2015 wh ich  i s  

be fore  the  11 t h  o f  March.  

MR POON :    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Or  cou ld  they have a r r i ved  on h is  

mach ine  thereaf te r.  
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MR POON :    Wel l ,  based on the  meta-date ,  i t  a r r i ved on h is  

mach ine  on the  10 t h  o f  March.   I f  –  now i t  i s  no t  to  say –  I  

mean,  one can manipu la te  a  compute r  fo r  the  da tes  to  

re f lec t  someth ing  d i f fe ren t ly,  bu t  aga in ,  s im i la r ly  to  our  

d iscuss ion  around the  au tho r,  you know,  the  mod i f i ca t ion  o f  

those va lues,  t yp i ca l l y  tha t  i s  no t  o rd inar i l y  done 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    H ’m,  yes.  

MR POON :    . . .as  a  normal  c i rcumstance.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  le t . . .   Cha i r,  I  see  our  t ime is  a f te r  

seven.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  bu t  we  need –  th is  i s  impor tan t  

ev idence.   So,  we shou ld  make sure  tha t  Mr  Poon  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .dea ls  w i th  a l l  the  th ings tha t  he  needs 

to  dea l  w i th .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  mean,  fo r  –  as  I  see i t ,  he  has covered 

qu i te  a  lo t .   The on ly  th ings tha t  he  m ight  no t  have covered 

are  maybe some o f  the  techn ica l  th ings tha t  a re  re f lec ted  

in  some o f  the  mat te rs ,  bu t  he  has,  fo r  example ,  the  cha in  

o f  cus tody documents .   I  guess,  he  wou ld  conf i rmed tha t  
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the  –  what  he  has wr i t ten  there  is  cor rec t ,  bu t  you want  to  

le t  h im dea l  w i th  tha t  to  cover  every th ing  to  say he  

conf i rms tha t  he  has sa t is f ied  h imse l f  tha t  the  cha in  o f  

cus tody was in tac t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Mr  Poon,  th is  be ing  the  techn ica l  

in fo rmat ion .   I f  you  cou ld  exp la in  to  the  us  how the  

in fo rmat ion  was  packaged,  rece ived,  and tha t  in  the 

manner  in  wh ich  i t  was rece ived,  the  in fo rmat ion  was  

in tac t ,  save to  use and re l iab le  to  be  used  by  the  

Commiss ion .  10 

MR POON :    A l r igh t .   Wi th  p leasure ,  Advocate  Se leka.   So,  

go ing  back to  the  –  my comments  ear l ie r  w i th  regard  to  

when I  was p rov ided w i th  a  request  then to  per fo rm the  

ana lyses tha t  I  had ear l ie r  spoken about .   As  I  had 

ind ica ted  ear l ie r,  I  then searched the  Commiss ion ’s  

ev idence reg is te rs  fo r  –  to  ident i f y  da ta  wh ich  had been 

co l lec ted  by  the  Commiss ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR POON :    And in  do ing  so ,  t here  were  a  number  o f  

fo rens ic  images  wh ich  had been  acqu i red  by  the  20 

Commiss ion .   I t  was not  by  myse l f .   But  i t  had been 

acqu i red  by  the  Commiss ion  and I  –  the  reg i s te r  then  

ind ica ted  to  where  they had been s tored,  wh ich  I  then 

proceeded to  ex t rac t  f rom the  –  ou r  ev idence s tores .   Now,  

the  da ta  tha t  I  have spoken abou t  today.   The da ta  was 
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con ta ined w i th in  two fo rens ic  images wh ich  had been 

acqu i red  and I  re fe r red  to  these fo rens i c  images in  

parag raph 15 o f  my a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  on  page 429.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR POON :    So . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :    Ja .   So the  da ta  I  had re fer red  to  w i th in  my  

tes t imony today.   I t  had been acqu i red  in to  the  two fo rens i c  

images wh ich  is  s ta ted  in  tha t  paragraph.   The one  be ing  –  

and i t  was a l loca ted  to  ev idence numbers .   The one be ing  10 

SCCJHB-19022019-TM-008.   And  then the  second one 

be ing  SCCJHB-21022019-TM-014.   Okay.    

 So,  these ev idence images,  t yp ica l l y  what  i s  done  

and what  I  d id  do  in  th is  ins tance as  we l l  i s  tha t  be fore  one 

uses ev idence wh ich  had p rev ious ly  been acqu i red ,  one 

wou ld  then re-ve r i f y  them.    

 And what  tha t  mean is  tha t  a t  the  po in t  o f  

acqu is i t ion ,  mean ing  a t  the  po in t  in  t ime a t  wh ich  these –  

the  da ta  was o r ig ina l l y  acqu i red ,  there  i s  a  fo rens i c  

p rocess wh ich  acqu i res  tha t  da ta  f rom the  source  and the  20 

source ,  I  unders tand,  were  ha rd  d r ives  tha t  were  p rov ided 

by  Eskom to  Mr  Tshepo Maleka who is  a  co l league  on the  

DFT Team.    

 And du r ing  the  acqu is i t ion  process,  the  too ls  wh ich  

are  used to  acqu i re  tha t  da ta ,  i t  c rea tes  two MD5#’s .   The  



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 254 of 266 
 

f i rs t  MD5# -  and  as  I  have ment ioned ear l ie r,  Cha i r,  the  

MD5# is  a  s ignature  ove r  –  tha t  i s  ca lcu la ted  over  a  p iece  

o f  da ta .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    So ,  dur ing  the  acqu is i t ion  process wh ich  i s  

the  captur ing  o f  the  da ta  tha t  was conta ined on the  hard  

dr ives  tha t  was prov ided by  Eskom,  the  fo rens i c  so f tware  

ca l cu la tes  the  MD5# o f  the  da ta  tha t  i s  coming f rom tha t  

hard  dr i ve .   Once a l l  o f  the  da ta  i s  captured,  the  fo rens i c  

so f tware  then reca lcu la tes  tha t  MD5#.    10 

 Except  in  th is  ins tance,  i t  ca lcu la tes  i t  on  the  da ta  

tha t  was –  tha t  was obta ined.   So,  the  f i rs t  one i s  on  the  

da ta  source  ha rd  dr i ve .   And  the  second one  is  a  

ca l cu la t ion  o f  the  hash wh ich  is  conta ined on the  da ta  tha t  

we had l i te ra l l y  co l lec ted .    

 And the  pu rpose o f  tha t  i s  to  then  ca lcu la te  the  –  

or  ver i f y  tha t  the  da ta  tha t  we had co l lec ted  was indeed  the  

da ta  tha t  was conta ined on tha t  hard  dr i ve .   So . . .   And 

those two hashes –  the  f i rs t  one is  re fe r red  to  as  an  

acqu is i t ion  has  because i t  i s  ca lcu la ted  du r ing  an  20 

acqu is i t ion  process.    

 And the  second hash i s  re fe r red  to  as  a  

ver i f i ca t ion  hash,  because i t  i s  then ca lcu la ted  on the  da ta  

tha t  we have a l ready co l lec ted .   And i f  those two  hashes  

match ,  tha t  i s  an  ind ica t ion  tha t  fo rens i ca l l y  what  we have  
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co l lec ted  is  indeed what  was on tha t  hard  dr i ve ,  the  source  

hard  dr i ve ,  okay?    

 So,  when I  had  ident i f ied  these images wh ich  

conta ined the  da ta  tha t  I  wanted  ana lysed,  I  re-ver i f ied  

them.   Mean ing  tha t  the  da ta  tha t  was conta ined w i th in  the  

images,  my a t tempt  was to  asce r ta in  tha t  the  da ta  was  

indeed the  same data  tha t  was co l lec ted  a t  the  po in t  o f  

acqu is i t ion  when i t  was f i rs t  acqu i red .    

 And g i ven tha t  the  MD5#’s  matched,  one can then  

re ly  on  tha t  da ta .   Mean ing  tha t  tha t  da ta  s ince  acqu is i t ion  10 

has no t  changed.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   Okay,  thank you.   Then we a lso  

requested you to  cons ide r  an  a f f idav i t  o f  Ms E ls ie  Phu le  

wh ich  had an emai l  o r  two addressed to  Mr  Ze thembe 

Khoza on the  11 t h  o f  March 2015.   I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  

exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson whethe r  there  is  any fea ture  or  

fac tor  o f  s ign i f i cance you found in  regard  to  tha t  in  re la t ion  

to  the  exerc ise  tha t  you have to ld  us  about  du r ing  your  

tes t imony?  

MR POON :    Sure .   So,  in  re la t ion  to  th is  request .   I  was 20 

requested to  search  fo r  emai l s  to  o r  f rom E ls ie  Phu le  to  

Mr  Khoza on the  11 t h  o f  March o f  2015.   Advocate  Se leka,  I  

was not  p rov ided  w i th  any a f f idav i t  o r  anyth ing  in  re la t ion  

to  E lse  Phu le  tha t  she had submi t ted .   I t  was jus t  tha t  the  

requested as  to  f ind  emai ls  tha t  had been sent  to  o r  f rom 
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her  in  re la t ion  to  Mr  Khoza.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

MR POON :    So ,  I  jus t  wanted to  po in t  tha t  ou t  tha t  I  d id  

no t  have anyth ing  to  re ference.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

MR POON :    So ,  what  I  d id  then was,  I  went  back in to  the  

New X  app l i ca t ion ,  and I  ran  a  search  fo r  emai ls  wh ich  

were  e i ther  sent  o r  rece ived by  Mr  E ls ie  Phu le  to  o r  f rom 

Mr  Khoza and I  ran  the  search  spec i f i ca l l y  w i th in  these 

emai l  a rch i ves.    10 

 I  ran  the  search  fo r  the  per iod  9 t h  o f  March 2015 to  

the  14 t h  o f  March  2015,  and the  reason why I  d id  tha t  i s  

jus t  to  p rov ide  some leeway be fore  the  11 t h  o f  March,  

be fore  and a f te r,  in  the  event  tha t  there  may be some o ther  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  may have re la ted  to  the  events  o f  the  11 t h  

o f  March.    

 And what  I  found  was,  spec i f i ca l l y  to  –  or  d i rec t l y  

on  the  11 t h  o f  March o f  2015,  I  found tow emai ls  t ha t  was 

sent  f rom E ls ie  Phu le  to  Mr  Khoza.   The f i rs t  emai l  and I  

re fe r  tha t  to  tha t  document  as  Annexure  LP-19 wh ich  is  on 20 

page 475.   I f  I  may descr ibe  the  cover  le t te r,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MR POON :    I t  s ta tes  tha t  i t  i s  an  emai l  f rom E ls ie  Phu le  to  

Zethembe Khoza .   The sub jec t  o f  the  emai l  is :   As  

d iscussed.   Jus t  those two words “as  d i scussed” .    
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ADV SELEKA SC :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR POON :    The date  o f  tha t  emai l  i s  Wednesday,  the  

11 t h  o f  March 2015 a t  14 :29 :39 in  the  a f te rnoon.   There  a re  

two a t tachments  re f lec ted  as  be ing  a t tached to  th is  emai l .   

The f i rs t  one  is  –  the  name o f  the  f i le  i s :   

CopyofFband l is tassetsJan2015.x ls .    

 And the  second  a t tachment  i s :  

D isc ip l inaryprocess.x lx .   Now,  based on the  –  now based  

on th is  characte rs  a f te r  the  f i le  name be ing  x l s  and x lx ,  10 

Cha i r,  tha t  ind ica tes  tha t  these are  two spreadsheet  

documents  or  spreadsheet  f i l es .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   Okay.   Then speak ing  to  the  a t tachments  o f  

tha t  emai l ,  Cha i r,  the  two a t tachments ,  I  have got  i t  on 

page 476 and 477 o f  the  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    One second?  466 and 467?  

MR POON :   Sor ry,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  476 and 477.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  was wonder ing  why you had 

moved away f rom – yes,  okay,  f rom where  I  thought  we 20 

wou ld  be .   I  am a t  476.   Yes.  

MR POON :   Okay,  so  the  document  tha t  i s  on  476,  th is  

document ,  i t  appears  to  be  a  spreadsheet  wh ich  l i s ts  o r  

ou t l ines  a  d isc ip l inary  process.   I t  spec i f ies  a t  the  top  o f  

the  spreadsheet ,  i t  says  the re  pro jec t  p lan  –  d i sc ip l inary  
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ac t ion  and in  b rackets  i t  has  a  name there  o f  Sa l  Laher.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You may proceed,  Mr  Poon ,  le t  us  

ment ion  tha t  i t  has  go t  an  Eskom …[ in tervenes]  

MR POON :   Logo.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  know i f  i t  i s  an  Eskom logo,  i t  

has  go t  an  Eskom logo,  tha t  document  a t  page 476 and  

be low the  Eskom logo i t  i s  wr i t ten  Urgent  Pro jec t  P lan  – 

d isc ip l ina ry  ac t ion  and then (Sa l  Laher ) .   Yes.   Cont inue?  

MR POON :   Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   And  w i th in  the  tab le  tha t  i s  

be low tha t  there  are  th ree  co lumns,  the  f i rs t  co lumn has 10 

the  head ing  o f  Act iv i t y,  the  second co lumn head ing  o f  

Respons ib le  Person and then the  th i rd  and las t  co lumn has 

the  head ing  o f  Da te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   And,  as  I  ment ioned,  Cha i r,  i t  appears  to  be ,  

you know,  to  ou t l ine  the  d isc ip l inary  process fo r  the  person 

Sa l  Laher  wh ich  appears  on  top  o f  the  spreadshee t .   I  am 

not  sure  i f  you  want  me to  then  go th rough the  en t i re  

document ,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because I  m igh t  be  ab le  to  read,  I  th ink  20 

i t  m igh t  be  impor tan t  to  qu i ck l y  run  what  ac t i v i t y,  who was  

go ing  to  be  respons ib le  and the  da tes  because tha t  m ight  

be  qu i te  impor tan t .   Do you want  to  do  tha t?   A re  you ab le  

to  read i t  qu ick ly  o r  o the rw ise  I  can read i t  qu ick ly.  

MR POON :   Okay,  f ine ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me do tha t .   Under  Act iv i t y,  the  f i rs t  

i tem is :  

“ Ins t i tu te  inves t iga t ion ,  appo in tment  in te rna l  

fo rens ic  depar tment ,  respons ib le  person,  l ine  

manager,  da te  17  December  2014. ”  

Maybe i f  we do not  read every th ing ,  ( ind is t inc t  –  record ing  

d is to r ted)  number  o f  ac t i v i t ies  managed there ,  jus t  some 

dates  o f  impor tance.   Mr  Se leka,  have you p icked  up any 

da tes  o f  impor tance and ac t iv i t ies  o f  par t i cu la r  in te res t  to  

our  inqu i ry?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cha i r,  I  can  see the  16  March.   The 6  

and 9  and the  16  March wh ich  are  c lose  to  the  11  and 10 

March but  i t ’s  a  t ime l ine  –  the  document  se ts  ou t  a  t ime l ine  

o f  ac t i v i t ies  to  be  taken on those  par t i cu la r  da tes  tha t  a re  

pro jec ted  or  ment ioned or  se t  ou t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Does th is  appear  to  be  someth ing  

re la t ing  to  Mr  Sa l  Laher?  

MR POON :   Cha i r,  to  me i t  appears  tha t  i t  re la tes  to  a  

d isc ip l ina ry  ac t ion  re la t ing  to  Sa l  Laher,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Le t  us  move on to  the 20 

–  i t  does appear  l i ke  tha t ,  le t  us  move on to  the  next  

annexure  –  oh ,  un less ,  Mr  Se leka,  you s t i l l  have 

someth ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  I  was  go ing  to  say,  Cha i r,  I  

suppose Ms E ls ie  Pu le  w i l l  en l igh ten  on th is  document .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t  because she  sent  i t ,  

ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cor rec t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  t rue .   Okay,  cont inue,  

Mr  Poon?  

MR POON :    Thank you,  Cha i r,  and then i f  you move on to  

page 477 o f  the  bund le ,  tha t  conta ins  a  screenshot  o r  a  

copy o f  the  contents  o f  the  second  a t tachment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR POON :   Which  was a t tached  to  the  emai l  f rom E ls ie  10 

Pu le  to  Zethembe Khoza.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and Ms Pu le  w i l l  exp la in  tha t  to  us .  

MR POON :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :   Do you want  me to  go  –  descr ibe  the  document  

in  any way,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  you do not  have to… 

MR POON :   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  need to  read anyth ing  in  tha t  

document .  20 

MR POON :   Thank you,  Cha i r.   Then tha t  was the  f i rs t  

document  tha t  I  had found or  f i rs t  emai l  w i th  the 

a t tachments  wh ich  I  had found in  wh ich  Ms E ls ie  Pu le  had 

sent  to  Mr  Khoza on the  11 t h  March .    

 The second emai l  wh ich  I  marked as  annexure  
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LP20,  wh ich  is  found f rom pages – s ta r t ing  f rom page 478  

and i f  I  may speak to  the  emai l ,  the  cover  emai l?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   The cover  emai l  s ta r t s  –  i t  ind ica tes  tha t  the  

emai l  was sent  f rom E ls ie  Pu le  to  Zethembe Khoza,  the  

sub jec t  o f  the  emai l  was Suspens ion  Process and I  jus t  

want  to  po in t  ou t ,  Cha i r,  tha t  m isspe l l ing  o f  suspens ion  

was as  i t  was found in  the  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR POON :   Okay.   The date  o f  the  emai l  was Wednesday  10 

11 March 2015 and i t  was sent  a t  approx imate ly  s ix  past  

four  in  the  a f te rnoon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   There  were  th ree  a t tachments  a t tached  to  th is  

emai l  the  f i rs t  be ing  the  name o f  the  f i le  tha t  was a t tached,  

i t  was Suspens ion  Process 240811 (3)  fo l lowed by  

Cover ing  Safe t y  Ru les  Vio la t ions .doc.   So tha t  appeared to  

be  a  word  document  and then the  second a t tachment ,  the  

name was Conf i rmat ion  suspens ion .docx.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR POON :   And  then the  las t  a t tachment  the  name was 

Dra f t  Le t te r  o f  Suspens ion .doc.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   And then in  the  body o f  the  emai l  i t  jus t  says  

there :  



28 JUNE 2021 – DAY 418 
 

Page 262 of 266 
 

“Mr  Khoza,  add i t iona l  in fo rmat ion . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   Okay.   That  dea ls  w i th  the  cover  le t te r  and  

then inso far  as  the  a t tachments  are  concerned,  s ta r t ing  

f rom page 479 th rough to  481,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   I t  appears  to  be  –  i t  appears  jus t  to  be  a  

process document  ou t l in ing  wha t  a  suspens ion  process 

needs to  look  a t  o r  en ta i l s .   Okay?    

 The second document ,  wh ich  s ta r ts  on  page 482,  10 

th is  appears  to  be  a  templa te  le t te r  where  the  sub jec t  o f  

the  le t te r  s ta tes :  

“Not ice  o f  Suspens ion  w i th  pay pend ing  an 

invest iga t ion  in to  a l leged misconducts  and/or  

d isc ip l ina ry  ac t ion . ’ ”  

Okay,  tha t  i s  the  second a t tachment  and then on page 484,  

wh ich  is  the  th i rd  a t tachment  and f ina l  a t tachment  to  th is  

emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   The sub jec t  o f  th is  le t te r  a lso  i t  appears  to  be  20 

a  templa te  where in  the  sub jec t  i t  s ta tes :  

“ In ten t ion  to  suspend pend ing  an  invest iga t ion  in to 

a l legat ions o f  m isconduct . ”  

And tha t  then conc ludes the  second emai l  tha t  I  had found,  

Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR POON :   And i t  was those two emai ls ,  i t  was on ly  those 

two emai ls  wh ich  I  ident i f ied  had been sent  o r  rece ived 

f rom Ms E ls ie  Pu le  on  the  11  March o f  2015.   There  were  

some documents  or  emai ls  tha t  I  had found pr io r  to  the  11 

March but  those documents  d id  no t  appear  to  be  re la ted  to  

the  suspens ions.  

 And then a l so  I  found some emai ls  tha t  were  sent  

and rece ived by  E ls ie  Pu le  wh ich  I  found in  Mr  Khoza ’s 

mai lbox a f te r  the  11  March and those I  had found ,  based  10 

on my read ing ,  they appeared to  be  in te rna l  Eskom emai ls  

tha t  appeared to  be  d iscuss ions around co rpo ra te  

communica t ions and w i th in  those d iscuss ions they re fer red  

to  the  suspens ion  events  wh ich  I  be l ieve  took p lace on the  

11  March.   So i t  was rea l l y  jus t ,  you know,  how do we then 

communica te  the  suspens ions to  the  res t  o f  the  s ta f f ,  

bas ica l l y  to  tha t  e f fec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Poon,  wou ld  you  

p rov ide  us  w i th  those emai l s  as  we l l?  20 

MR POON :   Excuse me,  Adv Se leka,  can you repeat  tha t  

p lease?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wou ld  you  p lease prov ide  us  w i th  

those emai ls  as  we l l?  

MR POON :   Yes,  I  w i l l  do  tha t .   Ja ,  I  w i l l  do  tha t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  okay,  I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  we w i l l  

pursue in  as  fa r  as  Ms E ls ie  Pu le ’s  concerned,  fu r ther  

quest ions on  th is  aspect  w i th  her.   I  th ink  on  my s ide  I  

th ink  the  issues have been exhausted,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  thank you ve ry  

much,  Mr  Poon,  your  ev idence has cer ta in ly  taken much  

longer  than I  th ink  bo th  Mr  Se leka and I  thought  i t  wou ld  

take  but  i t  i s  impor tan t  ev idence and i t  was impor tan t  tha t  

i t  be  dea l t  w i th  p roper ly.   Thank you very  much,  I  w i l l  now 

excuse you.  10 

MR POON :   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Then,  Mr  Se leka,  you had 

Ms Pu le  l ined up fo r  much ea r l ie r,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR POON :   Cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   We cannot  –  I  cannot  hear  her  

ev idence now because my reg is t ra r  needs to  leave ,  so  tha t  

she does not  b reak the  cur few.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    B reak the  law,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  th ink  tha t  sub jec t  to  Ms  Pu le ’s  

ava i lab i l i t y  we shou ld  be  ab le  t o  s lo t  her  in  a t  some s tage  20 

in  the  a f te rnoon tomorrow.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  but  I  th ink  tha t  we w i l l  ta lk  and then 

you can ta lk  to  her,  we w i l l  ta lk  in  the  morn ing  and you can  

ta lk  to  he r  once  I  have an i dea  as  to  what  t ime in  the  
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a f te rnoon or  ear l y  even ing ,  we might  be  ab le  to  s lo t  her  in .  

So le t  us  hope tha t  her  s i tua t ion  w i l l  be  such tha t  she w i l l  

be  f lex ib le  because she might  have not  have been ab le  to  

do  o ther  th ings tha t  she wanted to  do  today on the  bas is  

tha t  we sa id  she  wou ld  g ive  ev idence and now we  d id  no t  

ge t  to  her.   So le t  us  see what  i s  poss ib le ,  I  am sure  she 

w i l l  do  what  she can to  t ry  and ass is t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  w i l l .   I  w i l l  l e t  her  know,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    May I  adv ise  the  Cha i rpe rson in  regard  10 

to  Pr ish  Govender?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Because i t  i s  a  pos i t i ve  conf i rmat ion  o f  

Wednesday a t  16h00.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   That  i s  f ine ,  

thank you.   Then fo r  the  pub l i c  I  jus t  want  to  ind ica te  tha t  I  

th ink  tomor row morn ing  I  w i l l  be  hear ing  the  ev idence o f  Mr  

Nyhonyha o f  Reg iments  under  the  Money F lows work  

s t ream o f  the  Commiss ion .   Okay,  le t  us  ad journ  fo r  the 

day then as  fa r  as  the  Eskom work  s t ream is  concerned 20 

and as  fa r  as  today is  concerned.   H ’m?  Oh,  my reg is t ra r  

i s  ac tua l l y  te l l ing  me tha t  I  am –  tomorrow is  Ms Mngoma,  I  

th ink  Dr  Cwele  –  I  was under  the  impress ion  tha t  Dr  Cwele  

is  on  Wednesday but  ea r ly  in  the  morn ing  the  pub l i c  w i l l  be  

in fo rmed exact ly  who but  acco rd ing  to  my reg is t ra r,  
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tomorrow i t  i s  Dr  Cwele  and Ms  Mngoma who w i l l  g ive  

ev idence a t  d i f fe ren t  t imes.   Ms Mngoma wi l l  be  la te r  in  the  

day,  in  the  a f te rnoon and Dr  Cwele  w i l l  be  in  the  morn ing  

be fore  lunch.   Okay,  we w i l l  c la r i f y  tomorrow morn ing .   

Thank you,  we ad journ .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you very  much.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 29 JUNE 2021  


